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and Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24

Dear Sir/Madam,
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 8" Annual General Meeting of Tyger Capital Private Limited
(Formerly known as Adani Capital Private Limited) will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024
at 11:00 A.M., on shorter notice through video conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means
(OAVM) deemed to be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Adani House, 56, Shrimali
Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Company together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and if thought fit to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon be and are hereby received, approved and adopted.”

2. To appoint MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.
105047W) as Statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, and if
thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to provisions of section 139 and 141 of Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 read with the with Guidelines for
Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs), issued by Reserve Bank of India vide its
Circular dated April, 27, 2021 or any other law for the time being in force (including any statutory
modification or amendment thereto or reenactment thereof) and other applicable regulatory
provisions, if any, based on the recommendation of Audit Committee and approval of the Board of
Directors, M/s MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.
105047W) (Hereinafter referred to as “Statutory Auditors”) be and are hereby appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 consecutive years i.e. from the conclusion of
the of 8" Annual General Meeting (for FY 23-24) until the conclusion of the 11" Annual General
Meeting (FY 26-27) of the Company , at such remuneration and expenses as may be approved by
the Board from time to time and as may be mutually agreed between the Company and the Statutory
Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including the Committee of the Board or
any other person(s) authorised by the Board) be and are hereby authorized to do all the acts, deeds,
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things as may be necessary, usual, expedient including finalising, amending, roles and
responsibilities, scope of work, the terms of appointment, remuneration, and signing, executing,
contracts or other documents and settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this
regard to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary,
desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto including filing of necessary e -forms with the registrar
of Companies and such other regulatory authorities.”

Special Business:

3. To appoint Mr. Bharat Laxmidas Sampat (DIN: 10444686) as an Independent Director of
the Company and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 161(1) and 178 read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable
provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under read with
Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) and Fit and Proper’ Criteria for Directors of NBFCs as issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, based of recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approval of the
Board of Directors, Mr. Bharat Laxmidas Sampat (DIN :- 10444686) be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Director the Company to hold office for a period of 5 years i.e. from August 7,
2024 until August 6, 2029.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji, as per the provisions of section 197 (5)
of the Companies Act, 2013, shall receive remuneration by way of fee for attending the meetings
of the Board or Committee thereof and for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board,
provided the amount of such fees shall not exceed the amount as may be prescribed under relevant
rules of the Companies Act, 2013

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary,
desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto including filing of necessary e -forms with the registrar
of Companies and such other regulatory authorities.”
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4. To re-appoint Mr. Gaurav Rakesh Gupta (DIN: 01669109) as Managing Director & CEO
of the Company and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 196, 197, 198, 203 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Gaurav Rakesh Gupta (DIN: 01669109) be and is hereby
appointed/reappointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company for second term of 5 years
i.e. w.e.f. March 31, 2024 to March 30, 2029 on such terms and conditions as may be decided in
consultation with Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time including
remuneration as detailed below:

Cost to Company:

a. Annual fixed salary of INR 3,30,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three Crores and Thirty Lakhs) payable
in 12 equal instalments.

b. Other perquisites shall include:

1. One car plus driver salary/ expenses; and
ii. Two club memberships.

c. In addition to the annual fixed salary and perquisites as mentioned in (a) and (b) above, the
Employee shall be eligible to receive bonus, benchmarked against market standards for similar
roles and industry sector, based on the performance of the Company and the performance of the
Employee, as determined by the NRC and the Board at their sole discretion.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Chief Financial Officer or the
Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

5. To appoint Mr. Sarit Chopra (DIN: 06639274) as a Director on the Board and if thought
fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Rules made there under read with Schedule
IV to the Act, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), Mr. Sarit Chopra (DIN: 06639274), who was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of the Company by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 27, 2024 and
whose term of office expires at this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) and in respect of whom the
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Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as
Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in connection with the aforesaid, the Board of Directors
(including any Committee thereof) or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for
the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto.”

6. To appoint Ms. Suruchi Nangia (having DIN: 07901622) as a Director on the Board and if
thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Rules made there under read with Schedule
IV to the Act, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), Ms. Suruchi Nangia (having DIN: 07901622), who was appointed as an Additional Director
on the Board of the Company by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 27, 2024
and whose term of office expires at this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) and in respect of whom
the Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013 proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as
Director of the Company.

7. To appoint Mr. Chong Kah Khen (DIN: 10485536) as a Director on the Board and if
thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Rules made there under read with Schedule
IV to the Act, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), Mr. Chong Kah Khen (DIN: 10485536), who was appointed as an Additional Director on
the Board of the Company by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 27, 2024 and
whose term of office expires at this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) and in respect of whom the
Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as
Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in connection with the aforesaid, the Board of Directors
(including any Committee thereof) or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all
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such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, desirable, proper or expedient for
the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto.”

8. To appoint Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji (having DIN: 07021146) as an Independent Director
on the Board and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 178 read with any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (““Act”) and the Rules made there under read
with Schedule IV to the Act, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and Fit and Proper’ Criteria for Directors of NBFCs as issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji (DIN: 07021146), who was appointed as an Additional
Director on the Board of the Company by the Board of Directors by way of a circular resolution
dated September 12, 2024 and whose term of office expires at this Annual General Meeting
(‘AGM’) and in respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director,
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a period
of 3 years i.e. from September 12, 2024 until September 11, 2027.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji, as per the provisions of section 197 (5)
of the Companies Act, 2013, shall receive remuneration by way of fee for attending the meetings
of the Board or Committee thereof and for any other purpose as may be decided by the Board,
provided the amount of such fees shall not exceed the amount as may be prescribed under relevant
rules of the Companies Act, 2013

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or the Company Secretary be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary,
desirable, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

By order of the Board
For Tyger Capital Private Limited

Sd/-
Balan Santosh Parthasarathy
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary & Compliance officer
Date: - September 27, 2024 Mem No.: A49602
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(Formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
Fax +9122 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, Adani House,
contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpura, Josh Aapka
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NOTES:

1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Shareholders has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Shareholders will not be
available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form is not annexed to this Notice.

3. The Body Corporate is entitled to appoint an authorized representative to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM, participate thereat, and cast their votes.

4. Corporate shareholders are requested to send to the Company, a duly certified copy of the
board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the AGM.

5. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General Circulars has allowed the
Companies to conduct the AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM) till September 25, 2025. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC / OAVM. The proceedings of the AGM are deemed to be conducted at the
Registered Office of the Company.

6. The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of
the Company situated at Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat - 380009, India which shall be the deemed Venue of the AGM. Since the AGM will
be held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

7. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical
attendance of Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, Attendance Slip is not
annexed to this Notice.

8. Shareholders attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
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9. The register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding maintained
under section 170 of the companies act, 2013 and the register of contracts and arrangements
in which directors are interested under section 189 of the companies act, 2013 shall be made
available at the commencement of the meeting and shall remain open and accessible to the
members during the continuance of the meeting.

INSTRUCTION TO MEMBERS TO ACCESS AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING
THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING/OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS

1. The link for joining the meeting through electronic mode shall be shared separately.

2. The meeting begins at 11.00 a.m. on Monday, September 30, 2024. Members of the Company
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form can participate in the meeting.

3. The members shall be allowed to login to the meeting from 10.45 a.m. to 11.15 a.m.

4. The meeting shall be conducted through MS Teams. Shareholders are advised to download MS
Teams App on their smartphone or browser.

5. The Members are advised to log in 15 minutes before the schedule time of meeting.

6. In case of any queries relating to joining the Meeting through Electronic mode, Shareholders
may mail us their queries on compliance.tcpl@tyger.in. This facility shall be available
throughout the meeting.

7. Please note that no person other than the respective Member shall have access to place from
where the Member is participating during the meeting.

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT
2013

Item No. 3

To have required composition of Board of Directors, pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 177
and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to appoint one more Independent
Director.

Mr. Bharat Laxmidas Sampat has been shortlisted to be appointed as an Independent Director.
Further, based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approval of
the Board of Directors at their meetings held on August 7, 2024, Mr. Bharat was appointed as an
Additional Director (Independent category) to hold office up to the period of this AGM, as per
provisions of section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The brief profile of the Mr. Bharat is given hereunder:

a. | Full Name Bharat Laxmidas Sampat
b. | Date of Birth 08-04-1961
c. | Education Qualifications B. Com. and LLB (Gen.) degrees from Mumbai

University and is a Chartered Accountant, Cost
Accountant and Company Secretary.

d. | Relevant Background and | Chartered Accountant with 38 years of post-
Experience qualification experience in manufacturing, banking
and Finance Shared Services industry in local as well
as global companies and locations.

Within Finance function has extensive experience in
Financial ~Accounting, Financial Control and
Reporting, Management Accounting, Taxation,
Investor Relations and Capital Raising areas, both
within and outside India, in BAU as well as Project
roles. Apart from this, have also headed Legal,
Company Secretarial, Property & Administration

functions.
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
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Last assignment was as CFO of DCB Bank Ltd, a
listed private sector bank in India for about 14 years.
Apart from being integral part of core management
team, direct responsibilities included Finance, Legal,
Operational ~ Risk, Company Secretary and
Property/Admin functions.

Joined DCB Bank in Sep 2008 at the height of global
financial crisis. The Bank’s Balance Sheet was
severely impacted. Was part of core team which
recapitalized the Bank, formulated turnaround
strategy, and executed the same. Business strategy to
refocus the Bank towards secured, granular and
diversified lending has withstood stresses generated
by demonetization, GST implementation and Covid
outbreak on the Bank’s target customer segment.

Across the years successfully raised Equity and Tier 2
capital through multiple QIP issuances as well as
Preferential Allotment to Private Equity investors.
Also led strategy to ensure early declaration of results
(within fortnight of close of financial year), tax
strategy to reduce tax contingent overhang, various
cost reduction initiatives, investor outreach, premise
strategy to grow the Bank from a regional Bank with
80 branches to national presence with 400+ branches,
resolution of legacy legal cases and transformation of
Company Secretarial function.

The role has required extensive external face off to the
Promoter representatives, Chairman of the Bank, the
Board, the ACB and the RMC apart from investor
community, investment bankers, rating agencies and
the big four audit firms. Professional competence,
interpersonal skills, ability to present the big picture as
well as flesh out details supported by transparency and
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fairness in conduct has enabled him to enjoy good
relations with all these external stakeholders.

Presently, he serves as Independent Director
(designated by SEBI as Public Interest Director) on the
Board of National Commodity Clearing Ltd.

He holds B. Com. and LLB (Gen.) degrees from
Mumbai University and is a Chartered Accountant,
Cost Accountant and Company Secretary.

e. | Permanent Address 801 Woodside, Gokhale Road South, Opp. Ashish
Industrial Estate, Dadar West, Mumbai, Maharashtra-
400025.

Further, the Company has received the consent in writing along with the declaration from Mr.
Bharat confirming that he is not disqualified from being appointed as director in terms of Section
164 and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the circulars, directions, notifications,
regulations, guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Further, the Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from
the shareholder to propose the candidature of Mr. Bharat as Director/Independent Director.

Except Mr. Bharat, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives is concerned
or interested in this resolution.

The Board is of the view that the Company would benefit from the rich and varied experience of
Mr. Bharat and accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in Item no. 3 of the
Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No. 4

Mr. Gaurav Rakesh Gupta was appointed as the Managing Director & CEO of the Company on
March 9, 2021, for a period of three years, commencing from March 31, 2021. The term of office
Mr. Gaurav Rakesh Gupta has come to an end. Further, based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting
held on August 8, 2024, the Members of the Company are requested to approve the appointment/re-
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appointment of Mr. Gaurav Rakesh Gupta as Managing Director & CEO for the second term of 5
years i.e. from March 31, 2024 until March 30, 2029.

The Company has received notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his
candidature to act as Managing Director & CEO.

The Company has received the consent in writing along with the declaration from Mr. Gaurav
Rakesh Gupta, confirming that he is not disqualified from being appointed as director in terms of
Section 164 and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the circulars, directions,
notifications, regulations, guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Except, Mr. Gaurav Rakesh Gupta, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their
relatives is concerned or interested in this resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item no. 4 of the Notice
for approval of the Members.

Item 5, 6 and 7

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on March 27, 2024 have appointed
Mr. Sarit Chopra (DIN: 06639274), Ms. Suruchi Nangia (having DIN: 07901622) and Mr. Chong
Kah Khen (DIN: 10485536) as an Additional Director pursuant to the provisions of: (i) Sections
149, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Companies Act”) and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act as amended from time to time, and all applicable rules including the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014 (including any modification
or re-enactment thereof); (ii) the articles of association of the Company; (ii1) the approval of the
Reserve Bank of India dated February 6, 2024 bearing no.CO.DoS.DSD. No.
S8826/01.08.021/2023-24 in respect to the proposed change in control, shareholding, takeover and
change in management of the Company; and (iv) investment agreement dated July 20, 2023
executed by and amongst the Company, Adani Finserve Private Limited (“Seller”’), Adani Ventures
LLP, Adani Properties Private Limited, Adani Housing Finance Private Limited (“AHFPL”) and
the BCC Atlantis II Pte Ltd. (“Investor”) (such agreement, the “Investment Agreement”).

Further, pursuant to provisions of section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Additional Directors
shall hold office up to the date of next AGM. Hence it is pertinent to regularise their appointments
under section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The Company has received notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing their
candidature to act as Director.

Except, Mr. Sarit Chopra (DIN: 06639274), Ms. Suruchi Nangia (having DIN: 07901622) and
Mr. Chong Kah Khen (DIN: 10485536), none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their
relatives is concerned or interested in this resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set forth in Item no. 5, 6 and 7 of
the Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No. 8

To have required composition of Board of Directors, pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 177
and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to appoint one more Independent
Director.

Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji has been appointed as an Additional Director (Independent Category) on
the Board of the Company. Further, based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors by way of a circular resolution on September
12, 2024. Mr. Virat Diwanji was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent category) to
hold office upto the period of this AGM, as per provisions of section 161 (1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

The brief profile of Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji is as given below:

S. No. Particulars Details
1 Full Name Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji
2. Date of Birth July 17, 1963
3. Education Qualifications BE (Mechanical) & MBA
4 Relevant Background and | Worked With Kotak Mahindra Group for about 30
Experience years in managing Retail / Consumer Businesses

cutting across Asset and Liabilities. He has played a
key role in Kotak’s Joint Ventures with Ford Credit
International in its car finance business and eventually
rose to the position of Managing Director at Ford Credit

India.
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(Formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
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S. No. Particulars Details

As a Head of the SBU/Company h has successfully
executed strategies which drive productivity, efficiency
and profitability resulting in long term value creation
for all stakeholders. The cornerstone of success for him
has been his ability to lead the team with result oriented
execution tactics using market/product knowledge
coupled with total focus on process, governance and
integrity.

He has been a regular visitor to leading management
institutes (SPJMR, JBIMS, IIM-Ranchi) and several
Retail Banking conferences, within India and Overseas,
for delivering lectures covering various aspects of
Consumer Banking.

In the early stages of his career he has been with
Management Consultancy division of A.F Ferguson &
Co working on several assignments covering private
and Public sector companies in India and overseas
covering areas like Finance and accounting, HR,
Production, Sales and Marketing, Systems Design and
MIS.

5. Permanent Address B-173/174, Kalpataru Avana, Dr. S S Rao Road, Near
Animal Hospital, Parel, MUMBAI 400 012

Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji is eligible for appointment as the independent Director on the Board of the
Company. Mr. Virat Sunil Diwanji has the relevant experience and qualification and further suitable
for appointment as an independent director on the Board of the Company, as detailed above. He has
further furnished the relevant declarations under the Companies Act, 2013, NBFC Scale Based
regulations and also the fit and proper declarations in accordance with the RBI circulars.

The Company has further received a notice under section 160 in this regard proposing his appointment
on the Board of the Company.

Except Mr. Virat, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives is concerned or
interested in this resolution.

Tyger Capital Put Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)

Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:

Fax +9122 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, Adani House,
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The Board is of the view that the Company would benefit from the rich and varied experience of
Mr. Virat and accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in Item no. 8 of the Notice
for approval of the Members.

Place: Mumbai

Date: - September 27, 2024

Tyger Capital Put Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)

Tel +9122 62411200

Fax +81 22 2652 0650
contact@tyger.in
www.tyger.in

CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692

Corporate Office:
One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5,

10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051,
Maharashtrag, India

By order of the Board
For Tyger Capital Private Limited

Sd/-

Balan Santosh Parthasarathy

Company Secretary & Compliance officer
Mem No.: A49602

Registered Office:
Adani House,

Navrangpurg, Josh Aapka
Ahmedabad 380 009, saath Humara

Gujarat, India
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
DOpinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Adani Capital Private Limited {"the
Company"), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the Standalone Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information {“the Standalone Financial Staterment”},

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended {“the
Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, (ind A%} and other accounting principles generaily accepted in india, of the Standzione state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its Standalone profit including Standalone Other Comprehensive
income, its Standalone Cash Flows and the Standaione Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(5As) specified under section 143{10) of the Campanies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements saction of
our report, We are independent of the Cempany in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the
Standalene financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standaiane Financial Staternents.

Key Audit Matters

Key gudit matters are those matters that in our professionz! judgment, were of most significahce in our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide & separate opinion on these matters, For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context,

We have determined the matters described belew to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters, Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Standafone Financial Statements. The results of our audit pracedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Financial
Statements.
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Key audit matters

1 How our audit addressed the key audit matter

{a) Impairment of loan assets as at balance sheet date {expected credit losses)
As described in note 54.1 of the Standalone Financial Statements

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments {"Ind AS 109")
requires the Company to provide for impairment of
its loan assets using the expected credit loss {ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company’s loans and
advances. In this process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the management for:

a] Defining Staging of loans (i.e. classification in
'signfficant increase in credit risk' ("SICR") and
'default’ categories);

b) Grouping of borrowers based on hamogeneity
by using appropriate statistical techniques;

¢} Estimation of behavioural life;

d) Estimation of losses for loan products with no /
minimal historical default; and

e} Management overlay for macro-ecoenomic

factors and estimation of their impact an the
credit quality.
In the view of such high degrece of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is
identified as key audit matter.

Gur audit procedures included the foilowing:
» FEvaluated

the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of foan assets and assessed compliance with
the policies in terms of ind AS 109 and with the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Reserve Bank of India guidefines issued on March 13, 2020,
Evaluated the management estimates by understanding
the process of ECL estimation and related assumptions and
tested the controis around data extraction and validation
Assessed the criteria and tested sample for staging of loans
based on their past-due status and to evaluate compliance
with requirement of Ind AS 109.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and
underlying computation. Tested the input data used for
determining the Probabifity of default and loss given
default rates and agreed the data with the underlying
books of account and records.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL
provision perfarmed by the Company.

Read and assessed adequacy of the disclosures included in
the Standalone financial statements in respect of ECL with
the requirements of Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure {"Ind AS 107"} and Ind AS 109,

(b) nformatien technology {'IT') systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of
the Company are fundamentally reliant on IT
systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
include IT governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access to
programs and data and {T operatians, are required to
be designed and to operate effectively to ensure
appropriate financial reporting

Therefore, due 1o the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT enviranment, the assessment of
the general IT controls and the application controls
specific to the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be a key audit
matter,

Our audit procedures, with support from T specialists,
inciuded the following:
* Tested the design and operating effectiveness of IT access

controis over the information systems that are critical to
financial reporting.

Tested IT general controls (such as logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls). This
inciuded testing that requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorised.

Tested the Company's periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for appropriate
approval and authorisation.

In addition to the above, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain appiication controls
{automated and 1T dependent manual contrals) that were
considered as key internal controls over financiat reporting.
Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate procedures,
We have relied on SOC-2 type il report provided by vendor
for EMS Finone to ensure compliance with audit trail. |
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Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ather information. The other infarmation com prises the
Board’s Report {“other information”}, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's
report thereon,

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any forem of assurance conclusion thereon.

I connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. if, based on the work we have performad, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that facl. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(S) of the Companies Act,
2013 {"the Act”j with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive income, Cash Flows and
Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptad in india,
including the accounting Standards f{ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting recards in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriste
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
imptementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, refevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Standalone Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. '

In preparing the Standatone Financial Staterents, managemeant is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unfess management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease aperations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsibie for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 5tandalone Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high fevel of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We alsc!

s identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resyiting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

=  Obtain an understanding of internal contro! refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3}ii} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adeguate internaf financial controls
systemn with reference to Standalone Financial Statement in place and the aperating effectiveness of such
cantrols,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasanableness of accounting estimates
and retated disclosures made by management.

»  Cencfude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
cenditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a materiat uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the refated disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, f such disclosures are inadequate, to
medify our opinfon. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
Boing concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the Standaione Financial Statements, including
the disclosures and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underiying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

We alsc provide those charged with gevernance with a statement that we have comptlied with relevant ethicat
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatienships and other matters that
may reasenably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standatone Financial Statements for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter shouid not be communicated in our report because of the adverse conseguences of deing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

¢
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Reporti on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1. As reguired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Crder, 2020 {"the Grder”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information ang explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{by  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by iaw have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from ottr exarnination of those books;

{c}  The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Staterment of Profit and Loss including the Standatone
Statement of Other Comprehensive income, and the Standatone Statement of Cash Flow and
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

{d}  Inouropinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {indian Accounting Standards)
Rules,2015, as amended;

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directars, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed a3 a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internat financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to Standalone Financial Statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2”;

{g} In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year endad March 31,
2024;

th}  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position- Refer note
42 to the Standalone Financial Statements

il The Company did not have any iong- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

Hi.  There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

&

A Hoor, Iconic Tower, L Estatq, 95 Ganpatiav Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai - 306013, india
o+ 91 22 4474 3400

LLP Registration MO, AA-E372
MNafda - Mew Delhi Gurugrom - Musshod - Sengalury - Chennal - Pune - Dehradun




NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMNTS

fv. {2} The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and bellef, as disclosed
in the note 65.8 to the Standslone financial statements, during the year no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premiurm or any other
saurces or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the iike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the nate 65.8 to the Standalone financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities {"Funding Parties”}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or
on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficlaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

{c} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii} of Rule 11{e) contain any material
misstatement,

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit traif {edit
log} facitity and the same has operated throughout the year for ali relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trait feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3 (1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from Aprit 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11{g} of the Companies {Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirermnents for record retention is not appticable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024,

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
“FRN No, 002391C/MN500069

Membership No.: 801788
UDIN: 24601 788BKFMVYE 347

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 289, 2024
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“ANNEXURE 1" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADANt CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
independent Auditor’s Report]

{i] {a}{A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and the situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a}{B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

{o) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and are verified by the management once in a three year. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets and no discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c} There is no immovabie property {other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the tease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iY{c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{d} The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use assets}
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024,

{e} According to information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or
are pending sgainst the Compeny for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

{i}  {a} The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii}{a} of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.,

{b} As disclosed in note 554 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capitat {imits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements
filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

{tiit  (a) The Cempany's principal business is to give loans accordingly, Clause 3fiiij{a} of the Order is not
appHcable to the Company.

{b} During the year the investments made, guarantess provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all ioans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees to
Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the
Company's interest,

{c} in respect of loans granted to Companies, firms, Limited Lizbility Partnerships or any other
parties, the schedule of repayment of pringipal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayment or receipts are regular except in the following cases:
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Name of the Entity / Loan | Amount Due date . Extent of delay | Remarks,
product © | fin Rs. miiliion} ' 1§ {in days) if any
Tractor and commercial 1.661.16 | Various due More than gne -

vehicle [oans dates day

Business and cther retail 1,866.05 | Various due More than one -

foans dates day

{d} The foliowing amounts are overdua for mere than ninety days from Companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties to whom loan has been granted, and reasanable steps
have been taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

No. of cases | Principal overdue {In { Interest overdue | Total Overdue {in | Remarks, L
Rs millions) {in Rs millions) Rs millions) any
2,083 £81.73 - 6E1.73 -

{e)} The Company's principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3{iij(e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{f) According to infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any [oans
or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or pericd of repayment to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause 2{76) of Companies Act,
2013,

{ivi  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not advanced ioans to directors / ta a Company in which the
director is interested to which provision of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence
not commented upon. The Company is registered as Non- 8anking Financial Company with the
Reserve Bank of india. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186, except subsection {1} of Sectign
186, of the Act are not applicable to the Company. The Cempany has made investments which is
In compliance of subsection {1} of section 1B6 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{v}  The Company has nejther accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicabie, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3{v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi}  The Company is not in the husiness of sale of any goods or provision of such sarvices as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{vi} of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

{vii} (2} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in depositing
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, income-tax, employee state insurance corporation and other statutory dues applicable to it.
The provisions relating to duty of customs, sales-tax, duty of excise and value added tax are
currently not applicable to Campany. According to the information and expianations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

-7
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{b} According to the informaticn and explanation given to us, there are ng dues of income tax,
empioyee’s state insurance, goods and service tax end cess which have not been deposited on
actount of any dispute. The provision relating to sales- tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty
and value-added tax are currently not applicahis to the Company.

{viii} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or
disclesed any transaction, previously unrecorded In the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year, Accordingly, the reguirement to report
on clause 3{vili) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{fix}  {a} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defauited in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon te any lender,

{b} The Company has not been declared wilful defauiter by any bank or financiat institution or
government or any government authority,

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for tong-term purposes by the Company.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Standalone financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken
funds from any entity or persans cn account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary,

{f} According to the information and explanations given to us and precedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary.

{x) (a}in cur opinicn and accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any money during the year by way of initiaf public offer / further public offer {including
debt instrumenits) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3{x}{a} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{b} The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the preferentiat allotment of shares during the year. The funds raised, have been used
for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

{xi}  {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company has heen noticed or reported during the year.

(b} During the year, no report under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by a secratarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

{c} As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by
the company during the year,
]
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{xii} The Company is not s Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clauses 3{xii}{a), (b) and {c] of the Order is not appiicable to the
Company.

{xiif} Acrording to the information and explanations are giver to us, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicabie
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standaiore Financial Staterments, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) {a} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit
systerm commensuraie with the size and nature of its business.

(b} The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under sudit have been considered by us.

{xv} According to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
nen-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence the
requirement to report on clause 3{xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi} {a} According to the Information and expianations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us, the Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of indiz Act,
1934,

{b) The Company has not cenducted any Non-Banking Financial without obtaining a valid
Certificate of Registration {CoR} from the Reserve Bank of india as per the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934,

{c} The Company is not a Core investment Company as defined in the regutations made by the
Reserve Bank of {ndia. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvil{c} of the Order is
not applicable to the Campany.

{d} According to the Information and explanaticns given to us, there is no Core Investment
Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 30wi){d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

{(xvil} The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding
financial year respectively,

{xvili} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditars during the year and accordingfy, the
requirement to report on Clause 3{xviii) of the Grder is not applicable to the Company.

{xix} On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 65.11 to the Standalone Financial Statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to ocur attention, which causes ys to belisve that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the bg_{anoe shezet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
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future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that ali tiabilities
falling due within a pericd of one year from the halance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when thay fall due.

txx} {a}In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Scheduie VIt of the Companies Act {the Act), in compliance
with second proviso to sub section {5§ of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in
note 37 to the Standalone Financial Staternents.

(b} There are no unspent amaounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to @ speciat account in compliarnce of provision of sub section {6} of saction 135 of
Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 37 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

for Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountgnts
500069

_ Spreet Singh Bedi
e Partner

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 24601 78BBKFMYY5347

Place; Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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“ANNEXURE 2” TO THE INDEFENDENT AUDITQOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2 {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ in the
independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited on the
Standaione Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Saction 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act")

Ta
The Member of
Adani Capital Private Limitad

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement of Adani Capital Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Managemaent’s Responisibifity for Internal Financial Controls

The Cempany’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on internal contral over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india. These responsibifities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Rasponsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion an the Company's internai financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls, hoth
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controis system over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financia! Statement and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Standatone Financial Statement included cbtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evatuating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control bhased on the assessed risk. The procedures sefected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or crror, \/
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to
Standalone Financial Statement.

Maaning of Internal Financial Comtrols Over Financial Reporting

A company's internat financial control over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial
Statement is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to Standalone Financial Statement includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally aceepted
accounting principies, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Standaione Financiaf Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Standalone Financial Statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, matarial misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controfs over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financia! control over financial
reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statement may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system aver
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal controf over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internat
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
No. 002391C/N500069

Singh Bedi

artner

Membership No.; 601788
UDIN: 24601 788BKFMVYS347

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
At amounts it 2 fir Mitiions wriess othenwise sieted)

ASZETS

Finangial assets

fa)  Cash andcash equivalents 7 Tig117 790.34
(b} Bank balances other than cash and cash aquivalants ] 22825 394,20
fc] Receablas
{1} Trade receivables 3 16.26 10,69
[l Exther recevables B -
{4} Lomns 10 332,115.01 26,901,15
fel  Investments 11 3,303.10 303,55
[l Otherflnancial assats 12 1,446.28 1,145 80
45,550.07 242,635.73
Ror-financial assets
[a]  Current tzx assets (nat) 13 33.47 -
{b)  Property, plant and equipment 15 391,32 242.79
{¢] Intangible assets under development 16 25,22 33.1%
{d)  Other intangille assets 1} 156.52 137.03
(=} Other non-financial assets 18 plek i ] 101.74
815.0% 554.71
TOTAL ASSETS 46,305.12 30,200.49
LIABILITIES AND £QUITY
LIABLLITIES
Financial Eabilities
[al  Payahles 19
{IfTrade payahbius
(i} total outstanding duss of micro enterprises and small enterprises 7.da9 -
[ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprlses 125.28 11257

and small epterprisas
(It Other payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro erterprizes and small anterprisas - -
[iE} total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises 2244 2177

and smaif entesprises
(b  Bebt securities 20 7.309.83 1,744.08
{c]  Bomowings tother than debt securities) 21 20,067.12 20,281.08
[d) Subsrdinated Habilities Fod 57%.26 576,16
[}  Other financial liabilities 23 1,057.73 739.50
29,249.15 23,490.56

Non-finandial liabifities

[a}  Current tax liabilities {net] 4 - 9.7
[b} Provisions 25 63,90 510
(e} Deferrediax liabilties {net) 14 221.77 203,61
[} Other nor-finansial labilitins 28 184,74 143,19
470.41 437.67
EQUITY

[al  Equity share capital 7 LA 23209
bl  Other equity 2 16,257.54 5,048.72
16,645.56 6,281 81
TUTAL LIABILETIES AND EQUITY 46,365.12 30,200.44

The acesmparying notes form anintegral part of the standalone finanzial statements 1-568

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even dake
For Mangia B Ca, LLP far and an behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani (apital Private Limited
E CIME. UGSQBUGJZOI?TC093692

Vo ’ Sl (r [\ *F

M urav Gupta Ms. Suruchi Nangia

ariner Manoging Diveclat & CEQ Directar
Marmbership Mo 601728 DIN: 216651 DIN- 07501622 .
o
v\‘\_’@%ﬁ M
Mr. wiFa) $hah Mr. Jitendra Chaturyedi
Chief Finaneia! dfficer Company Secretary

Membership Me: PAS15E

Place: Murmba Flace: Murribal
Date: May 29, 2024 Date; May 2%, 2004




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

fAff amounts in Tin Millions wunfess otherwise stated]

Ravenue From operations

(i} Interest income 29 5,437.85 4,242.80
[@y  Met gain on fair value changes 30 55.3% 5318
{iit] Met gain on derecognition of financial instrurnents under amortised cost category 56 204.66 8§30.08
{1+ Totzl from operation 5,697.86 5,135.06
(M) Otherincome 31 94.91 441.34
(1} Tetalincome {1+ 12) 5,792.77 5.175.40
Expenses
{i] Finance costs 32 2,515.70 1.885.57
(il Impairment on financial instruments 33 503.11 304,12
[Hi] Employee benefits expenses 24 1,383.15 1,200.845
[iv] Depreciation, amertization and impairment 35 103.88 9219
{vl Others expensas 36 481,23 414.91
{IV) Total enpenses 4,991.17 3,957.65
V) Profit before tax {ill - IV} 801.60 1,217.75
¥} Tax Expense:
- Current Tax 40 185,80 123.90
- Deferred Tax 40 - 19.94 187.06
(V] Profit for the period (V-Vi} T 595,86 906.79

(V') Other comprehensive intome
{i} items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

{a) Remeasurements gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 172,10 [2.29)
(i) iIncome tax relating to items that will ot be reclassified to profit of loss 1.79 0.58
Uther comprehensiva incoma [/ {lass) {Net of tax) {5.31} {171}
(I} Total comprehensive income for the pericd (VH + VI 53155 905.08
{X] Earnings per equity share {Face Value Rs 10 per share} 41
- Basic {Rs.) 2543 29.45
- Diluted {Rs.) 25.12 38.97
The accempanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statemments E-b68

Thus is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Nengia & Lo, LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aharterad Accountarits Adani Capital Private Limited
fCAl Firm Registr;qion Humber: UOZ}Q&C{’NSUDOBB CIN: UBR390GI2016FTCO93692

spreet Sir;& Bedi Ms. Suruchi Nangia

Partner Director
Membership No: 601788 DIN: 01665109 DIN: 07501622
. “}iﬁéﬂ "
Wi /./
Mr. Vﬁ:l Shah M. Jitendra Chaturvedi
Chief Mingncial Officer Company Secretary
Mernbership Na: A45158
Flace: Mumnbai Place: Murntsai

Date: May 29, 2024 Dare: May 29, 2024



ADAN| CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AN amounts in ¥ in Miflions unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flow operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amartization and impairment
impairment of financial instrument

interest on lease {iability

Interest on income tax refund

Excess provision written back

Profit on sale of mutual funds

Share based payment to employees

Net gain an derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Frofit on sale of property, ptant and equipment
Interest income

Finance Cost

Cash inflow from interest
Cash outflow from finance cost

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in Working Capital

Decrease / (increase) in Trade receivable

Decrease f (increase) in Loans

Decrease / {Increase] in Other financial assets
Decrease / {Incraase) in Other non-financial assets
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade payabies

[Decrease) / Increase in COther financiad Hiabulities
(Decrease) f Increase im Provisions

(Decrease) f Increase in Other non-financial liabilities
Net cash generated from / {used in) operation
Refund / [Payment] of taxes (net)

Net cash generated from / [used in) operating activities (A}

&, Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equigment

Proceeds from sale of property, gtant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

{Purchase)/sale of capital work-in-prograss

{Purchase)/sale of intangible assets under development
investrment in bank deposits with original maturity greater than three months {Net}
Purchase of investments in equity shares

Purchase of investments in equity shares of subsidiary company
Purchase of investments in Security Recefpis

Redemption of investments in Security Receipis

Purchase of investments in mutual funds

Sale of investments in mutuwal funds

Net cash genarated from [ {used in) investing activities (B)

801.60 1,217.75
103.88 92.19
218.99 145,17
20.77 20.45
. {1.29)
{9.78) [7.15)
[55.35) {53.18)
7.87 5.24
{204.68) {839.08}
f2.42) {2.54}
(5,437.85) {4,242.80}
2,494.93 1,865.13
5,261.41 3,933.65
{2,476.25) {1,937.41)
723.13 196.13
{5.33} 12.88)
{5,284, 26} {7.950.46)
{9871} 14.26
(106.18} {34.08)
15.08 142,67
24265 {116.1€)
{11208 27.83
3555 71.89
{4,485.27) {7,650.80)
{230.98) {63.14}
{4,720.25) (7,713.54)
{48.30} {39.77)
3.15 3.36
{42.30} 134.71)
- D18
7.93 {2.77)
{494.05} 387.41
- {239.65}
{3.482.70) -
- {214.25)
73.15 60.40
{30,320.00) {30,780.00}
30,375.35 30,332.18
{3,927.77) 466.33




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al emaunts in T in Milons uptess orherwise stated)

€. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares {Including securities premiumj 3,255.69 250.00
Share issue expenses {106.10) {0.08)
Proceeds fram Issue of Warrants 750.00 -

Settlement of share based payments [174.26) -

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilitias {60.78) {34.33)
Payment of interest on lease liabilities {20.77) {20.45)
tssue of debt securities £,577.42 1,215.21
Repaymant of debt securities {2,309.19) {1,967.60)
issue of subordinated liabilities - 250.00
Proceeds from borrowing [other than debt securities & subordinated liabilities) 11,490.91 11,214.22
Repayment of borrowing (other than debt securities & subordinated liabikties) {11,704.07) {7,005.R2)
Net cash generated from / {used in} financing activities (C} 15,138.85 3,901.15
Net Increase / [Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C} 6,450.83 {3,346.46})
Add: Cash and Cash Equivatents at the beginning of year 790.34 4,136.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 7,281.17 790.34

Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 23.55 1822

Balances with banks 4,005.13 77212

Fixed deposit with bank {Original maturity less than 3 months) 3,252.49 -
728117 740,34

The above Stondalone Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method set oul in ind AS 7 - Staternent of Cash Flow.

For disclosures relating to changes in liabifities arising from financing activities, refer Note 38

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow referred tc in cur report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Capital Frivate Limited
ﬁ?l Firm Registration Number: gB2391C/NSO0068 CIM: UBS990GI2016PTCOI3692

}___—,-—’7
« g L
Singh Bed: Ms._ Suruchi Nangia i
Manoging Director & CEG Direcrar
embership No: 601788 OIN: 01669109 DIM: 07901622
““h \(fﬁ""
Mr. Vifal Shah Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Mo A45158
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Pate: May 29, 2024 Date: May 29, 2024



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

fAll pmountsin £ in Millions unfess otherwise stated|

A Equity Shase Capital

Particulars - ¢ S RsEt L f U Asat
R L T March31,2024 | - March31,2023
Balance at the beginning of the reporting pertod 23208 227.55
Changes in equity share capital due to priar period erers - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 23209 22755
Changes in aquity share capital fRefer Note 27 {A) for additienol detoils) 15543 454
Ealance ot the end of the reporting period 383.02 23209
8. Other equity

ctildrs S “Rdser b Seephat- 0 :!\_.Hhefr’_’éoéhef:d__agﬁkﬁt L

- oy - - : ——

Balance at ;‘l@ril 1, 2023 4,574.21 66,29 i72.95 - 79.34 4,852.7%
Profit for the year - - a0E 73 - - 506.79
Premium on issue of equity shares 245,45 - - - - 245.45
Amounts utillsed towards share |ssue expenses {008} - - - - jo.08)
Share based payment expense - - - - 5.48 6.48
Hhber eomprabensive Incoma far the year - . [1.71) - - L7y
Total comprehensive income for the year fnet of tax) 245.37 . 905.08 - 6.48 1,156.93
Transfer { utilisations
Transferrad to special reserva from ratained sarnings - 181 36 [181.36) - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 4,619.58 247,65 896.67 - 85.82 5,048.72
Profit for the year - - 505,86 - 595.86
Premiem on issue of equity shares 9,139.76 - - - 9.139.76
Share based payment axpanse - - - 787 187
Share warrants [25% subscription money received) - v - 75000 - 750.00
Other comprehensive incame for the yoar . {5.31) - {5.31)
Tatal comprehensive income for the year |net of taz) 9,139.76 - 590.55 750.00 r.ar 10.488.18
Transfer  utiisathons
settlernant of share based payment plan - - [80.57) - {2369} {174.26}
Teansfarred to special raserva from ratained earnings - 118.17 1118.17} - - -
Amounts utilised towards share issue expenses {106, 10] - - - - £106.10)
Balance at March 31, 2024 13,853.24 36683 1,237.48 750.00 - 16.357.54
This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Eguity referred to in our report of even date
For Nangia & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chactered Accountants Adani Capital Private Lintited

Firm Begistration Numbey: UD]%@IEHNSODUGS CIN: UE5990G) 2016FTCOI2652

* A
Mr. Gaurav Gupta - M, Surychi Nangia
Moneging Rirecigf & CEQ Director

ermbership No: 6DE785 DIN: D1669100" Diy: 07901622 .
o W““: N
war. Girghshah M7 Jitendra Chaturvedi
Chief Fingncial Officer Campany secretory
Mambership No: 445158
Place: Mumkbai Place: Mumbai .

Date: May 29, 2024 Date: May 29, 2024




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Material Accounting Policies:

1

Corporate Information:
Adani Capital Private Limited (the ‘Company’) having CIN: U65990G)2016PTC093692 was incorporated
in ndia on September 12, 2016 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act’).

The Campany is engaged in the business of providing foans.

The Company holds a Certificate of Registration (CoR) as Non-Banking Financiat Institution, without
accepting public deposits, registered with the Reserve Bank of india {“RB{”} under secticn 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934. The Company received its certificate of registration as a non-banking
finance Company on lanuary &, 2017 having registration number B.01.00567. The debt securities of the
Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE} in India.

The Registered office of the company is Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat - 380009.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved
for issue in accordance with the resclution passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May
29, 2024,

Basis of Preparation:

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS} notified under the Campanies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
{as amended from time to time).

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments such as, other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at
fair value. The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are
rounded tg the nearest Millians, except when otherwise indicated. The standalone financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of standalone financial statements reguires the use of certain accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disciosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note & - Significant
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Statement of Compliance:

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

Presentation of standalone financial statements:

The standalone financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule It (Civision I of the
Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs {MCA).
Fimancial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an
uncanditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a
future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis. '
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4.1 Functional and presentation currency:

The standatone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR} which is also its functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest miflion, except when otherwise indicated.

5. Material accounting policies:
5.1 Revenue from operations:
5.2.1 Recognition of interest income:

Interest income is recoghised by applying the Effective Interest Rate {EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than ¢redit-impaired assets and financial assets
classified as measured at FVTPL.

The EiR in case of a financial asset is computed

s As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

* By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating
the cash flows

* Including all fees received/paid between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and ail other premiums or
discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest
income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amaunt of the assets.

5.1.2 Income from direct assignment / co-lending:

Gains arising out of direct assignment / co-lending transactions comgrise the difference
between the interest on the foan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct
assignment / co-lending is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess
interest spread {EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the
transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded
upfront in the standalone statement of profit and toss. Any subsequent changes in the ElS is
recognised with the corresponding adjustment ta the carrying amount of the assets.

The Company recagnises either a servicing asset or a servicing liahility for servicing contract.
if the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing activities, a servicing asset is recognised with a corresponding credit in Standalone
statement of profit and loss. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the
Company adequately for perfarming the servicing activities, a servicing liability for the
servicing obligation is recognised with a corresponding charge to Standalone statement of
profit and loss. SRS
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5.1.3

5.1.4

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognized

a. When the right to receive the payment is established,

b. it is probable that the econamic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity and

c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

Fees and Commissien income:

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation, at fair value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step
model as set out below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A cantract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services ta a customer, excluding amounts coliected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance ohligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

5.2 Financial instruments:

5.2.1

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of lcans and borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regutar way trades: purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally estabiished
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. Loans are recognised when funds are
transferred to the customers’ account. The Company recognises borrowings when funds are
available for utilisation to the Company. BT
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52.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liability are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and fimancial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through
profit & loss {FYTPL)}, are added to or subtracted from the fair vatue of financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financiai liabilities at FVTPL are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit or loss:

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and
the fair value is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference hetween the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair vatue is based on models
for which some of the inputs are not cbservable, the difference between the transaction
price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or foss when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely for the payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount gutstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOC!)

A financial asset is measured at FYTOC! if it is held within business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and seiling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial assets that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Financial Assets at fair value through profit & loss {FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FYTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.
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5.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

53.1

53.2

533

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company dlassifies financial assets as held for trading when they have heen purchased
or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and
measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain
on fair value changes.

Debt securities and other horrowed funds:

The company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amartised cost is cafculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Here debt securities and other borrowed funds also include non - convertible debenture.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL on initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial labilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatority
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 108, Management only designates an
instrument at FYTPL upon initial recegnition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

s The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis, or

« The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, or

« The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, untess they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would ctherwise be required by the contract,
or it is clear with little or no anatysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative{s} is prohibited

Financial assets and financia! liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements
in fair value of liabilities designated at FYTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit
risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through COCt and do
not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated
at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into
account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of
tnstrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FYTPL is
recorded using contractual interest rate. i
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534

535

Loan commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Company is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. Currentlty Company has not recognised any ECL in respect of undrawn
commitment

Financial liabilities and equity instrements: Financial instruments issued by the Company
are classified as either financial fiabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Adl the financial liahilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments and
financial guarantees.

5.4 Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. The company didn't reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and
previous period.

5.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:

5.5.1

Derecognition of financial asset:

Afinanciat asset (or, where appiicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if and only if; either

* The Company has transferred the rights to recesive cash flows from the financial asset
or

« It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but
assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay
to third party under ‘pass through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a Financial asset {the 'criginal asset’}, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the 'eventual
recipients’}, when all of the foilowing conditions are met:

« The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amounts from the criginal asset, excluding short-term
advances with the right to full recovery of the amount Ient plus accrued inferest at
market rates, ' T
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5.2

5.6 Impairment of financial assets:

= The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash eguivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of reguired remittance to the eventuai
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
= The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

« The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers controi to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practicat ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able 1o
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer,

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified as Stage
1 for ECL measurement purposes, uniess the new financial asset is deemed to be purchased
or originated credit impatred (PQCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial ahilities:

A Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of' a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial fiability and the consideration paid, including maodified
contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised standalone
statement of profit and loss.

Overview of ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets
not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as ‘Financial
instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under {nd AS 109.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity
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expects to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount
and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than
when contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impatrment loss allowance based on lifetime ECks at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment |oss allowance. However, if receivables contain a significant financing component, the
Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general
approach to measure ECL.

General Approach

The £CL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise aver the life of the asset {the
lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit oss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent
the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the repaorting date."

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month £CLs are calculated on a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has grouped its loans into
corporate loans, business loans given to MSMEs (MSME), home loans, commercial vehicle loans and
supply chain finance.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower
level.

Based on the above, the Company categarises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stagel

All exposures where there has not heen a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days
default under this category. For these assets, 12-month ECL {resuiting from default events possible
within 12 months from reporting date} are recognized.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. Assets which are 30 Days Past Due and less
than 9€ Days Past Due are considered as significant increase in credit risk, For these assets {ifetime
ECL are recognized.
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Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For
exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (het of Expected Credit Loss)
rather than the gross carrying amount. 30 Bays Past Due is considered as default for classifying a
financial instrument as credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets

"At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

» Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

s A breach of contract such as a defauit or past due event;

» The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would
not consider otherwise;

+ it is becoming probable that the horrower wili enter bankruptcy or other financial
rearganization; or

* The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.”

The calculation of ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
defauit may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously derecognized and is still in the portfolic. In the absence of sufficient history of default, the
company has primarily sourced the PDs from externzl default reports published by various rating
agencies.

Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Defauft (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future defauit date. taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal
and interest, whether scheduted by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss given Default

The Loss Given Default {LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default oceurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractuai cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed
as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is computed in the following manner:

a} In case of Commercial vehicle and Farm Equipments portfolio the LGD percentage is
determined based on the recovery experience from closed cases.

b} Incase of loans to MSME Sector and term loans to Corporate customers the LGD percentage
is determined based on the estimated value of recovery from the sale of collaterai after
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considering reasonable haircuts as determined appropriate by the management where latest
fair value of collateral is not available with the management.

c) In case of other portfolios proxy LGD percentage as prescribed by the regulatory authority
{FIRB Approachj} is considered.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage
2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Company considered rebuttable presumption that credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initiat recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

5.7 Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes invarious forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, vehicles,
real estate, etc. Coliaterai, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.
However, the fair value of coliateral affects the calculation of ECLs. The collateral are assessed at
time of inception and are being reassessed as and when required.

5.8 Coliateral repossessed:

In its normai course of business whenever default occurs in Farm / Commercial Vehicle Business, the
Company may take possession of underlying assets in its retail portfolio and generally disposes such
assets through auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/obligors. The Company generally does not use the assets repossessed for the internat
operations. ECL on the underlying loans in respect of which collaterals have been repossessed and
not sold is provided as under.

Repo Ageing LGD %

< 90 days LGD as per normal ECL model

> 90 days & «= 180 days | 1.2x of LGD applicable for product
> 180 days & <= 365 days | 1.5x of LGD applicable for product
> 365 days 2x of LGD applicable for product

As a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance
sheet as it does not meet the recognition criteria.

5.9 Write-offs:

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs,
Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.
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5.10 Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either,

» [n the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of refevant abservabie inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived,
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as summarised
below:

Level 1 financial instruments

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume
and liquidity of the identicat assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price
queates available on the batance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly abservable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such
inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or kabilities in active markets, guoted prices for
identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. in addition, adjustments may
be reguired for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it refates to items that
are comparable to the vatued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unebservable
inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as
Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments

Those that inctude one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabifities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company periodically reviews its valuation technigues including the adopted methodologies and
model calibrations. Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk
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associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the
individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-
collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis
and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

5.11 Leases:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
cortract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company appiies a single recognition and measurement approach for ali leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities representing
obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

5.11.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

5.11.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the fease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present vatue of iease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments {including in-substance fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless
they are incurred to produce inventories} in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

in calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinabie. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the iease payments made. in addition, the carrying amount
of iease liabiities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
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5.12

5.13

5.14

to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Company’s lease Habilities are included in Other Financial Liabilities.

B.11.3 Short-term ieases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases {i.e., those
feases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and de not contain
a purchase option). it aiso applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity sharehoiders for the
year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
potentiat equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functionat currency
of the Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Employee benefit expenses:
5.14.1 Short-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution schemes

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services
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5.14.2

5.14.3

5.14.4

Post-employment benefits:

Defined benefit schemes - Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calcutated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such berefit plan
is determined hased on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and fosses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or foss in subsequent periods.

Other tong-term employee banefits:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the standalene statement of profit and loss and corresponding
liability on such non-vesting accumuiated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an
independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Employee share-based payments:

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees providing services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination
of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments transactions are set out in Note
57.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Standalone statement of profit and loss such that the cumutative expenses
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based
Payments Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding opticns is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

If a grant of equity instruments is cancelled or settled during the vesting period {other than
a grant cancelled by forfeiture when the vesting conditions are not satisfied):
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a. the company shafl account for the cancellation or settiement as an acceleration of
vesting and shall therefare recognise immediately the amount that otherwise would
have been recognised for services received aver the remainder of the vesting period.

b. any payment made to the employee on the cancetlation or settlement of the grant shall
be accounted for as the repurchase of an equity interest, i.e. as a deduction from
equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the repurchase date. Any such excess shall be
recognised as an expense.

5.15 Property, plant and equipment:

All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and incidental expenses directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the management.

Changes in the expected usefu! life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accourtted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, as and when they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated
useful life as specified in Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013

As per the requirement of Schedule H of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule Il
for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

TEmatedusetuives
Omceequmem S L - 5 :.V.éar_s. e
Computer Systems — End User Devices 3 years

Computer Systems - Servers & Networks b years

Electrical Installation 10 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office Premises Qn the lease term

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
“sbenefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
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components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of
replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
ptant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amournt of the asset and is recognised in profit or {oss.

5.16 Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.

intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

The usefu! lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangibie asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at feast at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortization
period or methadology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in
the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 10 years based on its estimated useful
life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaount of the asset are recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

5.17 Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based on internaifexternal factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverabie
amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs ta is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
toss and is recagnized in the standalone statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss ne longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed, and the impairment is reversed subject to a maximum carrying value of the
asset before impairment.

5.18 Provisions, other contingent liahilities and contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed
as a contingent liability. Contingent labilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligaticn
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5.19

arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Claims against the Company, where the possihility of any outflow of resources in settlement is
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the standalone financial statements since this may result in
the recognition of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is
virtually certain, then the related assetis not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

5.19.1

5.19.2

Current tax:

Current tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively, The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicahble tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liahifity arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for alf deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utitised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset retating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit and loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaiiable to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

Deferred tax relating tc items recognised outside profit and lass is recognised outside profit
and loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxabte entity and the same tax authority.

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:
Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

= When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Securities issue expenses:

Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue of Share capital are adjusted against Securities
premium reserve.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities aver which the group has control. The Company controls an entity when
the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement with the entity and
has the ahility to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost fess impairment if any in the standatone financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
ariginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management,

Cash-flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated. LT
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6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting pericd. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future
periods are affected. Afthough these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

In particuiar, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financiai statements is included in the foliowing notes:

6.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:
6.1.1 Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the salely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI} and the business model test. The Company determines the business
model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
inctuding how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the gquantumn, the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business
madel for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the
classification of those assets.

6.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilittes within the next financial year, as
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assurmnptions when they occur.

6.2.1 Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardiess of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using ancther valuation technique. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recerded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
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markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {both own
and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

6.2.2 Effective Interest Rate {EIR) Method:

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Mote 5.1, recognises interest income / expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates
at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and
penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature reguires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life cycdle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee
income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.

6.2.3 Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgment,
in particuiar, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral vaftues when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances,

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

= PD calculation includes histarical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

s The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
50 allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the gualitative assessment.

+ The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a coliective basis
s Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

+ Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarigs and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment Jevels and collaterat values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

+ Selection of forward-looking macroeconamic scenarios and their prabability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

¢ The impact of COVID -19 on the global economy and how government, business and
consumer is uncertain This uncertainty is reflected in the Company’s assessment of
impairment allowance on its loans which are subject to a number of management judgement
and estimated. While methodoiogies and assumption applied remains unchanged. Company
has separately incorporated estimates, assumption and judgements specific to the impact of
COVID -19 pandemic. PR
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In terms of the requirements as per RBI notification no. RBIf2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 on lmplementation of Indian
Accounting standard , Non-Banking Financial Cempanies {NBFCs) are required to create an
impairment reserve for any shaortfall in impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 and income
Recognition , Asset Classification and Provisioning {IRACP} norms (including provision cn standard
assets). The impairment allowance under Ind AS 108 made by the company exceeds the total
provision required under {RACP {including standard asset provisioning), as at 31 March 2024 and
accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve,

It is Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

6.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. i any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recaverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amaunt, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

6.2.5 Provision and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

Whan the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
canngt be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Campany takes into account a number of factors inciuding legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates.

6.2.6 Provisions for income Taxes:

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgement on whether tax positions are probabie of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resclved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaiuated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are betieved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

6.2.7 Leases - Estimating the Incremental Borrowing rate:

The Company cannct readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities, The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a simiiar econamic
‘environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which_ requires
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estimation when no cbservable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

6.2.8 Leases - Estimate of lease period

ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-canceliable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasocnably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised.

6.2.9 Share-Based Payments:

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate valuation
model. The Company measures the cost of eguity-settied transactions with Option holders using
Black-Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the aptions on the grant date.

Inputs into the valuation medel, includes assumption such as the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield.

Further details used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
Note 5.14.4.

6.2.10 Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The useful life to depreciate property, plant and equipment is based on technical chsolescence,
nature of assets, estimated usage of the assets, operating conditions of the asset, and manufacturers’
warranties, maintenance and support peried, etc. The charge for the depreciation is derived after
considering the expected residual value at end of the useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed by the management at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Further details about property, plant and equipment are given in Note 15.

6.2.11 Defined henefit plans {gratuity and compensated absences benefits}

The Company’s cbligation on account of gratuwity and compensated absences is determined based cn
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due te the complexities invelved in the valuation
and its fong-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changss is the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the pest-employment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly availlable mortality tables in India. Thase mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are
piven in Note 39, e
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7 Cash and cash equivalents

o eat " Asat
ek el e T L . March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 21355 18.22
Balanrers with banks 4,005.13 772.12
Fixed depasit with bank for orginal maturity less than 3 months {inctuding interest aceruad) 3,252.4% -
Total 72E1.17 79034

8 Bank baiances other than cash and cash eguivalents

Tasar | psat. o)
i v L K AT P L roch 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Long-term deposits with banks (including interest accrued) fRefer note befow) BEB.25 394,20
Total BEE.25 394,20

Note:
ay ™ 457.60 millions {#Y: T Nil} worth of fixed deposit with bank represants First loss dafault guarantee (FLDG) far securitisation fransactions undertaken during

the yaar (Refer Mote 20{b) - Dabt Securitias).
k) T 390,14 milkians (PY: T 390,10 millinns) warth of fived depasit with bank s lien marked against overdraft facilities from various banks.

9 Receivables

I. Trade Receivables

Cuonsidered gaud - Secured

Considered gand - Unsecured BB LLae
Gross trade receivables 16.82 11.49
Less: AHlowance for Expected Credit Lossas {0.56) f0.20}
Total rade recaivables (net of impaim 3 16.26 10.69

& on trade recei

. Reconciliation of impairment

Impairment aflowance as per simplified approach

Opening Balance Q.80 0.32
Add/f{less): On Assers onginated or acguired {net} {0.24) 0A4g
Closing Halance 1.56 0.BD

No traide or ather receivable are dug from directors or other afficers of the compony either severalfy or jointly with any ofher persan. Nor any trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is @ portrer, o direcior or @ member,

b. Trade receivables ageing sthedule

itstanding for foifow
Emanths -

Considered good - Secured
Cansidered good - Unsecured

Gross trade receivables

Less: Allowance for Expected Credin Losses
Total trade receivables [aet of impairment)

TS

- Gubstanding for fal

fods frim. due date of paym

iA%.51 March 31,2023 T T ] Faee
: o L U omonths |- kyear. R NS
Considered good - Secured - - - - - -
Considerad good - Unsecured 486 145 .16 - - i1.49
Gross trade receivables 9.86 146 0.16 - - 11.49
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses {0.20)

Total trade receivablas [net of 3 i ity 16.59




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Alf arounts in Tin Milfions unfess otherwise stated)

10 Loans

sat
; March 31,2023 .
(A} Loans 31,457.67 27,277.47
Inter corporate depasit given to related parties 1,250.00 -
Total - Gross {A) 32,707.67 27,277.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance i {592.66) {376.32)
Total - Net of impairment loss aliowance {A) 32,115.01 26,901.15
(B) (i} Secured by tangible assets 29,872.07 _ 25,549.06
{ii) Unsecured 2,835.60 1,728.40
Tota! - Gross (B) 32,707.67 27,277.47
Less: Impairment loss allowance (552.66) {376.32)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (B} 32,115.01 26,901.15
{C) Loans in india
{i} Public sectors - -
{ii) Others 32,707.67 27,277.47
Total - Gross {C] 32,707.67 27.272.47
Less: Impairment {oss allowance (592.66) {376.32}
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance ([C) 32,115.61 26,301.15

Notes:

1. Loans includes instalment and interest outstanding amounting to X 6.87 Millions {(PY - X 3.94 Millions) in respect of properties
heid for disposal under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002
[SARFAESI].

2. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related
parties {as defined under the Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person that are {a) repayable on
demand or {b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment. I
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

tAlt amounts in T in Millions unless otherwise stoted)

Investments

March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 -
At cost
-investment in Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company
{Unquoted)
13,57,28,744 (As at 31.03.2023 NI} Equity shares of 3,482.70 -
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited of ¥ 10 each
fully paid-up
At fair value through profit & loss
-Investment in Security Receipts {Unquoted) 80.74 153.89
2,04,856 {As at 31.03.2023 2,14,285} Security
Receipts of EARC TRUST 5C - 435 of X 1,000 each
{Face Value as at 31.03.2024 - X 394.12 {As at
31.03.2023-%718.14)]
-investment in Equity Shares of Other Company
{Unquoted)
1,19,235 {As at 31.03.2023 1,19,235) Equity shares of 239.66 239.66
CSC Grameen EStore Private Limited of X 10 each fully
paid-up
Total - Gross {A} 3,803.10 393.55
{i) tnvestments outside india - -
{ii} Investments in India 3,803.10 393,55
Total - Gross (B) 3,803.10 393.55
Less: Allowance for impairment loss {C) - -
Total -Net {A-C} 3,803.10 393.55




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2024

Al amounts in T in Millions unless otherwise stated)

12 Other financial assets

Lo Asat ot Asatt
Particulars. .~ March31,2022 | . March31,2023 -
Excess Interest Spread {€15) Receivables 1,277.49 1,072.84
tess: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses {7.79) {4.90)
Total EIS Receivables {(net of impairment) 1,269.70 1,067.94
Security Deposits £53.41 17.09
Other receivables from related parties {Refer Note 50} 106.51 56.47
Others 6.66 4.30
Total 1,446.28 1,145.80

13 Current tax assets {net}

Advance income tax
[Met of provision for incorne tax % 346.33 millions {PY: NIL}

Total

33.47




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All omounts in T in Millions tnless otherwise stated]

14 Deferred tax

The major components of deferred tax assets / {liabilities) arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assets
Impairment loss on financial assets 34,91 5G.35 - 151.26
Impact of Leases 7.18 .21 - 7.35
Retirement benefit plans 18.90 [4.61} 1.79 16.08
{A) 120.99 51.95 1.79 174.73
Deferred tax habilities
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books 11.86 054 12.40
of accounts and ncome Lax
EIR impact on finangial instrumenis 0.28 10.07 - 10.35
E{R impact on borrowings 42.45 9.78 52.23
Impact of direct assignment transactions 270,01 51,51 32152
{B) 324,60 71.90 - 396.50
Deferred tax assets / [Habilities) {net} {A—B}} 1203.51” 119.QSIJ 1.79 {221.77)}
As at March 31, 2023
o Asat T
March 31,2023
Deferred tax assets
Impairment lass an financial assets 52.08 42.82 - 94.91
EIR impact on financial instruments 5.14 {6.42} (0.28)
Impact of Leases 5.67 0.51 - 7.18
Retirement benefit plans 11.58 6.42 0.58 13.590
{A) 76.80 43.33 0.58 120.71
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books 10.93 0.93 11.86
of accounts and income tax
EIR impact an borrawings 2416 18.20 - 42.45
Impact of direct assignment transactions 58.84 211.17 270.01
{B) 93.93 230.39 - 324.32
Deferred tax assets / {liabilities) {net) {A-8) | {17.13}] {187.06)| 0.58 {203.61)
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ADANL CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Moles to the Standakone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Alf arnounts in T in Millions unless otherwise stated)

16 Intangibie assets under development

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024

i amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of R
LessthandYesr | - 1-2Years | 2-3Vears | Merethan3 o3 o Teml
T T e o Years .
Projects in progress 22.17 3.05 B - 2512
Prajects tempararily suspended - - - - -
Total 22.17 3.05 - - 25.22
Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023
e .- Amount inintahgible assets under déveloprient for a periodof - |
1 Lessthiant Year.] - 1-2Years -] " 23Years orethan3 . |
Years = -

Frojects in progress 33.15 - - - 33.15
Frojects tempararily suspended - - - . -
Total 33.15 - -




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in X in Milfions uriless otherwise stated)

17 Other intangible assets

Gross Black

As at April 01, 2022 167.01 167.01
Additions 3471 34.71
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 201.72 201.72
Additions 42.30 42.30
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 244,02 244.02
Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization:

As at Aprii 01, 2022 44.24 44.24
Depreciation / Amortization for the year 20.45 2145
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 64.69 64.69
Depreciation / Amortization for the year 22.81 22.81
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 87.50 872.50
Net book value

As ot March 31, 2024

AsatMarch 31,2023 - . oo

18 Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses
GST input credit 64.19 3541
Cthers 6.35 333

Totat 207.92 101.74




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All grounts in T in Miftiens unless otherwise stoted)

19 Payables

Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 19 {af below} 7.49 -
{ii) total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 125.28 118.37
13277 118.37
Other Payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafl enlerprises - -
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro entarprises and smalt enterprises 22.44 21.77
22.44 21.77
Total 155.21 140.14

a. information required as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) provided based on and to the
extent of information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under MSMED Act:

n31, 2003

Principal amaunt due 1o suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end (since paid) -
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amounk as at the year end - -
Paymenl made 1o suppliers {olher than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year
Interast paid to suppliers under MSMED Act {other than section 16) - -
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act {section 16}
Interast due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act - -

b. Trade payables ageing schedule

Trade payéﬁles - Undisputed

{i} MSME 7.49 - - ; 7.49
{i} Other than MSME 122.37 201 - - 125.28
Total 12986 2.91 . - 132.77

_:Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment.. .
o P s T e ST ] More thand

i i - years -’
Trade payabies - Undisputed
{i} MSME - - - - -
(i) Other than MSME 11837 - - - 118.37
Total 118.37 - - . - 118.37
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the Standal Financial Stat 15 for the year ended March 31, 2023
fAl amourds in £ in Mallions unicss atherwive starod)

Debt securities
. Asat .- |- . . Asat

March 31, 2024 . | March 31 2023

Amortiseticost . | Amaortised cost
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures - Secured 3,895.37 1,496.45
Fass through cartificates - Secured 2,484 46 -
Commerzial papers - Unsecurad - 247 B2
Tatad 7,389.83 1,744.08
Deht Securities in India 7,389.83 1,744.08
Debt Securities cutside India - -
Tatat 7,389.63 i.744.08

a. Maturity profibe and eate of interest of debt securities are set out below:

As at March 31, 2029

Privately placed non-convertible debentures - &

Privately placed non-<anverible debentures - 7

Privately placed non-convertibie debenfures - 8 9.75% - -
Pass through certificates B.75% 10 9.15% 375,23 464.01 LA479.
7,395.84
Add: Interest accrued and effective interast rate amertisation {6.01)
?:]EB.E]

As at March 3§, 2023

Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 3 9.50% 500,00
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 5 2,394 G50 .00
Frivataly placed comnmercial papers 7.70% 250.00
1,740.08

Add: Interest aceruad and effective interest rate amurtisation 14.08

1,744.08

b. Nature of Security :
Privately placed non-convertible dehentures - 3 : Aedeemable non-convertible debentures which have been privately placed are secured by hypothecation of Lean Hecewables & Investment

Hecaivables [comprising of cash & cash eguivalents, unencumbered fixed depasits and mutual fund investments) of the company to the extent of 1.2x times.

Privately placed non-convertibie debentures - 5 : Redesrnable non-convertible debantyres which have hoen privately placed ane secured by first ranking exclusive charge over the identified |oan
assets/book debts of the company along with all present and future book debts which has up to 1 year of original maturity such that the principal ameunt with respect 1o such assets shall at all times
be equal to 1.00x

Privately placed noa-convertible dabentures - 5/7/8 : Redeamable nen-convertibfe debentures which have been privately placed are secared by hypothecation of Loan Receivables & Inyestment
Recaivables {comprising of cash & cash eguivalents, unencumbered fised deposits and meutua! fund nvestments) of the company to the extent of 1 15x times,
Pass through certificates ¢ First loss default guarantee (FLOG}in the farm of fixed deposits for securltisation transactions as at March 31, 2024 % 467.60 Millian {PY - NIL} [Refer Note 3(a))

€. The Campaty has not defaultad |0 repayment of debt securlties and interest for the year ended March 31, 2024 & mMarch 21, 2023,




ADANI CAPTAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes ta tha Standak Financial Stat fou the year ended March 31, 2024

{4l amounts i T in Milfians unless otherwise stated}

21 Bormowings {other than debt securities}

Parficulars -

Secured

Terra laans
- fram barks 18,452.5¢ 19,249.22
- frem financiat institutions 1,602.26 802,83

Lwans repayahle on demand
-from banks 0.19 128.03

insecured
Terrn loans

- fram fimanvial ingtitutions - -

Loans repayaide on dermand

- from related parties - 100,00
Total 20,067.12 20,281.08

Barrowlngs i India 2006712 20,281.08
Barrowings cutside India - .

Total 20,067.12 20,231.08

2. Maturity profile and rate of interest of boerowings from banks and other partics are set out below:

As af March 31, 2024

; s . S :
A o e [ B A Ve ] - Aid Veam o] o 3 EVears. 1. o Toml
Term Loans from banks - Secured B.90% 10 11.63% 763121 2,871.04 107166 - 18,573.90
Term Laans from financial institutions - Secured B.50% to 11.00% 908.12 702.91 - - 1,612.03
l.oans repayable an demand from banks - Secured 2.65% 0,18 - - - .19
20,186.12
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation [119.00)
0,067.12
As at March 31, 2023
L - - . : Q-vear . | ii¥véars -] 3-S5 ¥ears ] OwerS¥ears - - wotal o L
Term Loans fram banks - Secured 7.95% 10 10.50% 6.859.15 5,607.21 2,500.71 - 19,367.07
Term Loans from financial institutions - Secured 8.50% 10 10.65% 416.67 327.50 - - 804,17
Laans repayable an demand from banks - Secured 7 5086 1o 10.85% 12503 - - - 129.62
Loans repayable on damand from related parties - A.00% - 100.00 - -
Unzecured 100.00
20.399.27
Add: Interest accrred and eHective interest rate amertisation [115.19)
20.281.08

h. Nature of Security :
Term loans fram barks & financial Institutians / loans repayable on demand from banks are secured by hypothecation of loan recenvables & investment racavables (comprising of cash & cash
equivalents, unencumbered fixed deposits and mutual fund investments] of the company.

¢. The barrawings have not heen guaranteed by directars or others. Also, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings and interest for the year ended March 31, 2024 & March 31,
2023,




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE UMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Al omaunts in 2 in Milffons unfess otherwise stoted)

22 Subordinated liabilities

. March 31,2024 |- Marth31, 2023 .

P.’a_‘i_:_’i'cula'r:.f'» i

ST © Amoriised cost ] Amortisedcost
Unsecured

Privately placed subordinated {Tier 1) redeamalbyle non-convertible debentures 579.26 576.16
Total 579,26 576.16
Subierdinated Liabitities in India 579.28 576.16

Subardinated Liabifities cutside Indiz

Total 579.26 576.16

a, Maturity profite and rate of interast of subordinated liabilities are set out below:

As at March 31, 2024

Partiewlars. o o oo oo T Rave of ingesest | < Matarity i AMOUnt
Repayahle in single

Privately placed subordinated [Tier |1} redeernabile non convertible debentures - 1 9.75% instaimeant on 30 3250.00

Mavember 2028

Repayable in singla

Privately placed subordinated (Tier 11} redeemabte non-convertible debentures - 2 9.75% instalmeant on 25 May 250.00

2029

600.00

Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amaortisation (20,74}

579.26

As at March 31, 2023

Pafkiculars oo o Rateof interest |\ | Miaturity
Repayahbie in single
Privately placed subordinated (Tier H) redeemable non-convertible debentures - 1 9.75% installment on 30 350.00
Novernber 2023
Repayahble in single
Privately placed subardinated {Tier I} redeemable non-convertibie debentures - 2 9.75% instalimant arm 25 May 250.00
2029
600.00
4dd: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation {23.84)
576.10
b. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of debt securities and Interest fur the year ended March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023
e
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in T in Millions unifess otherwise stoted}

Other financial liabilities

o | March31, 2023 .
Lease Liability fRefer Note 51) 207.75
Employee benefits payable 68.87
Other Payables 462.88
Total 1,057.73 739,50
Current tax liabilities {net)

Partlculars

Provision for income tax
{PY: Net of advance tax & TDS ¥ 150.75 millions)

Total

9.77

Provisions

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity {Refer Note 39) 42.07 27.01
Compensated Absences (Refer Note 35) 21.83 48.09
Total 63.90 75.10
Other non-financial liabilities

Statutory dues
Revenue received in advance
Others

Total

p——
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ADANI| CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nates to the Standatone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amaunts in T in Milkicns unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital

_As at March 31 2024 ‘As at Marth 31, 2023
T Ty Number - ! A ] . Niivaber 7 Arount’
Authorised Capital
Equity shares of % 10 each &{,000,000 S00.00 30,000,000 300.00
50,000,000 500.00 30,000,000 300.0¢
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up 38 801,841 388.02 23,203,086 232.09
38,801,841 388.02 23,209,086 232.09

i. Movement in equity share capital

- AsatiMarch 31, 2093 . -
Quistanding at the beginning of the year 23,209,086 232.09 23,754,541 227,55
Shares issued during the year 15,582,755 155.93 454 545 4.54
Outstanding at the end of the year 34,801,841 383.02 23,202,086 232,09

Notas:

A. Issue of equity shares

Mring the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has issued 1,53,91,142 fully paid-up equity shares of % 10 per share at a premiurn of %
586,15 per share for agerzgate consideration of X 9,145.69 Million to its halding company BCC Atlantis Il Pte, ttd Alse, the company has
issued 2,51,613 fully paid-up equity shares of % 10 per share at a pramium of % 586.15 per share for aggregate consideration of T 150,00
Milleon to Greentight Adwisors LEP.

During the year ended March 21, 2023, the company had issuad 4,54, 545 fully paid-up equity shares of T 10 per share at a premiurn of ¥ 540
per share for aggragate consideration of % 250,00 Million to its then holding company Adani Finserve Private Limtited.

B. Terms,/rights attached to equity shares

The company has anly one dass of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
ane vote per share.

In the avent of liquidation of the company, the eguity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distributian of all preferential amounts, if any, in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the sharsholders.

C. Shares held by the holding company

Halding Company

BCC Atlantis |t Pte. Ltd. 35,896,734 91.51% - -

Adani Finserve Private Limited - - 23,209,085 100.00%
Total 35,896,738 92.51% 23,209,085 100.00%
Niote:

The Company [“ACPL"}, its erstwhile hofding tompany {“Adani Finserve Private Limited / AFPL") and its erstwhile fellow subsidiary Adani
Housing Finance Private Limited [“AHFPL*), certain other entities bedonging Lo the Adani group and BCC Atfantis || Pia. Ltd. {"BCC Atlantis”)
had entered into an investment agrezment and post receipt of necessary RBI / other regulatory appravals, following transactions were
executed on March 2/, 2024,

a) BCC Atlantis acguired 2,05,55,536 fully paid-up equlty shares of ¥ 10 each, ageregating to BB8.57% of the share capital of ACPL by way of a
sacondary purchase of the entire existing equity share tapital of ACFL held by SFFL.

b] BCC Atlantis subscribed ta 1,53,41,142 fully paid-up equity shares of % 10 per share at a premium of  585.15 per share for an aggregate
consideration of X 9,145.69 Million by way of primary subscoption in ACPL.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2624

{Alt amounts in T Milfions unless otherwise stated}

27 Equity share capital {contd...)

D, Details of sharehaolder(s} holding more than 5% of equity shares in the company :

T TAs atMarch 33,2024 . . AsatMarch 31,2023
tshares, g |Mo.of shares held |+ % Holding .
Equity shares of % 10 each fully paid up
BCC Atlantis U Pte. Ltd. 35,896,738 92.51% -
Adani Finserve Private Limited - - 23,209,085 100.00%
Greenlight Advisors LLP 2,905,103 7.49% -
Total 38,801,841 100.00% 23,209,085 104.00%

As per the recards of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations recaived from sharehotders regarding beneficial

interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

E. Shares held by the promoters

Promoters
Adani Finserve Private Limited
BCC Atlantis Il PLe. Ltd.
Greenlight Advisars LLP

35,896,738
2,905,103

92.51%
7.49%

-100.00%
92.51%
7.49%

Bromoters
Adani Finserve Private Limited

22,754,540

100.00%

23,209,085

100.00%

2.00%
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Other equity
Particulars T Thsat 1 Asat
i ' _March 31, 2024 " | . March 31,2023
I. Securities premium
Qoening balance 4,815.58 457421
Add : Premiurn received on issue of securities $,135.76 24545
Less: Share issue expanses {106.10) (0.08}
Closing Balance 13,853.24 4,8159.58
11, Share based payment reserve
Opening balance 85.82 79.34
Add: During the year 7.87 6.48
Less: Wtilised during the year # {93.69) -
Closing Balance - B5.82
1ll. Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934
Opening balance 247.65 656.29
Add : Additions during the year 119.17 181.36
Closing Batance 3566.82 247.65
V. Impaisrment Reserve
Opening balance - -
Add : Additions during the year - -
Closing Balance - -
V. Money received against share warrants
Opening balance - -
Add : Amount received against share warrants during 750.00
the year {25% subscription
money received)** -
Closing Balance 750.00 -
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Other equity
R L Co 0 1 March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 -
Vi. Retained earnings
Opening balance B9G.67 172.95
Add : Profit for the year 535.86 906.7%
Add : Other comprehensive income {5.31) [1.71}
Amount availabie for appropriation 1,487.22 1,078.03
Less: Appropriations
Amount utilised towards settlement of share based {80.57) -
payments #
Transfer to Special Reserve u/fs 45-1C of the Reserve (119.17) {181.36)
Bank of India Act, 1934
Closing Batance 1,287.48 896.67
Total Other Equity 16,257.54 6,049.72

**Note: During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has issued 50,32,253 share warrants of € 10
each at a premium of % 586.15 per warrant and received 25% subscription money i.e. % 750 Million, each
carrying a right to subscribe to one ordinary share per warrant, at a price of £ 596.15 per warrant.

#Note: As per the resolution passed in the Board of Directors meeting held on March 14, 2024, the Board
prescribed a cash settlement against alt unexercised vested options by the Company in terms of and
pursuant to the Restated ESOP Scherne 2020. Upon cash settiement of unexercised vested options on March
27, 2024, the Company paid % 180,98 Million to the eligible employeas for settlement. Of the total
compensation paid on settlement, ¥ 80.57 Million has been adjusted against retained earnings as repurchase
of eguity interest in line with Ind AS 102. Upon payments, the ESOP Scheme 2020 was terminated.

Securities premium

The securities premium is used to record the pramium received on issue of shares, It can be utilised only for
limited purpose such as share issue expenses, issuance of bonus shares in accordance with provision of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Share based payment reserve

The Company has stack option scheme under which the eligible empioyees and key management perscnnel
can exercise the stock options granted and vested in themn. Dn such exercise of the stock options the
employees will be allotted equity shares of the Cormpany. The share-based payment reserve is used to
recognise the vatue of equity-settled share-hased payments.

Statutory reserve

Reserve created under section 45-1C{1) of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 - a sum not less than twenty
per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and less account and before any dividend is
declared.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus / accumulated esarnings of the Company and are available for
distribution to shareholders. )
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Interest income

Particulars

© Yearended : | . ¥Yearended -
- March31,2024 © | March31,2023 - -

'On financial.a

S oskl

Interest on loans 5,084.90 4,024.15
Interest on inter carporate deposits 46.14 -

Interest on fixed deposits 4470 3241
Other Interest Income 262.11 186.24
Total 3,437.85 4,242 80

Net gain on fair value changes

-On trading portfolio

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Mutuat Funds 55.35 53.18
Total 55.35 53.18
Fair value changes
-Realised gain 55.35 53.18
-Unrealised gain - -
Total 55.35 53.18

Other income

22.59

Fee income and other charges 76.10

tnterest on income tax refund - 1.29
Excess Provision written back 9.78 7.15
Miscellaneous income 2.03 9.30
Total 54.91 44,34
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32 Finance costs

| “Yesrended .
. March31,2023

nfir lisbifities | On Financlal fiabilities *
measuréd 2t amortised | measured at amortised.
S Teasts ot

2,032.88 1,645.48

interest on borrowings

Interest on debt securities 15170 142.83
Interest on subordinated liahifities 61.61 57.44
Interast on lease Hability 2077 20.45
{Other finance cost 48,74 18.37
Total 2,515.70 1,885.57

33 impairment an financial instruments

e S T 1 -March 3152023 .
On Financial instruments measured at amaortised cost

{i} Loans 634 139.80
{ii} Investments - B
{iiiy Others 2.65 5.37
Loan write off 151.75 154.51
Receivables write off 212 -
Lass on sale af repossessed assets 144.58 65.10
Recovery in write-off accounts [14.73) [0.56)
Total 503.11 364.12

34 Employee benefits expenses

“¥ear enide
_ March'31,2024
Salaries and wages 1,253.18 1,036.55
Contribution to provident and other funds 39.20 B1.57
Share based payment to emplaoyess {Refer Note 57) ¥.87 5.24
Staff welfare expenses 47 .55 46.56
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 33} 10.46 .19
Leave encashment (24.11) 22.75
Total 1,334.15 1,200.86

35 Depreciation, Amentisation and Impairments

Depreciation on property, plant and cqutpments 8107 71.74
Amaortisation on intangibte assets 2281 2045

Total 163.88 92.1%
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Other expenses

Yeat ended

_ arch3l; 2023
Rent 213 21.05
Communication expenses 24.04 30.04
Travelling and conveyance 99.99 83.12
Bank charges 4.90 5.08
Cash collection expenses 9.17 4.32
File starage and processing expenses 18.37 25.13
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 252 2.62
Membership & subscription 051 1.67
Security expenses 3.26 2.79
Branch setup expenses 1.07 .56
Credit information costs 6.21 0.11
Electricity charges 11.69 12.00
IT expenses 150.79 100.39
Call centre expenses 17.0% 14.88
Lewal and professional fees 123.44 129.49
Ofice expenses 6.84 7.92
Oftice maintenance expenses 14.4%9 g.12
Frinting and stationery 13.26 14.67
Fayment to auditors {Refer Note 36.1} 7.03 4.53
Rates and taxes 5.08 12.98
Recrultment expenses 4.35 155
Repairs and maintenance 2.30 3.49
farketing Expenses 5.51 437
C5R expenses (Refer Note 37) 1126 2.27
Miscellangous expenses 747 1.65
Recovery of shared £ost from subsidiary {Refer Note 36.2} {87.28) {82.27}
Total 4B4.33 414,91
Payment to the auditors:
T Yearended - |. . Yearanded -
Particulars et e SR
Frhtiiae March 31, 2024, ;| . March 33, 2023
As Auditor

Audit fees 4.10 153

Limited review fees 1.50 1.50

Certification and other matters J.90 0.58

Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 0.14

G5T Q.50 .18
Total* 7.03 4.93

* Amount includes Goods and service tax for which input credit has been disallowed

Recovery of shared cast from subsidiary:

Adani Capital Frivate Limited (ACPL) incurs expenditure iike rem, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and
its subsidiary Adani Housing Finance Private Limmited (AHFPLY. This cost so expended is recovered by ACPL based on the actual
expenditure incurred, the number of employees and volume of business etc. R
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37 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particwlars -~ . e o [ Yearended March31,2024 . |- Vearended Mareh 31,2023 .
1. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 10.26 2.27

2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
i} Construction/acquisition af any asset - -
ii) On purposes other than [i) above 10.26 227
3. Shortfall at the end of the year™ - -
4. Total of previaus years shortfall - -

5. Reason for shortfall Not Applicable hat Applicable

6. Nature of CSR activities Support  to  create  educational |Support to create international level
facikities for poar students schoaling facilities at subsidized rate

7. Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as|Refer Note 50 - Related Party Refer Note 50 - Related Party

per relavant Accounting Standard Disclosure Disclosure

*Note:

1. tn respect of ongoing projects, there are no unspent amount. Accordingly, no amount is required o ke transferred to the special account.
2. In respect of other than ongoing prajects, there are no unspent amount. Accordingly, ne amount is reguired to be transferred to the fund.

38 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Capritd; 2023

i R GeTIELL D L) T §
Debt securities 1,744.08 5,668.23 - (22.48) 7.389.83
Borrowing other than debt securities 20,281.08 {213.18) - {0.800 20,067.12
Subordinated liabilities 576.16 - - 3.10 578.26
Total 22,601.32 5,455.07 - {20.18) 28,036.21

Debt securities 2,511.69 {752.38) - {15.23)

Borrowing other than debt securities 16,116.37 4,208.40 - {43.68) 20,281.08
Subordinated liabilities 336.96 250.00 - {10.80} 576.16
Total 18,965.02 3,706.02 - {69.73) 22,601.32

* Others column includes the effect of accrued but not paid interast on borrowings, amartisetion of processing fees, etc.
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Employes Benefits

2. Defined contribution plan - provident funds

Im accordanca with Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employ of the Cormpany are entitled to receive benefits under the pravident fund, 2 defined
contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate, These contributions are made t0 a recegnized provident fund administerad by
Regional Provident Fund Commissianer. The emplayees cantnbute 12% of their baslc salary and the Company contribiutes an equal amount.

Thea Company recognised % 39,20 Million {P: X 91.57 Millien) for year ended March 3§, 2024, for prgwident lund and ather contributions in the Staternent af profit and lozs.

b. Defined Benefit Flan - Gratuity

In aceordance with the Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1472 the Company grovides for gratwty, a nan-contributory defined benefit arrangement providing lump-sum gratusty benefits
wxprassed in terms of fimal monthly salary and year of service, covering alt employces. The plan provides 2 fump sum payment to vested employees at retirement of tormination of
emplayment i acegrdance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The most recent actuarial valuation pertaining to present value of the defined bemefit obiigation [DBOY for gratuity were carricd out as at March 31, 2024, The presert value of the
definad benefit abligatons and the related current service cost and past senace cost, were measJred using the Fraected Unit Credit iethod.

Rasad on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respecr, the follawing table tets out the status of the gatuity plan and the amounts recegnized in the Company's standalonr financeal

staterments a8 at baldnce sheet date.

Fresent value of chligation {a}
Fair Vatue of plan assets |B) - -
Present vzlue of obligation [A- 8} 42.04 27.01

HNet deficit § {as=ets] are anafysed as:
Liatulities - (Refer Note 23/ az g7 W

Movemant in net definad benafit (asset] lfabiflity
The following tatke shows a reconwiliation from the opaning bafznces to the closing batances for net defined benefit (asset) Uability and itz components:

T
ILMar2d 71 HMeE T3

Falf Value of plan assets . | .mel defined benefit fzsset] Kabil
o B Manr-2d F1-Mar-230 | - 3 Mandd. ] F-Mar2d

Opening baiance 27.01 1679 - - 2r01 16,79
Current service east 245 7.34 - . 243 7.34
Intarest cost [inenme] 2.03 086 - - 2.03 0.86

enefits Pai 5 - - A .27)
Benefits Paid {2.50] {027 [2.50) [0.27
Liabilily Transfer In . - - . - .
Liability Transfar {Out} - - - - - -

34.97 24.72 - . 3497 24.72

Other comprehensive income
Remeazsurement loss [gain):
Actuaclal boss (galnd arsing from:

Change in demographic assumptians - [1.23} - - - [1.33)

Experience variance B.EG 4.67 - - 556 4.67

Change in Flnancial assumptions 0.24 [1.05) . - 0.24 (105}

7.10 2,29 - - 7.10 .23

Llosing hal 42.07 27.01 - - 42.07 2701
Rep d by

Met defined [iability 4207 2701

42.07 27.01
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Components of defined benefit plan cost:

Partitilars

Recognised in staterment of profit or loss

Curent serirce ¢ost 243 ]
Intarest costf (incone| (nat) 2.03 0.26
Total 1046 5.19

Reeognised in othar comprehensive incame
Actuarial loss {gain) arising fram:

Change in demaographic assumptions - {1.33}
Experiznce varfanca B.36 4.67
Change i1 Financial assumptions 0.24 {105}
Total 710 2,29

Actuarial assumptions;
The follawing were the principal actuarial 2ssumglions at the reporting dats:

Tmm
TLE L . : . . i . 3 March'3t, 2021 -
{Diseount rete 8 7.50%
Salary growth rate AN B.90k%
1Withdrawalfattritian rate (based on categaries} 5&,300 54.30%
Mortality rate 100% of JALM 100K% of AL
2012-14 2H1z2-14
Expacted weighted average termattdng working lives of employess 26.31 years 2625 ymars
Nates:

o} The discourt rote indicated obiove refiects the estimated timing and currency of berefit poyments. 8 (s bosed on the yields / rates avalable an eppfcoble bonds s on the current
valuotion date.

b} The sofory growth rote indicoted above (s the Companp's best estimate of ot merease in solary of the employees in future yedrs, determined considering the general trend in infiation,
serionty, profnations, post experiense and other refeuant factors such as demond and supaly in empioyment marke?, et

o) Attritian rate indicated okove represents the Company’s best estimate of employee turnouer i future [other than an account of retirement, death or disoblement] determined
consideding various factors such os noture of business, retention poliey, Industry factors, past experience, aic.

Sensitivity anatysis:
Reasonably possibla changes 2t tha reporting date to one of the rmlevant aciuarial azsumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below.

Salary Growth Rate {+/ 1%]
% change compared to base dus to sensitivity]

Disecunt Rate [+~ 1% 41.28 52,88 25.49 2754
% change compared te base due to sensitvity} -1 9% 19a% -1.90% 2.00%
Artrition Kate {+/- 50% of attrition rates) 8.7 440,85 2419 3306
[#% change compared te base due to sensitivityl R 18.E0% -10.40% 22.40%
Maortality Rate {-f+ 10% of montality rates] az2.07 42.06 el 2700
{% charge compared to base due ta sensifnty| Go1% -0.01% 0.00% 0.00%

The Sensitivity i performed an the DBO at the respective valuation date by rnodifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant. There & no change in the methad of
valuation for the prior periad.
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Matusity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

ndiscountéd basia T lest.
R P R A S G UL N L . . . March 34, 2023
1 years 1114 13.48
2o 5 vears 2455 15.56
Bta 1k yaars 196 1.38
Mlare than 10 Years 0.0% 0.04

Expetience adjustments

Azat

Partieufars ~.0 1 Lo . T A U - | :Maieh 32, 202 5

Defined Benafit Ohligations 4z 07 2701
Fair value of plan assets - -
Assat/[hability) recognized im the balance sheet 42.07 2701
Experiance adjustment on plan labifities .88 4.67

¢, Compersated absences:
The Company pravides for aceumulated compensated absancas as at the balanes sheet date using projected unit credit melhod based an acluarial vabuativn.

R T As at
Parsioulars e iarch 34, 2003
Present value of unfunded chligation z1.83 48.09
Expanses recognisad in the Statemnent of Profit and Loss (26.27] 1761
Assumption
Discount Rate T FE0%
Salary growth rabe 8.90% 2.90%
Withdrawalfattrition rate (based on catepories) 84,307 54.20%
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40 Tax expense

{a} Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

particulars - "] Yearended "I Vear ended _
T e || -March 38,2024 | March 35, 2023
Current tax expense

Current year 185.80 123,50
Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 19.94 187.06
Tax expense for the year 205.74 310.96
{b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars 3 “Beforatax, | Tax[ewpense) | Netofts
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

{a} Remeasurements of defined benefit fiability {asset) {7.10) 1.79 {5.31)
Total {7.10} 1.79 {5.31)
As at March 31, 2023

Particulers - R Beforetax | Tax {expense)’-{. " Netoftax:
Htems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

{a) Remeasurements of definad benefit lizbility (asset} {2.29) 0.58 {1.71}
Total {2.29) 0.58 1.71)

{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

arch

Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 1,217.75

Applicable income tax rate (%) 25.17%
Tax expense calculated at applicable income tax rate 201.75 306.48

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax

Other adjustments 4.00 4.48

Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 205.74 31096

Effactive Tax Rate 25.67% 25.54%

Note: The Company has elected to exercise the optian permitted under section 115BAA of the income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws
{Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for Income Tax for the year ended March 31, 2024 and re-measured
its Deferred tan assets/liability basis the rate prescribed in the afaresaid section and recognised the effect of change by revising the annual sffective
Income kan rate. e
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41 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is caiculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of aquity shares

putstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company hy the weighted average number of
eguity shares gutstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive golential equity shares.

Diluted earnings per shars (A/C}

. Partieular " [Year nded March Vear ended March
o A A 3x 2008 U T31,2023 0
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company - A % in Millions 595.86 966.79
Waeighted average number of shares [Basich - B No's 23,427,511 22,986,172
Tilulive impact of potential equity shares for employee stock options outstanding No's 251,659 280,015
Weighted average number of shares (Diluted) - C No's 23,719,170 23,266,187
Basic earnings per share [A/B) X 25.43 39.45
x 25.12 3897
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external fegal counsel, wherever necessary. The
Company records a Hability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discfoses such matters in
its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in
the standalone financiat staternents but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The Company believes that the cutcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's financial position
and resuits of ocperations.

a. Contingent Liability

Contingent Habilities as at March 31, 2024 - ¥ 0.07 Million {PY: - NiL] in respect of income tax assessment for AY 2022-23 due to short
credit of TDS, against which the company is in the process of filing a rectification application u/s 154 of the income Tax Act.

h. Commitments

Commitment in respect of:
Capital expenditure 27.40 4.94
Loans sanctioned but not disbursed - -

For the loans pertaining to Farm Eguipment and Commercial Vehicle business amounting to T 1,642.86 Million {PY - X 1,555.93 Million) as
at March 31, 2024, the Management is in the process of collection of Registration Certificate Book {RC Book) from the customers.

In case of Loans for Farm Eguipment business amounting to % 54.65 Million {PY - £ 77.51 Million} as at March 31, 2024, first ioss default
guarantee (FLDG} is provided by equipment manufacturer to the extent of 50% / 100%.

In respect of secured loans for MSME business amounting to X 178.77 Miflion (PY - ¥ 130.87 Million} disbursed, the Company is in the
process of perfecting the security.

Receivabie / Payable balance in foreign currency — % Nil {PY — X Nil}. The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure
as on March 31, 2024 {PY - Nil}.
Segment information

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. lending, since the nature of the loans are exposed to similar risk and return
profiles hence they are collectively operating under a single segment. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domaestic. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments, as reguired by the ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’.

Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these standalone financial statements.
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49 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according 1o when they are expected to be recavered or settled.

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,281.17 - 7,281.17 790.34 - 790.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 858825 BER.25 - 394.20 394.20
Raceivables
{I) Trade receivables 16.13 0.13 16.26 10.54 0.15 10.69

Loans 945256 22,652.45 32,115.01 7,961.96 18,939.19 25,901.15
Investments - 3,803.10 3,803.10 - 393.55 393.55
Cther Financial assets 62176 825.52 1,446.28 430,82 664,98 1,145.80
Sub total 17,380.62 28,169.45 45,550.07 9,243.66 20,392.07 29,635.73
Non-financial assets
Current Tax assets (Net) - 3247 33.47 - - -
Property, plant and egquipment - 391.92 391.92 - 292.79 292,79
intangible assets under development - 25.22 25.22 - 33.15 33.15
Other intangible assels - 156.52 156.52 - 137.03 137.03
Other non-financiai assets 207.92 - 207.592 101.74 - 101.74
Sub total 207.92 &07.13 815.05 101.74 462.97 564.71
Total assets 17,588.54 28,776.58 46,365.12 9,345.40 20,855.04 30,200.44
LIABILITFES AND EQUITY
LABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
(I} Trade payables

{i} total cutstanding dues of creditors of micro 749 - 7.4% - - -

enterprises and smal} enterprises

{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 125.28 - 125.28 113.37 - 118.37

micro enterprises and small enterprises
{1l} Other payabies

(i} total outstanding dues of creditors of micra - - - - - .

enterprises and small enterprises

{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors ather than 22.44 - 22.44 21.77 - 21737

micre enterprises ang small enterprises
Debt securities 1,635.67 5,754.16 7,389.83 1,744.08 - 1,744.08
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) 850321 11,563.91 20,067.12 7.3562.52 12,918.56 20,281.08
Subordinated Liabilities 0.16 579.10 579.26 0.16 576.00 576.16
Qther Financiat liabilities 808.38 249.35 1,057.73 566.24 173.26 739.50
Sub total 11,102.63 18,146.52 29,249.15 9,813.14 13,667.82 23,480.96
Non-Financial liabitities
Current tax liabilities fnet) - - - - 9.77 9,77
Provisions 37.06 26.84 63.90 45.40 23.70 75.10
Deferred tax liabilities [net) - 221.77 221.77 - 203.61 203.61
Other non-financial liabilities 184.74 - 184.74 149,19 - 149.19
Sub total 221.80 248.61 470.41 194.59 243.08 437.57
Total lizbiities 11,324.43 18,395.13 20,719.56 10,007.73 13,910.90 23,918.63
Net Assets [ |Liabilities} (A - B) 6,264.11 10,381.45 16,645.56 (662.33} 6,944.14 6,281.81
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S0 Related Party Disclosure

2. Name of refated party and nature of relationship:

Financial 5 for tha year ended March 31, 2024

Name of Related Parttes by whom mntrol is exercised

Ulernate halding compary

Halding company

Subsidiary cormpany

tellow subsidiary company

Enterprise under common cantral

Koy managrment prrsonnet

Relative of key management perscnnet

BCC Atlantis | Pte. Lid. {w.ef Mareh 27, 2024)
Adant Fraperties ?rivate timited (3ill March 26, 2024)

BOC Atlantis il Pre, Lid, |w.ed. March 27, 2024]
Adani Finserve Private Limited (Ll Mazch 26, 2024|

Adzni Housing Finance Private Limited (w.e.f, March 27, 2024)

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited [tHl March 26, 2024}
Adun] Special SHuations Private Limited (bl March 26, 2024)
Adand Migikal Services Private Limited (LH March 26, 2024}

Greenlight Adwisors LLP [we.e.f, July 20, 2023)

Adant Hospitaks Mundra Pivate Limited {till March 26, 2024}
Adani Digital Labs Private Lirnited {ufl March 25, 2024}
Adani Foundation (till Mareh 26, 2024)]

hr, Sagar B. Adani (Diractor (il March 26, 2024)

M. Sarit Chopra {Dicector) [w.ef, March 27, 2024)
Ms. Suruchi Nangia [Director] {w.e f. March 27, 2024)
M. Chong Kab Khen (Director) jw.e f. March 27, 2024)
M, Gaurav Gupta (Managing Director & CEO)

M. Wiral Shah [CFO)

Wi, fitendra Chaturvad: [Campany Secretary]

Mirs, Anjali Gupta

b, Transaction with related partles:

Particulars

For the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 - ] For the year ended Mavech 31,2023~ .

Current account transactions
Inter-corporate deposits received:
Adant Fingerve Private Limitad

Adani Special Situations Privata Limited

Inter-corporate deposits repaid:
Adani Finserye Private Limited
Adani Special Situstians Private Umited

Interest en inter-corporzte deposits paid:
Adani Finserve Private Limited
Adani Special Sltuations Private Limited

inter-comparate deposits given:
Adan Housing Finance Private Lmited

Inter-corporate depasits received back:
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited

Interest on inter-corperate deposits received:
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited

{ssue of Equity Shares incuding premiam:
BCC Atlantis H Pte. Ltd.

Greerdight Aduisors LLE

Adani Finzerve Private Limited

Issue of Warrants including premiom:
BCC Atlantis I Pte, Led,

930.00
2350

1,030.00
23,50

244
0.01

2,500.00

1,250.00

46.14

9,145.649
150.00

750.00

150.00

=0.00

.93

250,00
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50 Related Party Disclosure -

Particulars - - e RS . - : | -For the year éndsd farch31; 2024 For thi year endéd March 31, 2023
Purchase of Equity Shares of Adani Hausing Finance Private timited:

Adani Finsarve Private Limited 138270 -
Invesirnent in Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company:

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 1,500.00 -
Purchase of Equity Shares of CSC Grameen EStore Private Limited:

Adani Finserue Private Limited - 23066
Direct Assignment Transaction |Acquisition of Paal)

Adani Housing Finamee Private Limited 226.80 -
Paymant of Service Fees for Direot Assignment Transaciion [Acquisition of

Pook)

Adani Housing Financs Private Limited 011

Sale Consideration received for Credit impaired Assets

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 3983 -
P of exp

Adani Huusing Finance Private Lmited - Receivable 87.28 8227
Adani Finserve Pivate Umited - Beimbursement of share based payment to B.72 1.25
ernpioyees - Receivables

fdani Housing Finance Pvate Limited - Other Reimbursement Payable 261 0.2%
Adani Hausing Finance Pivate Limited - Dther Reimbursement Receivable - -
Dthars:

Adani Hospitals Mundra Pivate Limited - 0.74
Adani Faundation 10.26 227
Adani Digital Eabs Private Limited 137 150
Rent paid:

Mr. Gaurav Gupta .27 .28
Mrs, aAnjali Gupta 4,27 3E8
Adani Properties Privale Limied i.24 1.24
Remunaration to KMP [including settlemant of ESOP):

Mir. Gaurav Gupia 31.57 2630
Mr. Viral Shah 2541 10.97
M, Jitendra Chaturved: 2.16 2,12

¢. Transatrtions outstanding at year emd

~As at March 31, 2024

at-March 31, 2023

Amount Feceivable:
Adani Hausing Finanee Private Limited
- ffor refmbursement of expenses
- For inter-corporste deposits
- Far [hirect Assignment Transactian [(Acquisition of Pool]

Adani Finserve Private Limited
Share Based Payment to Employeas

Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Rent Expenses
Mrs. Anjali Gupta - Rant Expenses

Ampunt Payable:
Adam Finserve Privace Limited
Inter-corporate deposits

Adani Digital Labs Pivate Limited
O leears

98.64
125000
1167

G403
4.03

37.18

19.28

100.00

1.48

e
S
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Leases

Company as a Lassee

The Campany has entered into lease contracts for premises at various locations. beases of premises generally have lease terms between 510 9
years, The Compary's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assats.

The Company alse has certain leases of pramises which are cancellable in nature and leases for printers with lease term of 12 manths ar less for
which the Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease af low-value assets’ recognition exemptions.

a. Far carrying amounts of right of use assets (included under "Property, Plant & Equipment’} and the mavements during the periad refer Note 15

b. Carrying amounts of tease liabilities {included under 'Other Financial Liahilities') and the movements during the period;

Partioulars ™ T Ay at March 33, 2024._] A< at March 31, 2023
As at 1st April 20775 225.10

Additians 139.88 31.33

Dispesals {14.50} {14.36)
Accretion of interest 20.76 20.45

Payments {60.78) {54.77}
As at 31st March 293.11 207.75

c. Maturity analysis of lease Habilities is as under:

Paiticulars - " | Asat-March 31, 2024 [ As at March 31, 2023,
Within 12 months 43.76 34.49

After 12 months 249,35 173.26

Total 293.11 207.75

d. Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss:

Particulars.: R TR | -As at March 31,2024 | As at March'31,2023 -
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 45.44 43.36

Interast expense an tease liabilities 20.76 20,45

Expense relating 1o short-term leases and low value items {included in ather expenses) 2191 21.05

Tatal amount recognised in profit or loss 88.11 84.86

e. Cash flows and additions to assets / liabilities:

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of £ 82.70 Million for the year ended March 31, 2024 {PY - X 75.82 Million). The Company also
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets of 2 144.63 Million for the year ended March 31, 2024 (PY - % 36.80 Millian) and lease liabilities of X

139.88 Million for the year ended March 31, 2024 {PY - 2 31.33 Million|.

f. Future Commitments:

Futyre undlscc-unted !ease pavments for whlch the Ieases have not yet commenced

Particulars * i |-As &t March 31, 2024 1 As at March 31, 2023
Within 1 year 33.22 Nil
after 1 year but not more than 5 years 229,65 il

- Nil

More than 5 years

g. Extension / Termination Options:

Some of the |rases contain extension and termination options. Such options are taken into account in the determination of the lease term only if
extension or non-termination can be assumed with reasonable certainty. On this basis, there were no such amounts included in the

measurement of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2024,
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Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Campany's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with
externally imposed capital reguirements from its reguiators i.e. Reserve Bank of India {RBI} and maintains strang credit
ratings and healthy capital ratios in arder to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in econosmic canditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities. [n order to maintain or adjust the capitat structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shargholders or issue capital securities. The capital
management policy is under constant review by the Board.

Regulatory Capital
The below regulatery capital is computed in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.115/2016-17 dated
September 1, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of india.

[ March 32,2024 ‘March 31,2023

Capital Funds

Net owned funds [Tier | capital) 11,572.00 4,804 85
Tier il capital 476.26 747.41
Total capital funds 12,048.26 5,642,256
Total risk weighted assets/ expasures 33,B75.78 27,830.81

% of capital funds to risk weighted assets exposures:

Tier | capital 34.16% 17.59%
Tier [ capital 1.41% 2.69%
Total capital Funds 35.57% 20.27%

Regulatory capital consists of Tier { capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earmings inciuding
current year's profit less accrued dividends, Certain adjustments are made to Ind A3 — based results and reserves, as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The other component of regulatery capital is Tier 1) Capital, which includes
subordinated debt,

The Company is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of India (RBI).
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53 Fair Value Measurement

A, Valuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principaf [or most
advantageous) markel at the measurement date under current market condigions [i.e., an exit price], regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hterarchy of valuation technigues. Refer Note 5.10 - Determination of Fair Yalue fAccounting poficy Note] for more details on fair value hierarchy.

B. Valuatian gavernance frameworh

The Company's fair value methodology and the gavernance aver its models includes a number of cantrols and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place 1o ensure its guality and adequacy. All mew product initiatives {including their valuation methodologies) are subject to

approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values ara determined by reference to externally quoted prices or abservable pricing inputs to madels, independent price delermination ar
validation iz used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater waight given to information that is considered

to be mare relevant and reliable.

The respansibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions, However tinance department is also responsible for

establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in comptiance with accounting standards.

€. The following table shows an analysis of financial insttuments recorded at fair vaiue by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Assets measured at fair value on recurring hasis

Ievwestments
-Investment in Security Receipts
«Investment in [quity Shares of Other Company

30.74 - BD.74
- 239.566 239.66
80.74 239.66 3z0.40

As at March 31, 2023

particiilars

Assats measured at Fair value on recurring basis

Investments
-nvestment in Security Receipts
-bnwestrment in Equity Shares of Other Company

153.89 - 153.89
- 239.66 239.66
1531.82 239.66 393.55

D. Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments measured at fair vaiue
investment in Security Receipts
Investment in Security Receipts are measured based on their published net

restrictions, if any. Such instruments are elassified as Lavel 2.

Investment in Eguity Shares of Other Company

asset value [NAV), taking into account rademption and/or other

investment in Equity Shares of Other Company is measured basis fair valuation repart receivad from independent valuer. Such instruments are

classified as level 3.
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53 Fair Value Measurement

E. Fair vatue hierarchy of finandal assets and financial Nabilities

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

As at March 31, 2024

e

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7.281.17 728117
Bank balances other than cash and cash 88B.25 838.25
equivabents

Trade Receivables 16.26 16.26
Loans 32,115.01 32,115.01
{nvestments at cost 3,482.70 3.482.70
Qther financial assets 1,446.28 1,445.28
Tatal Financial Assets 45,229.67 45,229.67
Financial Liahifities

Trade Payables 155.21 155.21
Pebt Securities 7.3849.83 7,389.83
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securitites} 20,067.12 2006712
Subordinated Lishilities 579.26 573.26
Gther Financial Liabefities 1,057.73 1,057.73
Total Financizl liabilities 29,245.15 29,249.15

As at March 31, 2023

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivatents 790.34 790,34
Bank balances other than cash and cash 394.20 384.20
equivalents

Trade Receivakles 10.69 10.69
Lodrs 2690115 26,901.15
Other financial assets 1,145.80 1,145.80
Total Financial Assets 29,242.18 29,242.18
Financial Liabilitias

Trade Payahbles 140.14 140.14
Debt Securities 1,744.08 1,744.08
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) 20,281.08 20,2B1.08
Subserdinated Liabilities 576.16 576.16
Other Financial Liabilities 739.58 739.50
Total Financial liakilities 23,480.96 23,480.96
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Risk Management
Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retail 1oan, buys or selis
securities in market, or offers other products or services, the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall
objective is to manage its businesses, and the associated risks, in @ manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and
investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk management requires:

1} Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by ali individuals within the Company ;

2} Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate ; and
3} Firmwide structures for risk governance

4) Robust underwriting policy

5) Portfolio Monitoring process

6) Fraud detection and prevention process

The Campany strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development
and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage
risks associated with the various business activitias. The risk function is monitored primarity by independent risk management team.

Qur risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and
scenarios of sharply declining prices. As a result, we follow conservativa lending norms.

Tha Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of tha Company's risk management
framewsork. The Board, has empowered the Risk Management team, which has an independent Head who is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management palicies. On a periadic basis the Head of Risk appraises the Board on
the overall risks, recommends change in the processes and policies and takes stock of the overall portfolio quality and key risk
tndicators.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk managemant framework in ralation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both reguiar and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and pracedures, the results of which are reponted to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation aof responsibilities. Credit
appraisal & credit control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the
prescribed policies and approving loans at transaction level as wetl as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of
multiple checks and verifications. Qur key business processes are regularly monitored by the head of our business or operations. Our
loan approval and administration procedures, collection and enforcament procedures are desigred to minimise delinguencies and
Maximise recoveries. :
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At all levels of the Company's operations, specifically taitored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that ail
business divisions have access to extensive, necessany and up-to-date information.

it is the Company's policy that a briefing is given to the Board of Directors and alf other relevant members of the Company at regular
intervals for the utilisation of market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust tisk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture, Employees are
expected to take ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company's tisk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and
internal audit findings are important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographical region, or have simifar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations 1o be simifarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

In order to aveid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on
maintaining a diversified portfolio. [dentified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if a custorners or counterparties to finandgal instrument fails to discharge their contractuat obligations and arises principatly
from Company 's Loans and advances to customer, Trade Receivables and Investment. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting imits on the amount of risk it is
willing to accept for individual counterparties and far geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. The company has adopted
a palicy of dealing with credit worthy counter parties and obtain sufficient collateral , where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from default.

Credit risk is monitared by the credit risk department of the Company's independent Risk Controlling Unit. It is their responsibility to review and manage credit risk, including
environmental and saocial risk for all types of counterparties. Credit risk consists of line eredit risk managers who are responsible for their business lines and manage specific
portfolios and experts wha support both the line credit visk managear, as wel as the business with tools like credit risk systams, policies, models and reporting

The Company has established a ¢redit gualily review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the creditwarthiness of counterparties,

The Credit quality reviaw process aims to allow the Company ta assass the potential loss as result of the risk ta which it is exposed and take corrective action.

The Cormpany's internal rating graded on days past due (DPD} hasis.-

Staging
Stage 1
31t0 90 OPD Stage 2
4o+ DPD Stage 3

54.1.1: bmpainment assessment

The references below show where the Company's impairment assessment and rmeasurement approach is sel out in this repart. It should be read in canjunction with the surmary
of material actounting poficies.

{a) The Campany’s definitian and assessment of default and cure {Mote 54.1.1.1).

[b] How the Company defines, calculates and monitors the probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default {(Notes 54.1.1.210 54.1.1.4 )

{e] When the Company considers there hag been a significant increase in credit risk of an exposure {Note 54.1.1.5)

{d] The Campany's policy of segmenting financial assets where ECLis assessed on a coilective basis {Nate 54,1.1.8)

{2) The details of the ECL calculations for Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets (Note 10.1)

54.1.1.1: Definition of default and care

The company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefare Stage 3 [eredit-impaired) for ECL caleulations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on
its cantractual payments. As a part of a gualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the company also considers 3 variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness
to pay. When such events otcur, the company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL
caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include expasure to sectar which is facing some challenging time in terms of demand and supply mismatch, funding
issue that may indicate unlikeliness to pay etr.

54.1.1.2 PD estimation process
Probability of default {PD} is an astimate of the likehhood of default over a given time horizan. In the absence of sufficient history of default the company has primarily sourced the
PO from esternal default reports published by various rating agencies.

54.1.1.3 Exposure at default
The exposure at default {(EAD] represents the gross carrying amaunt of the financial instruments subject to the impairment caleulation,

54.5.1.4 Loss given default

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account among other attributes the mitigating effect of collaterat value at the time itis
experted to be realised and the time value of money, The LGD is computed in the following manner:

a} fn tase of Commercial wehicle and Farm Equipments portfaiio the LGD parcentage is determined based on the recovery experience fram closed cases,

b} In case of Smafl Business loans the LGD percentage is determined based on the estimated value of recovery from the sale of collateral after considering reasonabte haircuts as
determined appropriate by the management where latest fair value of collateral is nat available with the management and

) In case of ather portfolios proxy LGD percentage as prescribed by the regulatory authority {FIRB Approach) is considered.

54.1.1.5 Sigmficant increase in credit risk

Whean determining whather the credit risk has increasad stgnificantly since initial recoguition, the Company considers both quantitative and gualitative information and analysis
based on the Company’s histarical experience, including forward-looking information. The Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost and effort. The company considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit risk when the borrower crosses 30 DRED but is within 50 DED.
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54.1.1.6 Grouping fnancial assets measured on a callective basis

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on an expasure has increased significantly on an individual or collective basis. For the purposes of a coltective evaluation of
impaiwment, loans are grouped an the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking Into account instrurnent type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term
to maturity, industry, geographical location of the borrower and other relevant factors.

The Company corbines these exposure into smaller homogeneous portfelios, based on a combination of internal and external characteristics of the loans, the company has
determined the following poals for the purpose of computing ECL:

al Commereial Vehicle

o1} Farm Equipments

¢) Smaf Business Loans

d} Short-Term Trade Finance

¢} Other Retail Loans

54.1,1.7 Forward looking Adjustmant

A messure of CCLis an unbiased probabiliey weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible autcomes and using a reasonable and suppartable information
that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future econamic conditions. !'n the currenl year the
management has incorporated the impact of forward looking estimate through management overlay.

54.1.2 Analysis of risk concentration

Concentration arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities , or activities in the samme geographical region , or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligation to be simiarly affected by chance in economic, political or ather condition . Concentration indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company 's performance 1o development affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the balance sheet. Additional disclosures for credit quality and the maximum exposure for
credit risk per categorics based on the Company’s internal rating grade and year-end stage dassificatron are further disclosed in Note 10,1,

Industry Analysis

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,281.17 - - 7,281.17
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivaiens H28.25 - - 888.25
Trade and gther receivables 16.26 - - 16.26
Loans - 6.39 32,108.62 Jnlrs.m
Investments 3,563 .44 - 239.66 3,803.1G
Ckhar Financiaf Assats 1,446.28 - - 1,445.28
Total 13,195.41 6.38 32,348.27 45,550.07

financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 750.34 - - 790.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 354.20 - - 394.20
Trade and other receivables 10.69 - - 10.69
Loans - 1.95 26,852,200 26,91.15
Investments 153.89 - 234.66 393.55
Other Financial Assets 1,145.80 - - 1,145.80
Total 2,494.32 2.95 22,131.86 23,635.73

54.1.3 Colateral and other ¢redit anhancements

The amount and type of callateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the acczptability and valuatien of
each type of collateral,

The main types of collateral obtained are, as follows:
a} For corporate lending land, buildings, residential properties and development rights of an under construction property
b} For retait lending, mortgage property mainly residential proparty, vehicle, farm equipment

in tts normal course of business, the Company does net physically repossess properties or other assets in its ratail portfolio, but engages external agents to racover funds, generally
at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surphus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a resuft of this practice, the residential properties under legal repessessian
processes are not recorded on the balance sheet and not treated as non--current assets held for sale,
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The tables oo the following pages shaw the maximum exposure to credit isk by class of finandial asset along with details oe collateral held against expasure.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7.,281.17 790.34

Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents 88E.25 394.20

Recewvabies

(1) Trade recaivables 16.26 10.69

Loans Secured 29,872.07 25,549.07 lland, buildings, residential properties and development
rights of an under construction property, mortgage
property mainly residential property, wehicle, farm
equipment.

Loans Unsecured 2,835.60 1,728.40

{nyestmeants 3,803.10 393.55

Other financial assets 3,446.28 1,145 80

The Company has an Undrawn loans & advances commitmeant amounting ta % Nil {PY: Z Nil)

Cotlaterzal and ather credit enhancements

The below tables provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral held and credit anhancements for stage 3 assets.

Loans
31-Mar-24 6R1.73 297.27 384,46 1428.17
31-Mar-23 400.04 156.79 243.30 299.13

Marrative description of Collateral

Collateral primarily include vehicles purchased by retail loan customers and machinery & property in case of 3mall Business loans customers,

Quantitative Information of Collateral
The Company manitors 1t5 expasure to loan portfolio using the Loan To Value {LTV) ratio, which is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the inan to the value of the
rollateral.
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Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is detined as the risk that the Company will encountar difticulty in mesting obligations associated with tinancial lialilities that are sattled by delivering cash or anothar
financial asset Liguidity psk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable 1o mest its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the
Lirnirg of the cash flows ender both normal and stress eircemstances.

Tao himit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding saurges and has adopted a policy of managing assett with liquidily 1n mind and manitaring future cash flows and
huidicy on regular basis. Thae Company has davaloped intarnal cantrol pracesses and cortingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporatas an assessrrent of axpected cash
flows and the availability of cash, cash equivalants and high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketablz and diverse assets that are sssumed to be casity liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. Tha
Company atsa has committed lines of cradit that it can access to meet liquidity néeds. In accordance with the Campany’s pobicy, the liqudity position 15 assessed undar a variety of

sconarios, giving due conzidaration ta stress factars relating ta both the market in general and specifically ta the Company.

Advances to borrowings ratic

[Fartanins. Ths at March 3L, 2015 [As At argh A1, 2023 1]
[¥ear and { 114,554, | 119 00% ;

Barrawings from banks and financial institutions and issue of debentures are cansidered as important sources of funds ta finance lending to customers. Thay are monitored using the
advantes Lo barrowings ralio, which compares loanz and sduances o customers us a percentage of seevred and ensecured bortawings.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
The tabla belaw summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial assets and labilities as at:

R
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalerts 7,281.17 - - - - 728117
Bank balances other than cash and tash equivalents . 544,27 42303 957.30
Trads Recelvables 16.32 - - - - 15.82
[oans - BB3p.04 297337 2639592 £ EB9.4] 4% 572.64
Iriveestrrenes - - - - 3.803.10 5,803.10
{irher Financial assets - 284,63 330.79 78718 5348 1,456.08
Total undiscaunted Fnancial agsety 7.207.99 5,977.57 9,798.43 22,607.13 12,715.93 63,397.11
Finandal liabilities

Trade Payablasg 1226 66.93 BE.O2 - - 155.21
Debt secorities - 46450 2,067,258 B717.31 B53.90 9,502.%6
Borrewlngs {(Hher than Cebt Securities) - 234997 712660 12,827.60 . 22.503.17
Subnrdinated Liabilities - 14.63 44,03 211263 58278 #5413
Other Financial liahilities - 77494 35.44a 20054 48,51 1,057,413
Total undiscounted financial liahilities 12.26 4,270.97 2.326.34 19,%68.44 1,295.19 34,883.20
Tatal net financial assets [ [liabilities) 7.275.73 1,706.60 47309 7,638.69 1142680 38,5119

As at March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Cash and cash squivalents 790.34 - - - - 750,33
Bank balances ther than rash and cash equivalents - - - 441 45 - 441.45
Trade Receivables - 751 3.83 0.15 - 11.43
Laans - §,265.83% 7,340,458 2 &A4AR517 4387075
Inuestments - - - - 39355 393.55
Orther Finanecial assots - 03 14 17887 662.79 TA3 1,152.23
Total undiscounted fi Jat assets 4034 5,480.48 ¥.623.18 23,876.67 88915 46,659.83
Financial liabilities

Trade Payahles 2156 13113 64,95 07.6a
Debt securitios - 75869 109136 - - 1,851.08
Borrowings (QOther than Debt Secunties) - 2,0a1.14 591111 14,539.11 - 23,482.36
Subordinated Liabilities 14.63 44.04 2SEAL 504 .05 319.53
Other Financial liabifities - 472.45 26.30 173.25 - E72.00
Totat undiscounted financial liatiliti 21.56 3.409.04 8.137.76 14.960.17 504.05 27,132.58
Total nat financhal assets / |lisbilities) 768.78 2,071.44 1514.57) 8916 50 8,285.11 1952725
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Contractual exgiry of cormmitrments
The table befow shaws the contractual expiny by maturity of the Company's cammitments.

As at March 31, 1034

Partitu
Estimated amounl of sontrects capital account - 2740 - - 2730
Towl - - 27.40 3 - 7.4

As ar March 31, 2023

tstimated amaunt of cantracts caprtal account
Total N .
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Disclosure as per R8I circular DOR.NBFC {PD} CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated Novernber 4, 2019
BBl has issued guidetines on Liguidity Risk Management Framawark for Nor-Banking Financiat Companies and Core
Investmert Companies on November 4, 20195, As per the guidelines, the disclosure on liquidity risk as at March 31,

2024 15 as under:

A. Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

2023-24 21 26,252.35 1 NA 88.33%

2022-23 21 21,972.67 | NA 91.86%

Note:

“Significant Counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or atfiliated counterparties
accounting in aggrepate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDOS's, NBFC-Ds tatal liabilities and 10% for ather non-
depusit taking NBFCs.

Total Liabilities bas been caomputed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserves and Surplus.

8. Tog 20 large deposits {amount in % Millions and % of total depaosits)

Nil, The Company s registered with RAI as Non Deposit accepting NBFRC.

C. Tep 10 berrowings [amount in £ Millions & % of total bocrowings* |

2023-24 20,625 27 73.57%

2022-23 15,522 B8 68.68%

D. Funding Concentration based on significant instrumaent f product:
As at March 31, 2024

, : L 5 .

1 Long Term Bank Loans 6 19,441.77 55 A2%
2 Short Term Lgans G 625 2.10%
3 Long Term MCD 2 3,895 13.11%
4 Short Term NCD - - 0.005%
5 Subordmated Debt 205 57926 1.95%
B Pass-through Certificates 2 3,454.46 11.76%
7 Cammercial Paper - - 0.00%
8 Inter Corporate Deposit - - .00%

Total 2334 28,036.21 92.34%

* Tatal Liabilities has bean computed as Tatal Assets less Equity Share Capital less Reserve & Surplus
» # Few hanks has sanctioned multiple facilities.

As at March 31, 2023

ot 1 i oS, ntak: &

b3 Long Term Bank Laans 20 19.052.77 79.66%
2 Shart Term Loans 5 1,128.31 4.72%
3 Long Term NCD 1 500.09 2.09%
4 Short Term NCD 1 596.37 4.17%
5 Subordinated Debt 206 S76.16 2.41%
6 Carnmercial Paper 1 247 .62 1.045%
7 Inter Corporate Deposit 1 100.00 0.42%

Tatal 2308 22,6011.32 94.49%

» Total Liahilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity Share Capital less Reserve & Surplus
» & One bank has sanctioned both long term leans & long term NCD. Four Bank has sanctioned Both long term loans
and short term loans s
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E. 5tock ratios:
As at March 31, 2024

Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 03.00%
Commmercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%
Cormmercial papers as a % of total pubfic fund N.A.
Non-conmvertible debentures [original maturity of less than one year} as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
MNon-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total Assets 0.00%
Non-convertibla debentures {ariginal maturity of less than one year) as a % of public fund N.A.
Cther short-ferm liabiities as a % of total habilities 3B.10%
Other short-term tiabilities as a % of total assets 24429
Other short-term Habilities as a % of public fund WA,
+ A5 on March 31, 2024, Outstanding Commercial Paper & Short Lerm NCDs is Nil

As at March 31, 2023

Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 1.04%
Commmercial papers as a % of tatal assets 0.82%
Cammercial papers as 2 % of total public fund N.A,
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year} as a % of total liabilities 4.17%
Mon-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than one year} as a % of total Assets 3.30%
Non-convertibie debentures {original maturity of less than one year} as a % of public fund N.A,
Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 41.84%
ther short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 33.14%
Other short-term liabilities as a % of public fund N.A,

F. Institutional set up for liguidity risk management:

The company has following Board approved policies for Liquidity Risk Management.
- Asset Liability Management Policy

- Interssy Rate Folicy

- Liguidity Management Framewaork

- Risk Marnagament Policy

ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and investment of surplus

The Asset Liabitity Management Committee, inter alia, reviews the asset liability profile, risk monitaring system,

liguidity risk managemert, funding and capital planning, and contingency planning.

Borrowing program has now expanded to ¢, % 40,228 millions with limits from 26 lenders; 9 P5Bs, 10 private sector
banks, 2 MMC banks and other Fls. Further, Cormmercial Paper [mits to the tune of % 1500 millions are also unutilized

and available.

Further, liquidity buffer of T B,451 millions; un-utiized bank lines — % 1,170 millions and un-encumbered Cash & Bank

batance and Investments — X 7,281 millions;

Funding Review meeting with — Directar, Treasury team , Accounts tearm on monthly basis providing overview of

Liguidity Overview Report — is circulated to Management every month.
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Market Risk

Market risk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctrate due ta changes in marhet variables such as interest rates, aguity prices and

Index mowements, The company cassifies exposures wo market risk into either vrading ar non-wading partiolios and manages each of those portfolios separatety, All the positions

are managed and monitored using sensitivity analyses.

Total market sk Exposure

a. Interest Rate Aisk

G

nancial assels
Cash and cash equivalanls 7,281.17 718117 790.34 79034
Bank bakpces ather than cach and cash equivalents AR3.I5 - 8RR.25 A94.20 - 394.30
Trade Recevabies 16.26 16.26 10.68 10.65
Loans 32,115.01 22,115.01 26,901.15 26,301.15 { Interesk rate risk
Ipvestinenls 380310 330310 39355 393 55 Prive 1isk
{ther Financial assats 144828 1446 28 1,145 8D - L,145.80 | Interest rate risk
‘Total financial assats 45,550.07 - 45550007 2963573 - 25,635.73
Frnancial lizbilities
Trade Payables ES5.2E 155.21 14814 140.14
Deht secunies ?,389.83 - 138383 1, /4408 - 1,/44.08 [ Interast rate risk
Bogrowings |Oher than Debt Securities) 24.067.12 2006712 20,281.08 20,281.08 | Interest sale risk
Suhordinared Liahifitizs 5735 576 SR 5TE.DF | Interest rate risk
Qther Financial liabilities 1,057.73 - 14057.72 739,50 - 739.50 | Interest rate risk
Totai financial liabikities 28,248.35 - 219.249.15 23,480.96 - 3458036

The company uses a mix of cash and barrowings to manage the liguidity & fund requirements of its day-to- day operotions. Further, certam inteeest besring liabilities cormy variable

rerastratas.

For flcating rate liabilities, analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liab#ity outstanding at the end of the reparting period was outstanding for the whole year.

The fedlowing table demonstrates the sensitivity te 3 seasonably possible changs m interzst rates on that portion of Inans and borrowings affected. Wath all other varables held
consiant, the compeny’s prafit belure ax is affected through the impact on Boatiog rate borrowings, 35 follows:

Interast rate sanskivity

Bank Barrawings

As at March 31, 2024
As av March 31, 2023

IR
INR

1201 .08)
[138 50)

201.06
138.50

b. Price Risk

The Company's exposure to price risk arses fram investments classified in the balance sheet at Luir value throogh profit & loss. Prive tisk s the 1isk thal fair value or future
cashflows af a financial instrument will flucteate becavse of changes in the tevel of individuat investment in prices of financial Instruments. Currently the Campany's expasure to

price risk is nod material.
Distlosure of Interest as per Ind AS 112

Oisclosure of interesy in unennsolidated stouctured antity

i. Mame of the entity

EARC TRUST 5C -335%

1. Principal place of business

Edelweiss House, Off C5T Road, Kalina Santacruz [Easth, Mumbai -
400097,

3, Nature EPY of Asset Reconstruction Company

4, Size Security Receipts Bszued - T 214,29 Mitlion (% 80,74 Millicn ouststanding
as an Marcn 31, 2024}

5, Activity Acyuire the loan and other tinancial asset for the purpose of carying the

ackivity of asset yeconstruction or any ather form of resalution

f. Maode of Tinancing

Censribierion fram Security Receipts halder

7. Carrying amaunt of assets in relation to fnerests in EARC Trust SC-435

% 30,74 Million [Refar Note 11 fnvestmems)

2, Carrying amount of liabilities in relation to inerasts in EARC Trust 5C - 435

T 363 Milllon |Refer Note 23 Other Financal Liabillties - Part of Othar
Payables)

9, Maximuem exposuns o 10ss s eqirivalent 1o ivestment outstamding as on given date

T 2024 il

Mote: As 3t March 31, 2024, Coinpany s holding 85% amuounting o 8374 Milllan [PY - T 153.89 Million) of secuedy receipts issued by EARC Trust SC - 435 and balance 15%
seeurlty receipes amaurding te T 14.25 Milflan [Py - 2 2718 Million] is held by Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction Company Lid. Howewver, Campany will not have any power in

remgval of trustee, appaintment f new trustee and 0 the adminiztration of the trust. Hence, Company need nat consolidate LART Trustin its boaks,




56

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

ctal,

Notes ta the St Financis| S o1 the year ended March 31, 2024
fafl amounts in 3w Mlhons uafess othenvse stoted]

Transfer of Financial assets

Assipament Transacton:

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company fas sold loans and advances measured at amortised cost a5 per assipnment deal. Ay per the terms of these deals, sinue
substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transferred Lo the buyer, the assets bave been derecognised from the Comgany’s balance sheet, 1o the extent of share

of Assignee.

The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future business plan, the company business

model rernains ta hoid the assets for collecting contrastuaf eash flows.

The table below summarises tha carrving amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain on derecognition, per type of asset.

Taans CEL TR ; 4t Marcle 3T, 2024 :
Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 4,415.24 5,381.62
[ray 1 gain on derecognition of financat instrurments under amertised cast category {A) 906.89 1,186.25
Unwinding on account of the actual excess Interest spresd realised and veversal of excess interest 70223 33717
spread on forectosed loans (8)

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amartised cost category (A - 8) 204.66 #39.08

Ets unwinding 1s impacted J higher at ach repofting date due 1o the forectasure of loans compared to estimated receipts of futire income, any impact of increase f decrease in
intarest rata by the company on floating rate loans giwen to customers, and the change in interest rate by assignee hank. The management is of the view that netting off of
unwinding of EIS against day t gain on derecognition of financial instrumants rather than netting ic off against fnterest incarme provides a better understanding af the financial

impact of the transacticn.

Disclosure as per REI Mater Direction BOR_STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated Septamber 24, 2021 for transfer of loan exposures

12,804

3,711

Mumber of loany 5,097 4,382
Aggregate amaunt (X In millcans) 3,302 81 4,604.56 1.116.43 1,727.06
sate consideration (% In millions} 3,302.81 4,654.50: 1,116.43 1,727.06
Number of transactions ] 113 7 7
Werghted average ramaining maturity {in months) 93,56 £3.74. 278 45.91
Weighted average holding period after origination {in manths] 13.12 15 00 5.45 3.84
Retention of beneficial economic interest {averags) 10.00% 13.00% 20.00% 20.00%
Coweage of tangible security coverage 100.00% 106.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Rating wise distribution of rated loans WA HA| Na A
Murnber of instances (transactions) where transferar has agreed to replace the transferred loang il Nil Ml Mif
Nurmber of transferrad loans replaced Nil Wil Nil il

23

113

Additional consideration realized in respect of atcounts transferred In garlier years (% in millicns}

No. of accounts MA 105
Agpregate principal utstanding of loans transferred (T millions) NA 79.67 161.71 134 45
Weighted average residual tenor of the [oans transferred [in months) NA B5.51 1924 38.84
Net buok value of toans trensferred [at thi time of transfer) {2 1 mitlions) NA 43.82 158,51 119.60
Aggregate consideration {T In millions) NA 31383 252.10

A HA

542

Mumber of loans

Aggregate armount {¥ in millions) 22660 NA
Sale consideration % Inmillions) 326.50 NA
Mumber of fransackions 1 MNA
Weighted ayerage remaining maturity [in months) 155 .64 NA
Weighted average holding period after orgination {in months} 18480 NA
Retentlon of baneficial economit interest Laverage) 90008 NA
Coveraga of tangible security coverage 100 3% A
Kating wise distribution of mted fgans A NA
Number af instaneces {transactians) where bransferor has agreed ta replace the transferred loans Hil il
Mumber of transferred loans replaced Hil Mil
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Emplayee Stack Optian Plan

for the year anded March 31, 2024

The Buard ol Directors tuwk the decsion to intruduce Adani Employes Stuck Oplion Plan, 2020 [heieingfter talled “ESOP 2020} at the meeting held on June 28, 2020, The sharehobders appiowed
it at the Annuat General Meeting held on September 28, 2020. The plan provides for the issuance of stock aptions to seniar employees. Under tha plan, the Company has isseed bwo sarfes of
aptions with different vesting peried. Under bath the series, the options vest noet caslicr than 1 year and net later than 4 years frem the date of the grant.

WA

Ciptions appraved ta be issued as FaOPs

Cale of Erant NA
Options granted NA
Methad of Settlement MA

** Node: As parthe resohition passed in tha Anard of Rirectors meeting held an darch L4, 2024, the Baard prescribed a cash settlement against all unexercised vesled sptians by the Company in
terms of and pursuant to the Restatad ERUP Scheme 2020, Lipon cash setttement of unexercised vested aptions on March 27, 2524, the Company paid % 15395 Million tothe elipible employees
for semtement OF the total campensation pad ob sattlemant, 4 805/ Million has baen adjusted against retained sarnings as repurchase of equity mtarest in line wrth Ind A% 102 Bpen paymants,

the ESOF Schowme 2620 was terminated,

ils of

Uplions approved to be issusd as ESOFs 3;:;‘99

Date ol Grant (etoher 3, 2020 [ January 1, 2022

Diptians granted 334,645 276,471 | 155,130
Wethed of Settlement Equity

. Reconciliation of Options

Options Quistandiog al the beginning of the year

ptons Granted

Optrons Exercised

Options Reinstated

plions apsad

Options Seithad

131

11652104

(145,673) 273

Opkions O at the end ofthe year

(175,572}

Qptions Dutstanding atthe heginming of the year

216,021

180,562

193]

Optlons Granted

155,130 279

Options Ererelsed

Uptiohs Hainstabed

Oplions Lapzed

191

{11,457 279

Options Settled

|10.598)

{19,352]

Options Dutstanding at the end of the year

125,372

168,210

191

143,673 ra

k. Balasce gutstanding at the end of the year are a5 follows -

Vested Options

Servics |

Saras ||

Series [

Unvested Dptions

Series |

Seres Il

Serles I

Vasted Optians
Sories? = 175,372 -
Series Il 11680
Sees il 47,412
Unvested Optians
Serjesf - 1931
Sernies b 57,530 191
Sernies Il 96,261 73
!
§
..-/.‘"-



ADANI CAFITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Noles to tha

Finandial

(A prmounts i $an Millions unless efterwite statad)

d average

ining #fe of the ESOP cutstandimg

Tat the year ended March 31, 2024

Saries |

Saries ||

Series I

Series |

Serizs i

.17

{.B5

t has been recogni

dl 2z an

and inchuded in "Note 34 - Employee enefit expenses’ and total carrying amount at the ond of the year.

Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transaction

C3eryIng amaounk 3t the gnd of the year

%32

. Fair value of the options granted

As5 at March 31, 2024

Share Frice on the date of Grant |INR|

Exefclse Price {INR)

M2

hA

scholes [INR)

Fxpected Vo latility (%} nNA NA A
Life of options granted [yeass) NA NA TR
Hisk free interett ate %} NA ™A A
Eqprectedd dividend rate (94} A NA M
Fair value of options as per black NA NA NA " NA Na A A

As ol March 31, 203

Shate Price on the date of Grant [INR) 361.85 361,55 361,85 6195 275.00 279.00 Z79.00
Exzreise Price iNRY 18100 151.00 191.00 191.00 37900 27n.00 2FE.00
Expacted Vodatdlity {6} 33.22% 50,730 553.23% 49.71% 5E.465% 55.01% 53.93%
Life of opkiens granted {years) 3.00 3.50 3.00 4.00 .50 3.00 .50
Risk fres interwst sake (%) 1.E6% 5.06% 4.B6%. 5.24% 4 B8% S.11% 5.32%
Expected dividend rako (%) 0.0 0.00 0.0 .00 1, [H} 0.4l 000
Fairualus of aptions as pec blask 20,05 225,00 270,05 30,36 110.41 18 g7 12279
schales (MR}

Rigk free interest rate
The ritk-free interest rate being considered fof the caltulation is the interest eate applicable for matrdy 2qual to the expected Ide of the options baszd nn the rr-yield cive for Government
Secusities.

Eupecied Iife of options

Tirne b tdatu rity / Expacted Lide of options e the period for which the Campany expects the nptions to be lve. The minimum lde of 3 stock option is the minimum period before which the apbons
cannot be exercised and the maximum life 15 the perind afrer which the nptions cannot be suercised. The expacted |ife of ar award of stock options shait take nte account the following factors —

1. The expected life must at teast include the vesting period,

i, The aversge kengths of time of sinvlar @ants have remained outsianding i the past. IF the company dues not bave a sufficiently long histary of siock oplion gramts, the experience of an
apprepnately Lemparable peer proup may be taken into consideration.

fii. The expected life of stock options should not be less than half of the ecercise peniod of the stock optiens issued until and wnless the same is supported by histerieal evidences with respect m
stock apbions issued by the company callier.

A wrighted ayerage of vests has heen catculated to arrive at the wvalue of the oplichs granted.

Enpected polatility

Wolatilfty is a measure of the amount by which & proce has fuctuated o s expecled e Auetuate duning a period. Since each vest has heen considered as a separate grant, we havae considered the
volatillty fos periads, corrasponding ta the expected fves of different vasts, prior to the grant date. The Fair value of an option &5 very sensitive to this varizble. Higher the volazility, higher is the
Fair valun. The mtionak being, the more vofatile a stock i, the mare is ts potantial tsgo up {of come dewn], and the mare is the prababilty Lo gafn feam the mowement in the price Accordingly,
an aption to buy & highly velstile stack iz more valuable than the one to buy a less volatile stock, for the probakility of gaining is lesses in the latter case.

Expected dividend yield
Expected dividend yield has heen calculated based on the dividend declared for 1 financial year prior to the date of giant. Lhe dividend yield has hean derved by dividing the dividend per share by
the market price per share on the date of grant. T .
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58.3

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standaione Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{AIl grmounts in T in Miflions untess otherwise stated)

R&1 Disclosures

The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction ~ Reserve Bank of india {Non-Banking Financial
Company — Scale Based Reguiation} Directions, 2023 issued by RBI and as amended fram time to time.

Capital to Risk Asset Ratio [CRAR)

CRAR (%) 3557%

CRAR - Tier | Capital (%6} 34.16% 17.59%
CRAR - Tior || Capitat {%) 1.41% 2.69%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier - 1} Capital 576.16

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt Instruments

379.26

Investments

March 33,2024

{a} Value of Investments

{l} Gross value of investments

(a) In India

3,603.10

{a) Qutside India

{{l) Provisions far Depreciation

{a} In india

{a) Qutside India

{lii} Net value of investments

{2} in India

3,803.10

39355

{a) Qutside India

{t) Movements of provisions held towards impairment an investments

{l) Opening balance

{1} Add - Provisions madc during the year

{11} Less : Write-off/ Written- back of axcess provisions during the year

{IV) Closing batance

Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS}

March 31, 2024

{1} The notional principal of swap agreemants

(i1} Losses which would be incurred if counterpartics failed to fulfil their
obligations under the agreements

{1} Coliateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps

(IV) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps.

{V} The fair value of the swap bogk




ADANI| CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Afl amounts in T in Millions unless otherwise stated)

b. Exchange Traded Interest Rate {IR} Derivative

E :'.Asat_ - - _':_A_sat'
ptri S T e ‘March 31,2024 . . - Narch 31, 2023
{1} Notionat principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken -
during the year {instrument wise}
{Il) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding - -
{Instrument-wise)
{HI} Motional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding - -
and not "highly effective” {instrument-wise)
{Iv} Mark-to-market value of exchange traded |R derivatives outstanding and - -
not "highly effective” {instrument-wise} .

Particulars

¢.  Disclosures on Risk exposure in derivative,
i Qualitative Disclosures Not Applicable

it  Quantitative Disclosures

March 31, 2023

{I) Derivatives {Notional Principal Amount) -
{l1) Marked to Market Positions {1} - -
{a) Assets - ] -
{by Liability - -
{i1f) Credit exposure - -
{} Unhedged exposure - -

58.4 Securitisation

CAsat cvl
March 31,2023 -

{1} No of 5PVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions

{It} Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored 3,516.46 -

{Il}) Total amount of exposure retained by the NBFC towards the MRR as on 511.63
date of balance sheet
{a) Off-balance sheet exposure towards credit enhancements

- First Loss -
- Others -
{b} On batance sheat axposures towards credit enhancements 511.63 -
- First Loss 468.58
- Dthers 43.05

(V) Amount of exposures ta securitisation transactions other than MRR - -

{aj Off-balance sheet exposure towards cradit enhancements - -
(i) Exposure to own securitisations - -
{it) Exposure to third party securitisations -

{b} On balance sheat exposures towards credit enhancements - -
(i} Exposure to own securitisations - -
{il} Exposure to third party securitisations - -




58.5

58.6

58.7
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{AN arnownts in T in Milfions unfess otherwise stated)

Details of financial assets sold to securitisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction.

L “‘March31,2024 - |- March 31,2023

{1l No. of accounts - 223.00
{Il] Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts sold to 5C/ RC 296.59
{I1}) Aggregate consideration - 252.10
{1V} Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in - NA
earlier years

{V) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value - 44.49

Details of Assignmeant Transactions undertaken by NBFCs

: : March 31,2023 .
No. of accounts 8,208 17,166
Aggregate value {net of provision) of accounts assigned 4,419.24 6,381.62
Apgregate consideration 4,419.24 6,381.62

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in
earlier years

Aggregate gainfloss over net book value

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sofd

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:

{I} No. of accounts purchased during the year

{I1} Aggregate outstanding

{I11) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year

{IV) Aggregate outstanding

Details of non-performing financial assets sold:

(1} No. of accounts sold

33

(1) Aggregate outstanding 79.67 134.88
[} Aggregate consideration received 39.83 114.65
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nbotes 1o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al amounts in % in Millions unfess atherwise stated)

Exposure to Real estate sector

Particulars

Lo Asat o
" March31,2024° .

i\_iarch 31,2023

‘Asat

Category

2} Direct exposure

{i} Residential mortgage:

Lending fully secured by mortgage on residential property that is or will be

occupied by the barrower or that is rented. Exposure would also include nond

fund based (NFB) limits

6.39

8,95

{ii} Commercial real estate:

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office building,
retall space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or ware house
space, hotels, land acquisitions, development and construction, etc.}

Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB} limits.

{iit) Investment in mortgage backed sacurities (MBS) and other securitised
exposures:

{a) Residential

{b} Cormmaercial real estate

b} Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and
Housing Finance Companies,

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

6.39

8.95

Exposure to Capital Market

Particuiars

(i} direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is
not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

(11} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or an
clean basis to individuals for investrment in shares {including IPOs / ESOPs),
canverfible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-orientad
mutual funds;

{iii] advances for any other purposes where shares or convertibie bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken
a5 primary security;




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone financial 5Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All gmounts in T in Miftions uniess otherwise stated}

{w) advances for any other purposes to the axtent securad by the coilateral
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
eguity oriented rmutual funds te. where the primary security other than
shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

{v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

{vi} loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promater's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resaurces

{vii] bridge loans to companieas against expacted equity flows [ issues;

{vii] Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of
primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds

ix} Financing to stockbrakers for margin trading

®) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:

(i) Category |

(i} Category I

{iii} Category H!

Total Expasure to Capital Market

58.10 Financing of Parent Company Product

Ul aren 3152024

T AsatT o
- March'31, 2023

Details of financing of parent company products if any

58.11 Details of Single Borrower timit {SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Company

The Prescribed exposure limit of credit and investment concentration of single party and single group of parties has not exceeded

during the year 2023-24 and 2022-23.

58.12 Unsetured Advances

As at
-~ March

31,2024 "

TR

A" ‘March 33,2023 -

Amount of unsecured advances given against rights, licenses, authorizations
etc.

Amount of advances given against intangible securities such as charge over
the rights, licenses, authority etc.
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All omounts in < in Mitions unfess otherwise stated)

Registration from Other Financial Sector Regulatars
oo Asat. ot UYL Asattoo
"Marchi31,2024- .-} . March 3%, 2023
1. Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India IRDA IRDA
- Registration Number CADG28 CAQE28
- Registration Date December 31, 2021 December 31, 2021
- Registration Validity December 30, 2024 December 30, 2024

Penalty

Particulars .

: e Mard‘31'2024 S

. ‘March 31,2023

Penalty if any levied by Regulator

Total

Credit Rating

“ Match 31,202

Nature of borrowing Rating / Qutiook Rating f/ Qutlook
CRISEL CRISIL
Short Term Bank Loans - CRISIL CRISIL Al+/Watch Negative CRISIL Al+
Long Term Bank Loans - CRISIL CRISIL AA-/Watch Negative CRISIL AA-/Stable
Commercial Paper - CRISIL CRISIL Al+/Watch Negative CRISIL Al+
Non - Convertible Debentures {Short Termj - CRISIL CRISIL A1+/Watch Negative CRISIL Al+

Non - Convertible Debentures (Lang Term] - CRISIL

CRISIE AM-fWatch Negative

CRISIL AA-/Stable

Subaordinated Debt (Long Term) - CRISIL

CRISIL AA-/Watch Negative

CRISIL AA-/Stable

Comrnercial Paper - ICRA

ICRA Al+

Note: Company's CRISIL Long Term Rating for Bank Loans, Non - Canvertible Debentures and Subordinated Deht has changed from AA-

10 A+ w.e.f. 8th April 2024

Provisions and contingencies

Particulars "
1. Pravisions for de preciation on investment - -
2. Provisions made towards income tax 185.8D 123.90
3. Provisions towards NPAs* 140.53 57.26
3. Provisions for standard assets# 75.81 82.54
4. Dther provision and contingencies
Gratuity 10.46 8.15
Compensated absence (24.11) 2275
Depreciation / Amortization on PPE / Intangible Assets 103.88 92.19
Provision for expensas 150.41

* Represents impairment foss aflowance on stage 3 loans.

# Represents impairment loss allowance on stage 1 and stage 2 foans.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Al omounts in Tin Miflions unfess atherwise stofed)

Special Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934

Statutory Reserve

N - March 31, 2024 - ~March31, 2023 . -
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory reserve as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 24765 66.29
1934
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1} {vitij of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken in - -
to account for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section 45-1C of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Additian / appropriation / withdrawals during the year
Add:
a) Amgunt transferred as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 119.17 181.36
1934
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1} {viii) of Income Tax Act, 1361 taken in - -
to account for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section 45-iC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1534
Less:
aJ Amount appropriate as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, - -
1934
b} Amount of withdrawn from special reserve ufs 26(1} {vii1) of Income Tax - -
Act, 1961 taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve under
Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1334
Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory reserve as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 366.82 247.65
1534
b] Amount of special reserve u/fs 36{1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 19561 taken in - -
to account for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section 45-1C of the
Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934
Total 366.82 247.65

Note: During the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from reserves

Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking / holding NBFCs}

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors

- Miarch'31,2023 "

Percentage of Deposits of twanty largest depositors to total deposits of the
MBFC

Concentration of Advances

Pacticulars

Asat -

" March 31, 2023

Total Loans to twenty {fargest borrowers

1,841.51

737.98

Percentage of Loans to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the
NBFC

5.63%

2.71%
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Alf emounts in T in Milfions unfess otherwise stoted)

Concentration of All Exposure (including off - balance sheet exposures)

R TR ~ March 31,2024 - © Marehi 31, 2013
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1,841.51 737.98
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total 5.63% 2.71%
exposure of the NBFC on borrowers / customers.
Concentration of credit impaired ioans
Particulars T Asa T A

Rt Sl ska - Marth 38,2024 . March 31,2023

Total Exposure to top four credit impaired accounts

40.34

26.53

Movement of Credit-Impaired Loans under Ind AS

Particuars .

March 31, 202

{1} Net credit impaired assets to Net laans (%)

1.20%

0.90%

{11} Movement of Credit impairad toans under Ind-A5 {Gross)

{a} Opening Balance A00.04 285.82

{b) Additions during the year 5272.76 356.68

{c} Reduction during the year {246.07) {240.46)

{d} Closing balance £81.73 400.04
(I} Movement of Net impaired loans

{a) Opening Balance 243.30 184.34

{b) Additions during the year 290.91 215,12

{c} Reduction during the year {145.75} {156.16}

{d} Closing balance 384.46 243.30
{IV} Movement of tmpairment lass allowance on credit impaired loans

{a} Opening Balance 156,74 95,48

{b} Additions during the year 236.85 141.56

{c) Reduction during the year {96.32) {34.30)

{d) Closing balance 297.27 156.74

Overseas Assets

March 31, 2023 ..

Overseas assets

Off Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored [which are requirad to be consolidated as per accounting nerms)

Pa

Theet

P march '3, 2023

Damestic

{verseas




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
fafl amounts in T in Millions unless otherwise stated)

58.25 Adwverse remarks

Adverse remarks if any given by Regulator “ .

58.26 Expenditure in foreign currency

R L e e e G o March31,2024 -0 1T Narch31,2023
Foreign Currency Transaction 3.85 1.96
Receivable and Payable outstanding in foreign currency -
58.27 Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs {Reserve Bank) dated September 29, 2016
MR PTTR . - March31,2024 - | March31,2023. -
Amount of Fraud detected during the year 8.57 0.47
58.28 Area of Operations
Particulars ~  ©" ©0h TS S o e el T (Dl
Area and Country of Operations India
Joint venture partners with regard to joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries Nit
58.29 FPostponements of revenue recognition: Current year: Nil (Previous year: Nil}
58.30 Remuneration to non-executive Directors
T | Forthevear ended . | For the year ended
ST T e e s D March 31, 2024 s Morch 31,2023 .
Nr. Rajender Mohan Malla (Independent Director) 1.20 1.20
Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran (independent Director} 1.20 1.20

58.31 Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 50 - Related Party Disclosure.

58.32 Nat Profit or Loss for the period, prier period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no material prior period items other than those disclosed in standalone financial statements. There has been no change in
accounting policies followed other than those disclosed in the standlaone financial statements,

58.33 Intra-group exposures
The Company does not have any intra-group exposures in the current year as well as previous year except as disclosed in Note 50 -
Related Party Disclosure.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[AN smaunts in T in Mitfens unfess etherwise stated)

58.34 Sectoral exposure

" Ag at March 31,2024 . “A% ot Miarch 31, 3023 ..

{Fotal Exposire (includes] “Total Exposire .- |-
{Total Bx ; i

N T exposure} - O .
L. Agriculture & altied activities i0,512.20 184,94 8,727.01
2. MShE 13,222.68 333.23 11,281.37
3. Corporate Borrowers 167778 5.65 77722
4, Services - - - - - -
5. Unsecured Persanal Loans 1,095.18 24,60 2.14% ©43.88 9.38 0.99%
6. Auto Loans 6,185.82 128.31 2.07% 5,547.98 83.14 1.50%

7. Other Persanal Leans - - - . .

£8.35 Disclosure of Lomplaints

a. Complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Complaints received by the NBFC from its custamers
1. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
2. No. of cemptamts recewved during the year _ B4 111
3, Numnber of complaints disposed during the year B4 111

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4, Wurnber of complaints pending at the end of the year -
Maintainable complaints ceceived by the NBFC from Dffice of Ombud

5. Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman o 23 7
5.1 Of5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by OFfice of Ombudsman 22 7
22 7

5.2 OF5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation / mediation / advisaries issued by Office of Ombudsman

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC - -
6. Mumber of Awards unimplementaed within the stipulated time {other than thase appeated) - B

b. Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

As at March 31, 2024

Loan dosure / Foreclosure - 14 -67.35% - -
Dhfficulty in cperations 10 100.00%

Lewy of charges without prior natice / excessive charges / - 37 270.60% - -
foreclosure chargas

Others / Statements - 21 59.62% - -
Total - 84 -24.32% - -
As at March 31, 2023

Loan closure f Fareclosure - 49 B0O.00% - -
Difficulty in operations - - 0.00% - -
Levy of charges without prior notice / excessive charges / - 10 0.0054 - -
foreciosure charges

(Others / Statements - 52 -1 89% - -
Tatal - 111 58.57% - -
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Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India natification DOR (N8FC).CC.PD.Ng 109 /22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 pertaining to Asset Classification as per RBi

Norms

As at March 31, 2024

Liassification as per
" RBINorms

Asset

Bsset Classification 35

- Gross Caning. | (¢
| ot a5 per e s ve

Nt Ca magAmuunt

_ | orterence eean
bd AS 109 provisions

and RACP fiorms

. oy ‘B3) - {SE349) rEaer
Parforming Assals
Standard Stage 1 30,601.08 199.29 30,401.79 12298 76,31
Stage 2 142486 596,10 1,328,786 19.67 76,43
Sabtotal for Perfarming Assets 32,025.94 295,39 31,730.55 142 .65 152.74
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 546,62 162.16 3B445 63.07 4904
Doubtfil - up to 1 year 3tage 3 93.44 93.44 . 4210 51.34
1to 3 years Stage 3 26,91 2691 - 2083 5.9E
Maore than 3 years Stage 3 545 5.45 - 545
Lass Stage 3 9.31 9,31 - 431 -
Subtotal for NPA 581,73 297.27 384.46 140.86 156.81
Other  Hems  such  as  guarantees,  loan Stage 1 i ) i
commidments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind - -
AS 109 bt not covered under eurrent tneome Stage 2 _ _ - . _
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Stage 3 . _ _ _ _

[{RACP} norms
Subtotal for other items

3270267

As at March 31, 2023

" Asser Clagsification as per -
R 1]

{Aisset Classification as].
© perind AS 309 . {8

Net tarwlnig Amount’

T {10318
Performing Assels
Standard Stage 1 26,063.02 171.25 25,891.77 10428 B5.37
Stage 2 B14.41 48,33 76603 41,27 7.06
Subtntad for Performing Assets 25,877.42 210.58 26,657.85 145.15 73.43
Non-Performing Assets [MPA)
Substandard Sage 2 35099 i17.69 24330 39.65 75.04
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 2 17.60 17.60 - 545 1218
1to 32 yoars Stage 2 20.08 2098 - 12.00 2498
More than 3 years Stage 2 - - - - -
Lass Stage 3 0.47 0.47 - 3.47 -
Subrtotal for NPA 403004 155.74 243.37% 57.57 99.17
Other  Ttems  such  az guarantees,  loan Stage 1 - - - - u
commitrnients, etc, which are in the seope of Ind Stage 2 - - - - -
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Staga 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for other items - - - - -
BYLY 104, . B6.37
010,04 - 24530 51,5 99.17.
I 2IAr | 26,901,158 '203.72 17260
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B2.1

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standal

Financial 5

(A amourts in Tin Miffians unless otherwise stated)

for the year endad March 31, 2024

Disclosure as per circular DOR.Mo.BP.EC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 issued by RA| dated August 6, 2020 for Resofution Framewark for COVID-1%-refated Stress far the half year
ended March 21, 2024

Personal [oang

Lorporate boans

COf which M5MEs - - - - .
Ohers 143.30 14 36 .53 11,11 117.30
Total 143.30 14.36 0.53 1£.11 117.30

infarmation relating to Restructured Accounts in accordanee with RB| notification DOR,No. BP.BC/2/21.04,048,/2020-21 dated ALgust 8, 2020

[oremem Aot MGTEh 31 2020,
Mo of Arcounts Restructured 30 12E
Amnaunt 117.30 185,98
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64

&85

65.1

55.2

65.3

65.4

65.5

65.6

65.7

55.8

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to the Standaloane Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
fAH amounts in T in Miflions valess otherwise stated)

The Company has maintained sufficient capital and liguidity pasition and it witl continue the same going forward.,

In 3ssessing the recoverabtlity of Ioans and receivables, the Company has considered internal and external sources of information, including credit reports,
economic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these financial results.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code’) relating to employes tenefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
Septernber 2820. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effact has not been notified and the
final rulesfinterpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Cade when it comes into effect and will record any related
impact in the pericd the Code becomes effective.

Other Additionz] Regulatory Information

Title deeds of Immovable Praperties not held in name of the Company
The Company does not have any immovahble properties where title deeds are not beld in the name of the company.

Loans and Advancas

There are no lpans or advances in the nature of lpans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013), either severally ar jointly with any oiher persan that are:

{a) repayable on demand, or

(b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has bean initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

Security of current assets against borrowings
The Company has been sanctioned warking capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current
assets af the Company. The quarterly returnsystatements filed by the Campany with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

Wiltut Defautter
The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off,

Ragistration of charges or satisfaction of chargas with Registrar of Companies (RCC)
The Company does nat have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Utilisation of horrowed funds and share premium

a) During the year, the company has not advanced or lpaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entiy(ies), tnctuding foreign entities {Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shalk:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Uitimate Beneficiaries),
ar,

(ii} provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

b} During the year, the Company has received funds from z foreign entity with the understanding that the Company shafl directly utilise such funds for the
arquisition of 100% equity stake of its erstwhite fellow subsidiary. Details of the transactions are as under:




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{al amounts in % in Mithions upfess otherwise stated)

ils of receipt of funds

Dat

BCC Atlantis It Pte. Ltd. 1,9832.70 | 27-Mar-24

Details of utilisation of funds

Acquisition of 100% 27-Mar-24

aquity shara capital

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 1,582.70

Alse, the Management of the Company declares that relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 19599 (42 of 1998) and Companies Act has
heen complied with for above mantioned transaction and the said transaction is not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003}

Further, during the year, the Conpany has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), ncluding fareign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shal provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

65.9 Undisclosed Income

The Compariy have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

65.10 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Cornpany has not raded or invested in Crypto cureency or virtual Currency during the current financial year and any of the previpus financial years.

65.11 Financial Ratios

: A ; Rarcia) Chat aon i

1 jLiguidity coverage ratio (%) Not applicabie as per RBI guidelines

2 !Debt - Equity ratio [Refer Note 1 below) 1.68 360 -53%) Infusion of additional
equity share  capital
during the year

3 MNet Worth [Refer Note 2 below] 16,645.56 6,281.81 185%] Infusion of additional
equity share  capital
during the year

4 [Total debts to total assets ratio (Refer Note 3 0.60 0.7 -19%] NA

below)

5 Gross Stage 3 asset (%) (Refer Note 4 below) 2.08% 1.47% A42%1Increase in NPA assets
during the year

& [Met Stage 3 asset (%) (Refer Mote S below) 1.19% 0.90% 31%

7 CRAR (%] {calculated as per RB! guidelines) 35.57% 20.27% 75%(Infusion of additional
equity share capital

B |Tier- | CRAR {%) 34.16% 17.59% 34% | during the year

9 Tier- || CRAR (%) 1.41% 2.69% ~18%

Note:

1. Debt-equity Ratio = Total Debt [Debt Securities + Subordinated Liabilitics + Borrowings other thar debt securities} / Net worth

2. Met Warth = Equity share capital + Other eguity

3. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt (Debt Securities 1 Subordinated Liabilities + Borrowings other than debt securities) f/ Total assets
4. Gross Stage 3 ratio = Gross Stage 3 loans f Gross Loans

L. Met Stage 2 ratio = {Gross stage 3 loans - impairment lass allowance for Stage 3) / (Gross Loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3}




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Alf amounts in % in Millions unfess otherwise stated)

66 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
to the existing standards applicable to the company.

67 Upon change of majority shareholding and control, the Company has obtained requisite approval / NOC from Shareholders and the Reserve
Bank of India for change of name. The Company has submitted apptication for approval of Central Government for change of name pursuant to
section 13(2} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 29{2} and 33A of the Companies {Incorporation) Rules 2014 by submitting Form No. INC-24
with Ministry of Corporate Affairs on April 24, 2024, The Company is currently awaiting approval from the Central Government for the
proposed name change.

68 Previous year’s information have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current period’s classification/disclosure.

This is the Standalone Motes referred to in our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the 8oard of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ~ Adani Capital Private Limited
'itf}ll Firm Regisiration Number: 002391C/N500063 CIN: UB5990G)2016PTC093692

e
e \ ‘

. \JXPQV ’ Somnchin Nangas
preet Singh Bedi Mr. Gaurav Gt?/ Ms. Suruchi Nangia

artner Maonaging Dirctor & CEQ Director

Membership No: 601788 DIN: 01669109 DIN: 07901622
L oDE
M
T
Mr. Viral Shah Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A45158
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024 Date: May 29, 2024




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

SCHEDULES T4 THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2024

Annexyre |

(As required in terms of Paragraph 31 of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of india {Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based
Regulatian} Directions, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhsz)

AMouUnt Arnount
Particulars Outstanding Overdue
Liabilities side
{1) Luans and advances avaided by the
nan banking financial company inctusive of interest acorued
therean but not paid:
(a} Debentures : Secured 3R,954 -
Unsecored - -
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b)Y Deferred Credits . -
(c) Term Loans {including loan repayable on demand) 200,671 -
(dY tnter-corparate loans and bormowings - -
(e) Commercial Paper - -
(f) Other Loans - Subordinated Debt 5,793 -
[f} Other Loans - Pass-through Certificates 34,945 -
Assets side Arnount
DQutstanding
{2) Break-up of Leans and Advances inchyding bills
receivables [other than those included in (4) below}:
[a} Secured 298,721
(bY Unsecured 28,356

(3} Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counling towards Assel Finance activicics

(1) Lease assets incfuding fease rentals voder sundry debiors

{a) Hinancial lease ’

(b} Operating lease _
(i) Stock an hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

(a) Assets an hire -

(b} Repossessed Assets -
{1t} other toans counting tawards Asset Finance activities

fa) Laans where assets have heen repossessed

(b} Loans other than {a} above -

{4} Break-up of tnvestments :
Current Invastments

1. Quoted :
[iY Shares : (a) Fquity
(b] Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iif} Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others {please specify)




2. Unguoted
(i) Shares : (a) Equity
{b) Preference
(ii} Dehentures and Bonds
{iii) Units of mutuat funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v} Dthers

FParticulars

Long Term investments :
1. Quated :
(1} Shares : (a) Equity
(b) Prefarence

{ii) Debentures and Bands
(iii¥ Lnits of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v} Others {please spacify)

2. Unguoted :
() shares ; (a) Equity

{b) Preference
{iiy Debentures and Hands
{iti} Lnits of mutual funds
{iv] Governmeant Securities
{v) Ofhers - Security Receipts

{5} Borrower groug-wise classification of assets financed as in (2} and (3) above
Piease see Note 2 helow.

Categary

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
{b) Companies in the same group
{c) Other relaked parties

2. Otherthan related parties

Amount
Outstanding

Bo7

Amount, net of provisions

Total

(&) Investor group-wise ¢lassification of alb nvestments
{current and fong term} in shares and securities

{both quoted and unquotead);

Please see note 4 above:

Category

1. Related Parties

(8} Subsidiaries

{b} Companies in the same group
{c) Dther related parties

2. Qtherthan related parties
Tatal

Secured Ursecurad Tatal
- 12,500 12,500
298,721 15856 314577
298,721 28,358 327,077
Warket Yalue / Hook Value

Break up ar fair (Net of

value or NAV Provisions)

34,82/ 34827

3,204 3,204

28,01 38,031

s



(7] Qther information
Particulars
(i} Gross Mon-Performing Assets
[a) Related parties
(b} Other than related parties
(i) Net Non-Ferfarming Assets
{a) Related parties
{6] Other than related parties
(fii} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debe

Amount

G817

3,845




NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Adani Capital Private Limited {“the Holding
Company” or “the Company”) and its Subsidiary {the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘the
Group’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of matetial accounting policies and other explanatory
information {“the Consolidated Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of
the subsidiary, as were audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, {Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in Indla, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, and its Consolidated profit
including Consalidated Other Comprehensive Income, its Consolidated Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial $tatements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs)
specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under thase Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibifities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us and other auditors in terms of their report referred to in ‘Other Matter’ paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consalidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial $tatements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that cantext,

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components nat
audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

ansolidated Financial Statements.
A% Floor, lconic Tower, Urmi Estate, 95 Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai - 400013, india
B+ 91 22 4474 3400

LLP Registration NO. AAl-1379
Noida - Mew Delhi - Gurugram - Mumbat - Bengalury - Chennai - Pune — Dehradun




NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Key audit matters

’ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

{a) Impairment of loan assets as at balance sheet date {expected credit losses)
As described in hote 53.1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments {"Ind AS 109")
requires the Group to provide for impairment of its
loan assets using the expected credit loss {ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of probabitity-
weighted loss on financial instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Group’s loans and advances.

In this process, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the management for:

a) Defining Staging of ioans (i.e. classification in
'significant increase in credit risk’ {"SICR") and
‘default’ categories);

Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity
by using appropriate statistical techniques;

¢} Estimation of behavioural life;

d) Estimation of losses for {oan products with na /
minimal historical default; and

Management overlay for macro-econoamic
factors and estimation of their impact on the
credit quality.

In the view of such high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is
identified as key audit matter.

b)

e)

Our audit procedures included the following:
» Evaluated the Group’s accounting policies for impairment

of loan assets and assessed compliance with the policies in
terms of Ind AS 109 and with the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to Reserve
Bank of India guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.
Evaluated the management estimates by understanding
the process of ECL estimation and related assumptions and
tested the controls around data extraction and validation
Assessed the criteria and tested sample for staging of loans
based on their past-due status and to evaluate compliance
with requirement of ind AS 108.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and
underlying computation. Tested the input data used for
determining the Probability of default and loss given
default rates and agreed the data with the underlying
books of account and records.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of ECL
provision performed by the Group.

Read and assessed adequacy of the disclosures included in
the Consalidated financial statements in respect of ECL
with the requirements of Ind AS 107 Einancial Instruments:
Disclesure ("Ind AS 107") and Ind AS 109,

{(b) information technology {iT'} systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of
the Group are fundamentally reliant on IT systems
and IT controls to process significant transaction
volumes. Automated accounting procedures and IT
environment controls, which include IT governance,
general IT controls over program development and
changes, access 1o programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed and to
operate effectively to ensure appropriate financial
reporting

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment of
the general IT controls and the application controls
specific to the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be a key audit
matter,

/

Our audit procedures, with support from IT specialists,
included the following: :
» Tested the design and aperating effectiveness of IT access

contrals over the infarmation systems that are critical to
financial reporting.

Tested IT general controls (such as logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls}). This
included testing that requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorised.

Tested the Group's periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for appropriate
approval and authorisation.

In addition to the above, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain application controls
{automated and IT dependent manual controls) that were
considered as key internal controls over finaneial reporting.
Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate procedures
We have relied on SOC-2 type Il report provided by vendor
for LMS Finane te ensure compliance with audit trail.

e
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included inthe Board's Report {“other information”), but does not include the Consolidated Financial
Statements and eur auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informatian,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financlal Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consalidated Financia! Statements
that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance including
Consolidated Other Comprehensive income, Consolidated Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards} Rules 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controis, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the maragement either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financia! Statements as a whale
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consalidated Financial Statements.

4" Floar, lconic Tower, Urmi Estate, 95 Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbal - 400013, India
P+ 81 22 4474 3400
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financizl Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a rnaterial
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary have adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statement in place and the operating
effectiveness of such cantrols.

¢  Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management,

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material Uncertainty exists related to events ar conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we canclude that 5
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's feport to the related
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our
opinion. Qur conciusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including
the disclosures and whether the Consolidated Financiai Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion an the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors,
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinien.

We cammunicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

4™ Floar, iconic Tower, trmi Estate, 95 Ganpatrac Kadam Marg, Lower Parei {West}, Mumbai ~-400013, india
p: + 91 22 4474 3400
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disciosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because of the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communhication,

Other Matters

The Statement includes the audited Financial Resuits of its subsidiary, whose Financial Statements/ Financial
information reflect tota! assets of Rs. 8,090.37 Millions as at March 31, 2024, total revenue of Rs. 53.72 Millions,
total net profit after tax of Rs, 26.36 Millions, and total comprehensive Income of Rs. 26.21 Millions, for the period
from March 27, 2024 to March 31, 2024 and net cash inflow of Rs. 483.97 Millions for the period ended as on that
date respectively, as considered in the Statement, which have been audited by the other auditors whose reports on
financial statements / financial information of these entities have been furnished to us and our opinion on tha
Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities, is based salely
an the report of such auditors and the procedures performed by us are as stated in paragraph above.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central Goverhment
of fndia in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary Company, as noted in ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 {xxi} of the Qrder, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the audit reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as were audited by other auditars, as
noted in the ‘other matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a)  We and the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statement;

{b)  Inour opinion, proper books of aceount as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
Consalidated Financial Statement have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors; '

(c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Staterment;

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financia! Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended:;

(e]  Onthe basis of the written represerttations received from the directors of the Holiding Company as on
Marth 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directars of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors of its subsidiary campanies, none of the directors of the Group Companies are
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act; g
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{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with refarence
to Consolidated Financial Statement of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repart in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g} In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiary, the provisions of
section 197 of the Act are not applicabie to the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024;

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph:

i.  The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position - Refer note 41 to
the Consclidated Financial Statements '

ii.  The Group did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

iv.  (a} The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowiedge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 64.8 to the Cansolidated financial statements, during the year no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 64.8 to the Consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Group from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
undearstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, directly orindiractly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors
of the subsidiary which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, the company and subsidiary have used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and

- the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective auditor of the above referred subsidiary
did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
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As proviso to Rule 3 (1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reparting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 on preservation of

audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 20624.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
",
No. 002391C/N508069
“3

Membership No.; 601788
UDIN: 24601788BKFMVZ4229

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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“ANNEXURE 1" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ inthe Independent
Auditor's Report]

Based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary Company, we state that:

{3) {oxi} There are no qualification or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on
Companies {Auditor Report] Order, 2020 of the Companies included in the Consolidated Financial
Statement except for foliowing where the respective auditor have reported unfavorable or adverse
rerarks in their audit report to the principal auditor.

S5r | Name €IN Holding Company / | Clause Number of
No Subsidiary Company | the CARO report
which is unfavorable
or adverse
1 | Adani Capital Private | U65990GJ2016PTC093692 Holding Cempany ifi {€), and
Limited iii (d)
2 | Adani Housing Finance | U65999GJ2617PTC098960 Wholly owned | fii {¢),
Private Limited subsidiary it {d},
vii {a), and
vii {b}

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountantss.
No. 002391C/N500069

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 24601788BKFMVZ4229

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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“ANNEXURE 2" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited on the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™}

To
The Member of
Adani Capital Private Limited

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Adani Capital Private Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2024, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statement of Adani Capital Private Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and its Subsidiary Company {“the Group”) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its Subsidiary Company are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting
with reference to Censolidated Financial Statement criteria established by the respective Companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal
Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to group’s palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statement based on our audit. We conducted aur audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143({10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial contrals over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statement were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial Statement and

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference

to Conselidated Financial Statement included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
A
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financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and aperating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor
in terms of their report referred to in the “other matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit apinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to Conselidated Financial Statement.

Meanhing of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Group’s internal financial contral over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statement is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A group’s internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statement includes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispasitions of the assets of the group; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in accardance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the group are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the group; and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
group's assets that could have a material effect on the Conselidated Financial Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent iimitations of internal financia! controls over financial reporting with reference to
Consclidated Financial Statement, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statement to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to Consolidated Financiaf Statement may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Consclidated Financial Statement were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024 based on the internal
control aver financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cantrols Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3){1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to the Consalidated Financial

-~
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Statements in so far as it relates to one subsidiary company, which is Company Incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such subsidiary.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
o, 002391C/N500069

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN: 24601788BKFMV24229

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Consalidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
{Afl amounts in T in Millions unfess otherwiss stated)]

Retd |~ - asat
- Mo, - Mach 31,2024 -
ASSETS
Financial assets
{a] Cash and cash equivalents 7 7,768.40
by Bank balances othar than cash and cash aquivalents 3 990,25
¢} Receivables
11} Trade receivables a 1647
{H} Other receivables -
{d} Loans 10 37,999.7%
(8] Investments 11 32040
(f} Other financial assets 12 165521
£8,750.48
Non-finarcial assets
{a) Current tax assets [net) i3 2511
k] Property, plant and equipment 15 42119
fe}  Intangible assets under development 16 25.22
[d) Goodwll 17 51762
(e}  Other intangible assets 17 15737
(f}  Other non<financial assets 18 233,55
1,380.06
TOFAL ASSETS 50,130.54
{IABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Finantial liabilities
(a) Payables 19
(I}Trade payabiles
(i} totat outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 8.21
{ii} total eutstanding dues of creditors other than mitro enterprises 143,96
and smalf enterprises
[H) Other payablas
{i} totai cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
{ii) total qutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 22.44
and small enterprises
(b} Deht securities 20 7.704.14
fe)  Borrowings (other than debt securities) 21 22,895.2%
(d} Subordinated liabifities 22 579.26
{e)  Other financial liabilities 23 1477.02
32,235.32
Non-financial liabilities
{a} Provisions 24 74,50
{bl Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 253.70
{¢)  Other non-financial liabifities 25 226.20
554.40
EQUITY
{al Equity share capital 26 388.02
(b} Other equity 27 15,351.80
18,73%.82
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 50,130.54

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consalidated Financial Statements 1 - 67

This i5 the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

r Nangia & Co. LLP
artered Accountants
| Firm Regj#yration Humb

Flace: tumbai .
Date: iMay 29, 2024

For ared on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Adzni Capital Private Limited
CIN: U65990G)2016PTCO93692

£
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LTIRTS Ncu?,.' a
MIr. Gaurav Bupta Ms. Surechi Nangia
“ Managing Director & CEQ Directar

DIN: 01669109 DIN; 0731622

W e

aAr. ¥ifal shah Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi
ief Financial Officer Company Secretory
Membership No: 445158
Place: Mumbat

Date: May 29, 2024



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{all amgunts in Tin Millians unless otherwise stated)

Revenue From cperations

{i} Interest income 8 5,463.54
{i} Net gain on fair value changes 28 55.35
{iti} Met gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category &5 230.97
(1} Total revenue from operations 5,749.86
{f) Other incoma 30 94.97
(I} Total income {1 + 1) 5,844.83
Expenies
(i} Financa costs 31 2,521.80
{iiy Impairment on financial Instruments 32 500.47
{li} Employee benefits expenses i3 1,389.73
{ivt Depreciation, amortization and impairment 34 103.39
{v} Othars expenses a5 489.00
{IV} Total expenses 5,004.89
{¥) Profit before tax (IIl - 1V) 835.94
{Vl} Tax Expensa:
- Current Tax 39 186.12
- Deferred Tax 39 17.85
(vit} Profit for the pericd (V-V1) 635.97

{VIllj Other comprehensive income
(i} ems that will not be reciassified to profit or foss

{2) Remeasurements gain / {loss) on defined benefit pians {7.31)
{ii} Income tax relating ta ftems that will not be reclassified to prafit or loss 1.35
Other comprehensive income / {loss) (Net of tax) {5.46)
{IX) Total comprehensive income for the periad (VI + viny 630.51
{X} Earnings per equity share {Face Value Rs 10 per share) 40
- Basic (Rs.) 715
- Diluted (Rs.] 26.81
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Conscfidated Financial Statements 1-67

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on hehalf of the Baard of Directors of
Chartg;ed Accauntants Adani Capital Private Limited

rm Registration Numbe;,QOZBSlC{NSOOOSQ CIN: U65390G) 201 6PTCO93692
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4 AN TEIeY I &"‘S/kﬂ-‘
[
. Gaurav ?ﬂ{t’: Ms, Suruchi Nangia
Mondaging Director & CEQ Director

Membership No: 601788 DIN: 01669109 DiN: 97901622

Mr. fitendra Chaturvadi
Financia! Officer Compuny Secretory
Membership Mo: A45158

Place: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai
Pate: May 29, 2024 . Date; May 29, 2024




ADAMN CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the year endad March 31, 2024
Al amounts fn ¥ in Millions unless otherwise stated)

A, Cash flow operating activities

Profit hefare tax 830.94

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 103.89

Impairment of financial instrument 213.98

Interest on lease liability 20.77

Excess provision written back (9.78)
Profit on saie of mutual funds [55.35)
Share based payment to employess 7.87

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category {230.97)
Profit on sale of property, piant and equipment {2.43)
tnterest income (5,462.95)
Finance Cost 2,501.16

Cash Inflow from interest 5,276.48

Cash outflow from finance cost {2,550.05)
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 652.56

Adjustments for changes in Working Capital :

Decrease / {Increase) in Trade receivable {5.20}
Decrease / {Increase) in Loans {5,850.86}
Decrease f {Increase) in Other financial assets (88.67)
Dacrease / (Increase) in Other non-financial assets (94.47)
{Decrease} / Increase in Trade payables E.73

{Decrease] / Increase in Other financial Kabilities 105.42

{Decrease} f Increase in Provisions {11.87)
{Decrease) / Increase in Other non-financial liabilities {46.31)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operation {5,333.67)
Refund / (Paymant} of taxes (net) (250.76}
Net cash generated from f {used in} operating activities [A) {5,584.43)
B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment {48.30)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.15

Purchase of intangible assets {42.30}
{Purchase)/sale of intangible assets under development 7.93

Investment in bank deposits with original maturity greater than three months [Net) {485.31)
Praceeds from bank deposits with original maturity greater than three months (Nat} 0.12

interest on bank deposits with original maturity greater than three months 0.07

Purchase of investments in equity shares of subsidiary company {1,982.70)
Redemption of investments in Security Recaipts 73.15

Purchase of investments in mutual funds {30,320.00)
Sale of investments in mutual funds 30,375.35

Net cash generated from / {used in} investing activities {B) {2,418.84)




ADXANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Consolidated Staterment of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Alt amounts in % in Millions unfess oiherwise stated)

€. Cash flow from financing activitias

Proceeds from lssue of Equity Shares |Including securities premium) 9,295.69
Share issue expenses {106.10)
Proceeds fram Issue of Warrants 750.00
Settlement of share based payments {181.10}
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities {60.78)
Payment of interest on jease liabilities (20.77)
Issuie of debt securities 8,577.42
Aepayment of debt securities {2,909.19)
Proceeds from borrowing {other than debt securities & subordinated liabilities) 11,490.91
Repayment of borrowing (other than debt securities & subordinated labilities) {11,852.01)
Net cash generated from / {used in) financing activities {C} 14,978.07
Met Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 5,974.80
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of year 793.60
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 7,768.40

Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 23.76
Balances with banks 4,492.15
Fixed deposit with bank {Original maturity less than 3 months) 3,252.49

7,768.40

The above Consofidated Statement of cash fiow has been prepared under the indirect method set out int Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flow.
For disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer Note 37

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow referred ta in our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Capital Private Limited
r: 002391C/NS00069 CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTCO93692

&
N S sergee
M® rav Gu Ms. Suruchi Nangia

Managing Difector & CEQ Director
DIN: 01669109 DIN: 07501622

embarship No: 601788

W

MrAfirat Shah Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: A45158

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2024 Date: May 29, 2024
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Material Accounting Policies:

1

Corporate Information:
Adani Capital Private Limited {the ‘Company’ / ‘Parent’) having CIN: U65950GJ2016PTC093692 was
incorporated in India on September 12, 2016 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’).

The Company along with its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’} is engaged in the business of providing loans.

The Company hoids a Certificate of Registration {CoR) as Non-Banking Financiat Institution, without
accepting public deposits, registered with the Reserve Bank of india {"RBI”) under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934. The Company received its certificate of registration as a non-banking
finance Company on January 6, 2017 having registration number B.01.00567. The debt securities of the
Company are listed on the BSE Limited {BSE) in India.

The Registered office of the Company is Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat - 380009.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved
for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May
29, 2024.

Basis of Preparation:

The consclidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
{as amended fram time to time).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments such as, other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at
fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR} and all values are
rounded to the nearest Millions, except when otherwise indicated. The consalidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of consofidated financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions are significant to the Group are discussed in Note 6 - Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions.

Statement of Compliance:

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies {{ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

Presentation of consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented as per Schedule 1 {Division Hi) of the
Companies Act, 2013 zpplicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA).
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an
unconditional tegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a2
future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis.
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4.1 Functional and presentation currency:

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which is also its functional
currency and all vatues are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated,

4.2 Basis of Consolidation:
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group contrcls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date the control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries iine by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Inter-Company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Parent and its subsidiaries are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also efiminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed wherever necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises of the:

*  Fair values of assets transferred
» Liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired subsidiary
s Equity interests issued by the Group

dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabiiities assumed in a business combination
are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at acquisition date.

The excess of:
* Consideration transferred, and
s Acquisition date fair value of the previous entity interest in the acquired entity

Over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. i those amounts are less than
the fair value of identifiable assets, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reason for
carrying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, bargain purchase gain are
recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive

income, as appropriate.
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5. Material accounting policies:

5.1 Revenue from operations:

5.1.1 Recognition of interest income:

5.1.2

5.1.3

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets
classified as measured at FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

s As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

« By considering all the cortractual terms of the firancial instrument in estimating
the cash flows

¢ Including all fees received/paid between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

Any subsequent changes int the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest
income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets,

Income from direct assignment / co-lending:

Gains arising out of direct assignment / co-lending transactions comprise the difference
hetween the interest on the loan portfolic and the applicable rate at which the direct
assignment / co-lending is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess
interest spread {EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the
transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded
upfront in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Any subsequent changes in the EiS is
recognised with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

The Group recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for servicing contract. if
the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing
activities, a servicing asset is recognised with a corresponding credit in Standalone statement
of profit and loss. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the Group
adequately for performing the servicing activities, a servicing liability for the servicing
chiigation is recognised with a corresponding charge to Standalone statement of profit and
loss.

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognized

a. When the right to receive the payment is established,

b. it is prabable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity and

c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably
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51.4

Fees and Commission income:

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Group satisfies the performance obligation,
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out
below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract{s} with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step *: ldentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obiigation is a
promise in @ contract with a custemer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the perfermance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance
obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

5.2 Financial instruments:

5.2.1

5.2.2

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. Loans are recognised when funds are
transferred to the customers’ account. The Group recognises borrowings when funds are
available for utilisation to the Group.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liability are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through
profit & loss {FVTPL}}, are added to or subtracted from the fair value of financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition .of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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5.2.3 Day 1 profit or loss:

524

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and
the fair value is based on a valuation technique using onty inputs observable in market
transactions, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. in those cases where fair value is based on models
for which some of the inputs are not ohservable, the difference between the transaction
price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or toss when the inputs
become ohservable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Group classifies alf its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely for the payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Finangcial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FYTOCI if it is held within business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractuai terms of the financial assets that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal ameunt outstanding. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Financial Assets at fair value through profit & loss (FYTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Group measures all financial assets classified as FYTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

5.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

5.3.1 Financial assets held for trading:
The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of 2
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and
measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain
on fair value changes.
. m\:\‘%\?\ L \\

/= NG :

I \'g i

oo f ﬂr}

RS 2

& ,’;1} gy

AN



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

53.2

533

534

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Group measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Here debt securities and other borrowed funds also include non — convertible debenture.

Financial assets and financial liabilitles measured at FUTPL on initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
reguired to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

* The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis, or

» The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy, or

s The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, uniess they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract,
or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s} is prohibited

Financial assets and financiat fiahilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and Joss with the exception of movements
in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Group’s own credit risk.
Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCl and do not get
recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FYTPL
is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account
any discount/ premium and gqualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument.
interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVYTPL is recorded using
contractual interest rate.

Loan commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. Currently Group has not recognised any ECL in respect of undrawn commitment.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial labilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

All the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except Joan commitments and
financial guarantees.

5.4 Reclassification of financial assets and financtal liabilities:

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. The Group didn't reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and previous
periad.

5.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:
5.5.1 Derecognition of financial asset:

Afinancial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financiat assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Group has transferred the financial asset if and only if; either
* The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* |t retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but
assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay
to third party under ‘pass through” arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a Financial asset (the 'original asset’}, but assumes a
contractual obligation te pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual
recipients'), when alf of the following conditions are met:

s The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
coliected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances
with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

s The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients.

The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or ¢ash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between
the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer anly qualifies for derecognition if either;
» The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

» The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

-
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The Group considers control ta be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that
ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Group also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified as Stage
1 for ECL measurement purposes, unjess the new financial asset is deemed to be purchased
or originated credit impaired (POCI}.

if the modification does not resulf in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Group records a maodification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

5.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A Financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of' a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified
contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognhised standalone
statement of profit and toss.

5.6 Impairment of financial assets:
Overview of ECL principles

The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as ‘Financial
Instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under tnd AS 109.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit fosses. A credit loss is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount
and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than
when contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Group follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss atlowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Group uses & provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance, However, if receivables contain a significant financing component, the Group chooses
as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general approach to measure ECL,

General Approach

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset {the
lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
arigination, in which casa, the allowance is based on the 12 months” expected credit loss.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the porticn of Lifetime ECL that represent
the ECLs that resuit from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date.”

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Group has grouped its loans into corporate
loans, business loans given to MSMEs {MSME}, home lgans, commercial vehicle loans and supply
chain finance.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Group does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower levei.

Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 3, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reperting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The Group classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days
default under this category. For these assets, 12-month ECL (resulting from default events possible
within 12 months from reporting date} are recognized.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. Assets which are 30 Days Past Due and less
than 90 Days Past Due are cansidered as significant increase in credit risk. For these assets lifetime
ECL are recognized.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have accurred are classified in this stage. For
exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of Expected Credit Loss)
rather than the gross carrying amount. 3¢ Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a
financial instrument as credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets

"At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVOC| are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

* Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
« A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
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* The restructuring of a ioan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

+ Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
rearganization; or

s The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.”

The calculation of ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously derecognized and is still in the portfolio. In the absence of sufficient history of default, the
Group has primarily sourced the PDs from external default reports published by various rating
agencies.

Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal
and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facitities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss given Default

The Loss Given Default (LGD} is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default oceurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed
as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is computed in the following manner:

a) In case of Commercial vehicle and Farm Equipments portfolio the LGD percentage is
determined based on the recovery experience from closed cases.

b} tncase of loans to MSME Sector and term loans to Corporate customers the LGD percentage
is determined based on the estimated value of recovery from the sale of collaterat after
considering reasonable haircuts as determined appropriate by the management where fatest
fair value of collateral is not available with the management.

€) In case of other portfolios proxy LGD percentage as prescribed by the regulatory authority
(FIRB Approach) is considered.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-manth ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage
2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Group considered rebuttable presumption that credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

5.7 Colateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, vehicles, real
estate, etc. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Group’s balance sheet. However,
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the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. The collateral are assessed at time of
inception and are being reassessed as and when required.

5.8 Coliateral repossessed:

In its normal course of business whenever default occurs in Farm / Commercial Vehicle Business, the
Group may take possession of underlying assets in its retail portfolio and generally disposes such
assets through auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/obligors. The Group generally does not use the assets repossessed for the internal
operations. ECL on the underlying loans in respect of which collaterals have been repossessed and
not sald is provided as under.

Repo Ageing LGD %

<90 days LGD as per normal ECL model

> 90 days & <= 180 days | 1.2x of LGD applicable for product
> 180 days & <= 365 days | 1.5x of LGD applicable for product
> 365 days 2% of LGD applicable for product

As a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance
sheet as it does not meet the recognition criteria.

5.9 Write-offs:

5.10

The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subseguent
recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss. -

Determination of fair value:

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to self an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either,

+ In the principal market for the asset or liahility, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liahility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibie by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived,
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised
helow:
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5.11

Level 1 financial instruments

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume
and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are hinding and exercisable price
quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly chservable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such
inputs include gquoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for
identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may
be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that
are comparabie to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable
inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Group will classify the instruments as
Level 3.

tevel 3 financial instruments

Thase that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whaole.

For assets and liabifities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization {based on the lowest level input that ts significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting periad.

The Group periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and
model calibrations. Therefore, the Group applies various technigues to estimate the credit risk
associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfoiio-hased
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the
individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-
collateralised financial instruments.

The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leasas:

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities representing
obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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5.12

5.11.1 Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumutated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

5.11.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments {inctuding in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments aiso include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. in addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the Jease term, a change in the
fease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in Other Financial Liabilities.

5.11.3 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term Jease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
teases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). K also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
ara considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts 10 issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Difuted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the
year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share

——
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and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
potential equity shares,

5.13 Foreign currency transaction:

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is alse functional
currency of the Group. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies)
are recognised af the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of 2ach
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histerical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranstated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

5.14 Employee benefit expenses:
5.14.1 Short-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution schemes

The Group contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
standalone statement of profit and loss. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the pericd when the employees render the services

5.14.2 Post-employment benefits:
Petined benefit schemes - Gratuity

The Group's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group's net cbligation in respect
of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets,
if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is
determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they accur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

5.14.3 Gther long-term employee benefits;

The eligible employees of the Group are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subseguent years, subject to a ceiling. The Group recognises
the charge in the standalone statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on

’/:k::"“«-w_nv'/.\%\//
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such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent
actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

5.14.4 Employee share-based payments:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees providing services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination
of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments transactions are set out in Note
56.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Standalone statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expenses
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based
Payments Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding opticns is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

if a grant of equity instruments is cancelled or settled during the vesting period {other than
a grant cancelled by forfeiture when the vesting conditions are not satisfied):

a. the Group shall account for the cancellation or settlement as an acceleration of vesting
and shall therefore recognise immediately the ameount that otherwise would have been
recognised for services received over the remainder of the vesting period.

b. any payment made to the employee on the cancellation or settlement of the grant shall
be accounted for as the repurchase of an equity interest, i.e. as a deduction from
equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the repurchase date. Any such excess shall be
recognised as an expense,

5.15 Property, plant and equipment:

All items of property, ptant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and incidentat expenses directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the management.

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carryving amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item ¢an be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. Alf other repairs and
maintenance are recognized in profit or loss during the reporting pericd, as and when they are
incurred. |
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5.16

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated
usefut life as specified in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013

As per the requirement of Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule il for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful! lives of the fixed assets are as fallows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Office equipment 5 years

Computer Systems — End User Devices 3 years

Computer Systems - Servers & Networks 6 years

Electrical Installation 10 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office Pramises On the lease term

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, ptant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of
replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Group.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the
amartization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortization
period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in
the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 10 years based on its estimated useful
life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Standalone
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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5.17

5.18

5.19

Goodwil!

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but
it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, an is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and Josses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit fram the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or Groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
which in our case are the operating segments.

Impairmernt of non-financial assets:

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount
of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment Joss and is
recognized in the standalone statement of profit and toss. if at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no fonger exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed, and the impairment is reversed subject to a maximum carrying vatue of the asset before
impairment.

Provisions, other contingent liabiiities and contingent assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present
value using an apprapriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liabitity.

A present cbligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed
as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Claims
against the Group, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are nat
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements since this may result
in the recognition of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

5.20

Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

5.20.1

Current tax:

Current tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity
respectively. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

5.20.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lizhility
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and toss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit and loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each repaorting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits wilk altow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the fiability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit
and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes refate to the
same taxable entity and the same tax authority.
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5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:
Goods and services tax fvalue added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

+ When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

+ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Securities issue expenses:

Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue of Share capital are adjusted against Securities
premium reserve,

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has controf. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variabie returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment if any in the consclidated financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comgprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vatue.
fFor the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Cash-flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrak or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated.

6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with the ind AS reguires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the acGrouping disclosure and the disclosure of contingent habilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods
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are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowiedge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requizing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

6.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:
6.1.1 Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest {SPPI) and the business model test. The Group determines the business madel
at a level that reflects how Group's financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect
the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Menitoring is part of the Group's continucus assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate
whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification
of those assets,

6.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the controi of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

6.2.1 Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price} regardless of whether that
price is directly abservable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that inciude the use of valuation
models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where passibie, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {both own
and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.
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6.2.2 Effective Interast Rate {EiR) Method:

The Group’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 5.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the axpecied
behavioural life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates
at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and
penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee
income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.

6.2.3 Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financiat assets requires judgment,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and coliateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

The Group's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

+ PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

s The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit foss and
the qualitative assessment.

s The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

* Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, econoimic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

+ Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

+« The impact of COVID -19 on the global economy and how government, business and
consumer is uncertain This uncertainty is reflected in the Group’s assessment of impairment
allowance on its loans which are subject to a number of management judgement and
estimated. While methodologies and assumption applied remains unchanged. Group has
separately incorporated estimates, assumption and judgements specific to the impact of
COVID -19 pandemic.

In terms of the reguirements as per RBl notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 on Implementation of fndian
Accounting standard , MNon-Banking Financial Companies {(NBFCs) are required to create an
impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 and Income
Recognition , Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision on standard
assets). The impairment allowance under Ind AS 102 made by the Group exceeds the total provision
required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), as at 31 March 2024 and accordingly,
no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve,
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It is Group's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

6.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's recoverahle amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair vatue less cost of disposal and its vaiue in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

6.2.5 Provision and contingent liabilities:

The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operaticns. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration
and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Group can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Group records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of cutflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Group takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates.

6.2.6 Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgement on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resalved over extended time pariods.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group
and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

6.2.7 Leases - Estimating the Incremental Borrowing rate:

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (1BR} to measure lease liabilities, The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

6.2.8 Leases - Estimate of lease period

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and
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thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options fo extend or terminate the
contract wilt be exercised,

6.2.9 Share-Based Payments:

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate valuation
model. The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with Option holders using Black-
Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date.

Inputs into the valuation model, includes assumption such as the expected life of the share option,
volatiity and dividend yield.

Further details used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
Note 5.14.4.

6.2.10 Usefut life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The useful life to depreciate property, plant and equipment is based on technical obsolescence,
nature of assets, estimated usage of the assets, operating conditions of the asset, and manufacturers’
warranties, maintenance and support period, etc. The charge for the depreciation is derived after
considering the expected residuat value at end of the useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed by the management at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Further details zbout property, plant and equipment are given in Note 15,

6.2.11 Defined benefit plans {gratuity and compensated absences benefits)

The Group's obfigation on account of gratuity and compensated absences is determined based on
actuarial vatuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its lang-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly availabie mortality tables in India. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are
given in Note 38.
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7 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2024
Cash on hand 33.76
Balances with banks 4,492.15
Fixed deposit with bank for original maturity kess than 3 months {including interest accrued) 3,252.49
Total 7,768.40
8 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at
March 31, 2024
Long-term deposits with banks (including interest accrued) {Refer note befow) 390.25
Tatal 990.25
Note:

a} T501.20 millions (PY: % Nilj worth of fixed deposit with bank represents first loss default guarantee {FLDG) for securitisation transactions undertaken during

the year (Rafer Note 20{b) - Debt Securittes).

b) ® 390.14 millions [PY: X 390.10 millions) worth of fixed depaosit with bank Is lien marked against overdraft facilities from various banks.
¢} % 50.00 miliions {PY - ¥ 50.00 millions) worth of fixed deposit with bank represents upfront bank Guarantee to the extent of 20% of the sancticned facility

given for full tenure of borrowing from the NHS.

dj % 5.48 millions {PY - X 5.21 millions) warth of fixed deposit represents margin money givan to bank for upfront bank guarantee to the extent of 10% of tha

sanctioned facility given for full tenure of borrowing from the NHB.

e) X 0.10 million {PY - X 0.10 milfion) worth of fixed deposit with bank represents upfront bank guarantee to the extent of 1.11 times of the sanctioned facility

given for full tenure of facllity from Bank of Baroda.
9 Receivables

I. Trade Receivables

Asat

Particutars -

March 31, 1024
Considered good - Secured -
Considered good - Unsecured 17.03
Gross trade receivables 17.03
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses ((1.56)
Total trade receivables (net of impairment) 16.47

a. Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:
Forthe year

Particufars ended

March 31, 2024
tmpairment allowance as per simplified approach
Opening Balance 0.80
Add/{less): On Assets originated or acquired (net) {0.24)
Clasing Balance 0.56

No trade or other receivable ore due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other
receivable gre due fram firms or private companies respectively in which any directar is a partner, a director or @ member.

b. Trade receivables ageing schedule

QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2024 tessthan 6 6 months - More than 3 Totat
months 1year 1-2 years -3Iyears years
Considered good - Secured - - - - - -
Considered goad - Unsecurad 16.88 0.02 0.13 - 17.03
Giross trade receivabies 16.88 0.02 0.13 - - 17.03
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses [0.56)
Total trade receivables (net of impairmentj 16.47
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
{All amounts in X in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Loans
As at
Particulars March 31, 2024
Amortised cost

{A) Loans 38,704.07
Inter corporate deposit given to related parties -
Total - Gross {A) 38,704.07
Less: Impairment loss allowance (704.32)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (A) 37,999.75

(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets 37,118.47
{ii) Unsecured 1,585.60
Total - Gross (B} 38,704.07
Less: Impairment loss allowance (704.32}
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (B) 37,999.75

(C) Loans in India

" {i} Public sectors -

(i} Gthers 38,704.07
Total - Gross {C} 38,704.07
Less: Impairment loss allowance {704.32)
Total - Net of impairment joss allowance {C) - 37,999.7%

Notes:

1. loans includes instalment and interest outstanding amounting to ¥ 28.37 Millions {PY - X 32,85
Millions} in respect of properties held for disposal under Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial
Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 [SARFAESI].

2. The Group has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors,
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly
with any other person that are {a) repayable on demand or {b) without specifying any terms or period
of repayment.

»
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounis in T in Millions unfess otherwise stated)
Loans

Credit Quality of Assets

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's year-end stage classification.
The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Group's internal grading system are explained in Note 53.1
and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set out in Note 53.1.1.6

31-Mar-24
nternal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing 36,229.64 1,637.16 - 37,866.80
Non- performing - - 837.27 837.27
Total 36,229.04 1,637.16 837.27 38,704.07

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowance for loans and advances to corporate , retail

customers & factoring :-

The following disclosure provide stage wise reconciliation of the Graup's gross carrying amount and ECL allowances for loans and
advances to corporate, retail and factoring customer, The transfer of financial assets represents the impact of stage transfer upon the
gross carrying amount and associated allowance for ECL. The net remeasurement of ECL arising from stage transfer represent increase

or decrease due to thesa transfers.

Fy 2023-24
Particulars , :
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Totai
Gross carrying amount opening balance 30,445.14 919.95 465.2% 31,830.38
New assets ariginated or purchased 21,054,67 230.44 43.78 21,328.89
Assets derecognised or repaid {excluding write offs) {13,922.75) {408.06} {165.50) {14,496.31}
Transfers to Stage 2 (1,145.08) 1,145.08 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 {443.29) {92.31) 535.60 -
Assets staging upgraded 201.48 {158.65) {42.83} -
Other Adjustment 39.47 0.71 0.93 41.11
Gross carrying amount closing balance 36,229.64 1,637.16 837.27 38,704.07
Reconciliation of ECL alowance is given below:
Particulars FY2023-24
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 195.97 56.79 182.06 434.82
New assets originated or purchased 133.81 12,55 14.25 160.61
Assets derecognised or repald {excluding write offs) 70.59 {10.60) {78.85} {18.86)
Transfers to Stage 2 {68.96) 68.96 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 {105.20) {27.77) 132.97 -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred between 147 10.48 5.30
stages during the year 17.25
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL calculations - - 110.50 110.50
ECL allowance - closing balance 227.68 110.41 366.23 704.32

Wote: Total ECL alfowance includes management overlay of % 110.50 million (PY: X 61.00 million) on Loans & Advances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31
{All amounts in % in Milfions unless otherwise stated)

11 Investments

As at

Particulars March 21, 2024

At fair value through profit & loss
-Investment in Security Receipts (Unquoted) 80.74
2,04,856 {As at 31.03.2023 2,14,285) Security

Receipts of EARC TRUST SC - 435 of X 1,000 each
[Face Value as at 31.03.2024 - T 394.12 (As at
31.03.2023 - 718.14)]

-Investment in Equity Shares of Other Company

(Ungquoted)
1,19,235 {As at 31.03.2023 1,19,235) Equity shares of 239.66
CSC Grameen EStore Private Limited of X 10 each fully
paid-up

Total - Gross (A} 320.40

(i) Investments outside India -
(i) Investments in india 320.40

Total - Gross {B) 320.40

Less: Allowance for impairment loss {C} -

Total - Net (A- C) 320.40

)
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Al omounts in % in Millions uniess atherwise stated)

Other financial assets

As at
Particutars
ar March 31, 2024
Excess Interest Spread (EIS) Receivables 1,590.71
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses {7.79)
Total £IS Receivables {net of impairment) 1,582.92
Security Deposits 65.63
Others 6.66
Total 1,655.21
Current tax assets (net)
As at
Particulars
2 March 31, 2024
Advance income tax 25.11
[Net of provision for income tax X 383.91 millions]
Total 25.11




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 33, 2024
{Alf amounts in T in Millions urdess otherwise stated)

14 Deferred tax
The major components of deferred tax assats / (liabilities) arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024

As at Recognised in profit Recognised As at
Particutars April 01, 2023 or loss in OCI March 31, 2024
Defarred tax assets
Impairment loss on financial assets 109.63 69.73 - 179.36
Impact of Leases 7.18 0.21 - 7.39
Retirement beneflt plans ' 21.75 {5.13) 2.13 18.75
{A] 138.56 54,81 2.13 205.50
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference betwean written down value of fixed assets as per the books ) 12.43
of accounts and income tax 11.94 0.49 -
EiR impact on financial instrurnents {21.92) 11.89 - {10.03)
EIR impact on borrowings 47.85 8.60 - 56.45
impact of direct assignment transactions 344.89 55.46 - 40035
1] 382.76 76.45 - 45%.20
Deferred tax assets / {fiahilities) {net) (A-B} | {244.20)| {11.63)1 213 | {253.70)
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ADANE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in % in Millions uniess otherwise stated)
16 Intangible assets under development

eing schedule as at 31 March 2024

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

Particulars Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Years
Prajects ih progress 2217 3.05 2522
Projects temporarily suspended - - .
Total 22.17 3.05 - 25.22




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in X in Millions unless otherwise stated)

17 Other intangible assets

Particulars

Goodwilt

Software
{Other Intangible
Assets)

Gross Block

As at April 01, 2023

Additions
On account of acquisition of subsidiary
Disposals

517.62

204.15
42.30

As at March 31, 2024

Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization:

517.62

246.45

As at April 01, 2023

Depreciation / Amortization for the year
On account of acquisition of subsidiary

Disposals

65.85

22.82
.41

As at March 31, 2024
Net book vaiue

85.08

As at March 31, 2024

- 517,62

157.37

18 Other non—ﬁhancial assets

Particulars

Asat -
March 31, 2024

Prepaid expenses
GST input credit
Others

145.86
76.03
11.66

Total

233.55




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes te the Consolidated Financial Stataments for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in T in Milfions unless otherwise stated)

19 Payahbles
N As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024
Trade payables
{i) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {Refer Note 19 (o) below} 821
(i1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 149.96
158.17
Other Payables
{1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smalt enterprises 22.44
22.44
Total 18(.61

a. Information required as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act) provided based on and to the
extent of information received by the Group from the suppliers regarding their status under MSMED Act:

As at

Particula
culars March 31, 2024

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the year end {sinca paid) 821
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount as at the year end -
Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year -
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than section 16) -
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (section 16) -
interest due and payable to suppliers undar MSMED Act, for payments already made -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act -

b. Trade payabiles ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
. : years .
Trade payables - Undisputed
{i} MSME 221 - - - 8121
{i} Other than M5ME 147.05 29 - - 149.96

Total 155.26 2.91 - - 158.17




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes te the Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Margh 33, 2024
AR amounts in T in Millions uniess otherwise stated)

20 Debt securities

Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024
Amortised cost
Privately placed redeemable non—convertible debentures - Sacurad 189537
Pass through certificates - Secured 3,808.77
Total 7,704.14
Debt Securities in India 7,704.14
Debt Securlties outside India -
Total 7,704.14
a. Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securftles are set out below:
As at March 31, 2024
Particulors Rate of -
0 -3 Year 1-3Years -5 Years Owor 5 Yaary Total
Privately placed non-convertible debentures- 6 9.65% 33333 583.33 - - 916,67
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 7 3.75% - 1,500.00 - - 1,500.00
Privately placad non-convartible debentures - 8 9.75% - 1.500.00 - - 1,500.00
Pass through certificates 2.75% to 9.45% 1,281.54 1,403.83 415.29 591.29 3,791.95
7.708.61
Add: Intarast accrued and effective intarast rate amortisation {4.47}
7,704.14

h. Nature of Security :
Privately placed non-convertible deb -3 : Red bl no rtible debentures which have been privataly placed are secured by hypothecation of Loan Receivables & Investmant
Recelvables [comprising of cash & cash equivalents, unencurmbered flved depasits and mutual fund investmenits} of the Group 1o the extent of 1.2x times,

Privately placed ron-fonvertitie deb es -5 : Red ble non-convertible debenturas which have baen privately placed are secured by first ranking exclusive charga over the identrfied laan
assets/hook debts of the Group along with aff present and future book detits whizh has up to 1 year of original maturity such that the principal amount with respact to such assets chall at all times be
egual to 1.00x

Privately piaced aon-convertible debentures - 6/7/8 : Redeemable non-convertible debentures which have been privately placed are secured by hypothecation of Loan Recewables B Investment
Receivables (comprising of cash & cash equivalents, unancumbered fived deposits and mutus! fund Imvestments) of the Group to the extent of 1,15x times,

Pazs through certificates : First loss default guarantes [FLDG) in the form of fised depnosits for securitisation transactlons as at March 31, 2024 % 501.20 Million {PY - MIL] [Refer Nate 8{alj

€. The Group has not defaulted in repaymant of debt securties and interest for the year ended March 31, 2024,




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consclidated financfal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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21 Borrowings (other than debt securities)

b. Nature of Security :

Asat
{Particudars March 31, 224
Amortised cost
Sacured
Terrn loans
- from banks 20,428.38
- fram financial institutions 113725
- from MHE 339.47
Loans repavable on damand
- fram hanks 018
Unsecured
Term laans
- from financial institutlons -
Loans repayable an demand
- from related parties -
Total 22,895.19
Borrowings in India 22,895.29
Borrowmngs outside india .
Total 22,895.29
TR
2. Maturity proflle and rate of interest of hosrowings from banks and ather parties are set out below:
As at March 31, 2029
Maturity
Particulars Rate of i
0-1Year 1-3¥ean 3 -5 Years Chrer S Yeraes Totuf
Tarm Loans from banks - Secured 8.90% to 11.63% 8,238.54 10,623.54 1,556.39 75.91 20,554.37
Term Loans from financlal instituthons - Securad 8.50% to 11.00% 1,010.01 934 86 180.51 7.38 2.132.86
Term Loans from NHE - Secured A.85% 33.70 223.20 34.44 - 341.34
Loans repayable on damand from barks - Secured 9.65% 0.19 - - - 0.13
23,028.76
Add: intersst accrusd and effective interast rate amortisation {13347}
. 22,895.2%

i} Termn loans frorm banks & financial institutions / loans repayable on demand from banks are secured by hypothecation of loan receivables & investment receivables {comprising of cash & cash
equivalents, unencumbered fived deposits and mutual fund Investments) of the Group, Term Loan obtained by subsidiary from State Bank of Indla and Sundarem Home Finance Limited is secured by
way of exclusive change to the extent of 1,15 times on standard Loan recsivable of the subsidiary,

11} Term loan from NHB is secured by way of exclusive charge on identified standard loan receivables. As per the sancticned terms, the subsidiary has alss provided Bank Guarantes to the extent of
20% and L0% (for second refinance term loan) of the sanctioned ameunt of loan.

£. Tha barrawlngs have not been guaranteed by directors or others. Also, the Groug has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings and interest for the year endad March 31, 2024,

~—.
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22 Subordinated liabilities

As at
Particulars March 31, 2024
Amortised cost
Unsecured
Privately placed suberdinated (Tier Il) redeemabie non-convertible debentures 579.26
Total 579.26
Subordinated Liabilities in indta 579.26
Subordinated Lizbilities outside India
Total 579.26
a. Maturity profile and rate of interest of subordinated liabilities are set out below:
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Rate of interest Maturlty Amount
Repayabie in single
Privately placed subordinated [Tier I!) redeemable non-convertible debentures - 1 8.75% Instalment on 30 350.00
Novamber 2028
Repayable in single
Privately placed subordinated {Tier ||} redeemabla non-convertible debentures - 2 9.75% instalment ¢n 25 May 250.00
2029
600.00
Add: interest accrued and effective Interest rate amortisation {20.74)
579.26

b. The Group has not defaulted in repayrment of debt securities and interest for the year ended March 31, 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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23 Other financial liabiiities
Particulars
As at
March 31, 2024
Lease Liability {Refer Note 50} 316.05
Employee benefits payable 110.20
Other Payabies 1,050.77
Total 1,477.02
24 Provisions
Particulars
As at
March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity {Refer Note 38) 47.71
Compensated Absences (Refer Note 38) 26.79
Total 74.50
25 Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars
: As at
March 31, 2024
Statutory dues 7377
Revenue received in advance 3.13
Others 151.30
Total 226.20

/
;
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26 Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Number Amount
Authorised Capitat
Equity shares of X 10 each 50,000,000 500.00
50,000,000 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of X 10 each fully paid up 38,801,841 388.02
38,801,841 388.02
l. Movement in equity share capital
' As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
Number Amount
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 23,209,G86 232,09
Shares issued during the yaar 15,592,755 155.53
Outstanding at the end of the year 38,801,841 asa.n
Notes:

A, issue of equity shares

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has issued 1,53,41,142 fully paid-up equity shares of % 10 per share at a premium of %
586.15 per share for aggregate consideration of % 9,145.69 Million to its holding company BCC Atlantis {1 Pte. Ltd. Also, the company has
issued 2,51,613 fully paid-up equity shares of X 10 per share at a premium of X 586.15 per share for aggregate consideration of T 150.00
Million to Greenlight Advisors LLP.

B. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has enly one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share fully paid up. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders will he entitled to receive remaining assets of the campany, after
distributicn of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

C. Shares held by the holding company

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars :
Mo. of shares held % Holding
Holding Company
8CC Atlantis il Pte. Ltd. 35,896,738 92.51%
Total ’ 35,896,738 92.51%
Note:

The Company [“ACPL"}, its erstwhile holding company (“Adani Finserve Private Limited / AFPL") and its erstwhile fellow subsidiary Adani
Housing Finance Private Limited ("AHFPL"}, certain other entities balonging to the Adani group and BCC Atlantis i Pte. Ltd. {"BCC Atlantis"}
had entered into an investment agreement and post receipt of necessary RBI / other regulatory approvails, following transactions were
executed on March 27, 2024:

~ aL_BCC Atlantls acquired 2,05, 55 595 fully pald up equity shares of € 10 each, aggregating to 88.57% of the share capital of ACPL by way of a
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{All amounts in T in Millions unless otharwise stated}

26 Equity share capital {contd...)

D. Details of sharehoider(s) holding more than 5% of equity shares in the company :

As at March 31, 2024
Name of shareholder
¢ No. of shares hetd] % Holding
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
BCC Atlantis Il Pte. Ltd. 35,896,738 92.51%
Greenlight Advisors LLP 2,905,103 7.49%
Total 38,801,841 100.00%.

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

E. Shares held by the promoters

As at March 31, 2024
Opening balance
Particula %
wars of ro. of shares | % of total shares |CCSB DAIaNCeof| o/ 0. 1ol shares | % change during
no, of shares held the year
held

Protmoters

Adani Finserve Private Limited 23,209,085 100.00% - - -100.00%

BCC Atlantis Il Pte. Ltd. - - 35,856,738 92.51% 92.51%

Greenlight Advisors LLP - - 2,905,103 7.49% 7.49%
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27 Other equity

Particulars As at
March 31, 2024

I. Securities premium

Cpening balance 4,819.58

Add : Premium received on issue of securities 9,139.76

Less: Share issue expenses {1046.10)
Closing Balance 13,853.24

f. Share based payment reserve

Opening balance 92.34
Add: During the year 8.34
Less: Utitised during the year # (100.68)

Closing Balance -

Ill. Reserve under saction 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934 :
Dpening baiance 247.65
Add : Additions during the year 119.17
Closing Balance 366.82

IV. Reserve under section 29C of the National Housing

Bank Act, 1987
Opening balance ) 54.30
Add : Additions during the year i3.38
Closing Balance 67.68

V. Impairment Reserve
Opening balance -
Add : Additions during the year -

Closing Balance -

VI. Meney received against share warrants
Opening balance -
Add : Amount received against convertible warrants 750.00
during the year (25% subscription
money received)**

Closing Balance
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Other equity
Particulars As at
March 31, 2024
VH. Retained earnings
Opening balance 896.67
Add ! Profit for the year 635.97
Add : Other comprehensive income {5.48)
Amount available for appropriation 1,527.18
Less: Appropriations
Amount utilised towards settiement of share based {80.57)
payments #
Transfer to Special Reserve ufs 45-IC of the Reserve {119.17)
Bank of India Act, 1934
Transfer to Special Reserve ufs 29C of the National {13.38)
Housing Bank Act, 1987
Closing Balance 1,314.06
Total Other Equity 16,351.80

**Note: During the year ended March 31, 2624, the Company has issued 50,32,253 share warrants of 10
each at a premium of X 586,15 per warrant and received 25% subscription money i.e. € 750 Million, each
carrying a right to subscribe to one ordinary share per warrant, at a price of ¥ 596.15 per warrant.

#Note: As per the resolution passed in the respective Board of Directors meeting, of the Company held on
March 14, 2024 and of the subsidiary held on March 13, 2024, the Board prescribed a cash settlement
against all unexercised vested options by the Company in terms of and pursuant to the Restated ESOP
Scheme 2020. Upon cash settlement of unexercised vested options on March 27, 2024, the Company and
the subsidiary paid in aggregate £ 187.82 Million to the eligible employees for settlement. Of the total
compensation paid on settlement,  80.57 Million has been adjusted against retained earnings of the
Company as repurchase of equity interest in line with Ind AS 102. Upon payments, the ESOP Scheme 2020
was terminated.

Securities premium

The securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for
{imited purpose such as share issue expenses, issuance of bonus shares in accordance with provision of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Share based paymant reserve

The Company / Subsidiary has stock option scheme under which the eligible employees and key
management personnel can exercise the stock options granted and vested in them. On such exercise of the
stack options the employees will be allotted equity shares of the Company / Subsidiary. The share-hased
payment reserve is used to recognise the vaiue of equity-settied share-based payments.

Statutory reserve

Reserve created under section 45-1C{1} of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 / section 29C of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 - a sum not fess than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Group and are available for distribution
to shareholders.
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Interest income

Year ended
March 31, 2024
Particulars On financial assets
measured at amortised
cost
Interest on joans 5,108.51
Interest on inter corporate deposits 46.14
Interest on fixed deposits 44.77
Other Interest Income 264.12
Total 5,463.54
Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars Year ended
' March 31, 2024
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
-On trading portfolio
Mutual Funds 55.35
Total 55.35
Fair value changes
-Realised gain 55.35
-Unrealised gain -
Total 55.35
Other income
Particulacs Year ended
March 31, 2024
Fee income and other charges 76.10
Excess Provision written back 9.78
Miscellaneous income 9.09
Total

94.97
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Finance costs

Year ended
March 31, 2024
Particutars On financial liabifities
measured at amortisad
cost

Interest on borrowings 2,037.00
Interest on debt securities 352.11
Interest on subordinated liabilities 61.61
Intarest an lease fiahility 20.77
Cther finance cost 5031
Total 2,521.80
Impairment on financial instruments

Year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2024

On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
{i) Loans 251.18
{ii) Investments -
{iii} Others 2.65
Loan write off 114.27
Receivables write off 212
Loss on sale of repossessed assets 144,98
Recovery in write-off accounts {14.73)
Tatal 500.47
Empioyee benefits expenses

Year ended .
Particulars March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 1,259.36
Contribution to provident and other funds 89.47
Share based payment to employees {Refer Note 56) 7.87
Staff welfare expenses 47.55
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 381 10.54
Leave encashment {25.06)
Total 1,389.73
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments

Year ended

I

Particulars March 31, 2024
Depraciation on property, plant and equipments 81.08
Amortisation on intangible assets 22.81
Total 103.89




35

35.1

35.2

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amouwnts in T in Miflions unfess otherwise stated)

Other expenses

Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024
Rent 2201
Communication expenses 24.04
Travelling and conveyance 100.27
Bank chargas 4.94
Lash cotlection expenses 9.17
File storage and processing expensas 18.37
Director's fees, allowances and expenses 2.67
Membership & subscription 0.51
Sectirity expenses 3.26
Branch setup expenses 1.07
Credit infarmation costs 6.21
Electricity charges 11.69
IT expenses 150.7%
Call centre expenses 17.05
Legal and professional fees 124.24
Cffice expenses 6.84
Office maintenance expenses 14.49
Printing and stationery 13.26
Payment to auditors {Refer Note 35.1) 7.07
Rates and taxes 5.0
Recruitment expenses 4.35
Renairs and maintenance 2.30
Marketing Expenses 5.65
C5R expenses (Refer Note 36) 10.26
Miscellaneous expenses 7.51
Recovery of shared cost from subsidiary {Refer Note 35.2} {84.11}
Total 489.00
Payment to the auditors:
Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024
As Auditor

Audit fees 411

Limited review fees 150

Certification and other matters 0.93

Reimbursement of expenses 0.03

GST 0.50
Total* 7.07

* Amount includes Goods and service tax for which input credit has been disailowed

Recovery of shared cost from subsidiary:

Adani Capitat Private timited (ACPL} incurs expenditure like rent, electricity charges ete. which is for the
common benefit of itself and its subsidiary Adani Housing Finance Private Limited {AHFP{). This cosi so
expended is recovered by ACPL based on the actual expenditure incurred, the number of employees and

volume of business ete.
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36 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024
1. Amount required to be spent by the group during the year 10.26
2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 10.26

3. Shartfall at the end of the year*

4. Total of previous years shortfall

S. Reason for shortfall

Not Applicable

6. Nature of CSR activities

Support 1o

create

educational

facilities for poor students

7. Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as
per relevant Accounting Standard

Refer Note 45 - Related Party

Disclosure

*Note:

1. in respect of ongoing projects, there are no unspent amount. Accordingly, no amount is required to he transferred to the special account.
2. in respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amount. Accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to the fund.

37 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

On account of

Particulars Asat Cash Flows acquisit::m ('ﬁ Others As at

* M 3 q

Aprii 1, 2023 (net) subsidiary {net) arch 31, 202

Debt securities 1,744.08 5,668.23 314.31 {22.48) 7,704.14
Bosrowing other than debt securities 20,281.08 {367.10) 2,882.10 {0.80) 22,895.28
Subordinated kabilities 576.16 - - 3.10 £79.26
Total 22,601.32 5,301.13 3,296.41 {20.18) 31,178.68

* Others column includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowings, omortisation of processing fees, etc.

e

N,
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38 Employee Benefits

3. Defined contribution plan - provident funds

In accordance with Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defired
contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Group contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to a recognized provident fund administered by
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Group contributes an equat amount.

The Group recognised & 89.47 Miflions for year ended March 31, 2024, far provident fund and other contributions in the Statement of profit and toss.

b. Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

In actordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group provides for gratuity, a non-contributory defined benefit arrangement providing lump-sum gratuity benefits expressed
in terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering ail employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment Lo vested employees at retirernent or termination of employment in
accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity act, 1972,

The most recent actuarial valuation pertaining to present value of the defined benafit obligation (DEO) for gratuity were carried ouf as at March 31, 2024. The present value of the
defined beneflt obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity pfan and the amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated Rinancial
statements as at balance sheet date:

Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2024
Present value of obligation {A) 47.71
Fair Value of plan assets (B} -
Present value of obligation (A- B} 47.71
Net deficit / (assets) are analysed as:
Liahilities - (Refer Mote 24} 47.71
Movement in net defined benefit {asset) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances far net defined benefit {asset} liablity and its components:
efised
Defined Benefit | Falr Value of plan beN::t{met}
[Particulars
Obligation asyets flabl
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-24
Opening balance 30.16 - 30,16
Current service cost 843 - 343
Interast cost {income} 203 - 203
Benefits Paid {2.50} - (2.50)
Liability Transfer in - - -
Liabsility Transfer [Qut} - . .
On aggount of Acquisition of Subsidiary 1.16 - 116
39.28 - 39.23
Other camprehensive income
Remeasurement loss (gaing:
Actuariaf loss {gain) arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - - -
Experience variance 6.86 - 6.85
Change in Finandlal assumptions 0.24 - 0.24
On account of Acquisition of Subsidiary 1.33 1.33
.43 - 8.43
[Closing balance 47.71 - 47.71
Reprasented by
Net definad liability 47.71
4771



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes i the Consolidated Financiaf Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AN arrounts in ¥ in Miflions unfess otherwise stated)

Components of defined benefit plan cost:

For the year
Particulars ended
March 31, 2024

Racognised in statement of profit or loss**
Current service cost 543
interest cost/ {Income] {net) 2.03
Tatal 10.46
Recognisad in other comprehensive income **
Actuarial lass {gain) arising from:

Change in dermographic assumptions .

Experience variance 6.86

Change in Financial assumptions 0.24
Total .10
**Note: Above does nat include the impact on aceount of Acquisition of Subsidieny
Actuarial assumptions:
The fallowing were the principai actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

As at
Particulars
March 33, 2024
Giscount rate 1.20%
Salary growth rate 8.90%
Withdrawal/attrition rate (based on categorias) 54.30% to 74.10%
Mortality rate - 100% of LALM
2012-14

Expected weighted average remaining working lives of employees 26.31 years
Notes:

a} The discount rate indicated above reflects the estimated timing and currency of benefit payments. It is bosed on the yields / rates avaifable on applicable bonds as on the current
voluation date.

b The safary growth rate indicared above is the Group's best estimate of on incregse in suiary of the employees in future years, determined considering the genergl trend in inflation,
seniority, promotions, past experience and other relevant foctors such os demend and supply in emplopment market, etc.

¢) Attrition rate indicoted above represents the Group's best estimate of employee turpover in future fother than on account of retirement, death or disobl W determined considering
various fackors such as nature of business, revention policy, industry factars, post experience, et

Sensitivity analysis:
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ona of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below.

As at
Particwlars March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate {+/- 1%) 48,57 46.85
Discount Rate {+/-~ 1%} 45,85 48.50
Aftrition Rate {(+/- 50% of attrition rates} 44.20 56.79
Moriality Rate {-/+ 10% of mortality rates) 4771 47.70

The Sensitivity is performed on the DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameters constant. There is no change in the method of
valuation for the prior period. -
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Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

, Ag at
Experted cazh flows over the next {valued on undiscounted basis): March 31, 2024
1years 26.46
2105 years 26.44
6 to 10 years 188
More than 10 Years 0.05
Experience adjustments

Asat

Particulars March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligations 47.71
Fair value of plan assets -
Asset/{lizhility) racognized in the balance sheet 47.71
Experience adjustiment on plan liabilties™™ 6.85

**Noie: Above does not include the impact on account of Acquisition of Subsidiory

<. Compensatad absences:

The Group provides for accumulated compensatad absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on actuarial valuation,

As ot
Particulars March 31, 2024
Present value of unfunded obligation 26.79
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss [27.22)
Assumption
Discount Rate 7.20%
Salary growth rate B.90%

Withdrawal/attrition rate {based on categorias)

54.30% to 74.10%

e
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39 Tax expense

{a) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particutars Year ended
March 31, 2024
Current tax expense
Current year 186.12
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differances 17.85
Tax expense for the year 203.97
{b} Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Before tax Tax {expense) Net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of defined benefit lizbility {asset) {7.31} 1.85 {5.46)
Total {7.31) 1.85 {5.46)
{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
: Year ended

Particul

artarars March 31, 2024
Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 835.94
Applicable income tax rate (%) 2517%
Tax expense calculated at apglicable income tax rate 211.40
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax
Other adjustments {7.43)
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 203.97
Effective Tax Rate 24.28%

Note: The Group has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 1158AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation taws
{Amendment) Crdinance, 2019, Accordingly, the Group bas recognised provision for Income Tax for the year ended March 31, 2024 and re-measured its
Deferred tax assets/liabifity basis the rate prescribed in the aforesaid section and recognised the effect of change by revising the annual effective

income tax rate.

S
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40 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of

equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Dituted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of eguity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

Particulars

Year ended March

31, 2024
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group - A Tin Millions 635.97
Weighted average number of shares (Basic) - B No's 23,427,511
Dilutive Impact of potential equity shares for employee stock options outstanding No's 291,659
Weighted average number of shares (Diluted) - C No's 23,719,170
Basic earnings per share [(A/B) E 4 27.15
Diluted earnings per share [A/C) % 26.81
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Group faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Group assesses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary.
The Group records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters
in its financial statements, if material. For potentiat losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Group provides disclosure
in the consalidated financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The Group helieves that the cutcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Group's financial position and
results of operations.

a. Contingent Liability

Particular As at
March 31, 2024
Contingent Liahility in respect of:
For Income Tax (Refer Note 1 below) 12.15
For Income Tax {Refer Note 2 below) 0.07
For Employees State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) {Refer Note 3 below) 1.13

Notes:
1} In respect of Appeals pending before CIT(A) for Assessment year 2022-23 against the order received under section 143(3} of the
Income Tax Act by the Subsidiary. However, the Management is reasonably confident that no liability will devalve on the Subsidiary.

2} in respect of Income tax assessment for AY 2022-23 due to short credit of TDS, against which the Parent is in the process of filing a
rectification application u/s 154 of the Income Tax Act.

3} The Subsidiary has received a notice from Employee's State Insurance Corporation for the periad from July 2018 to March 2019
amounting to X 1.13 Million. Against the said demand, Subsidiary has preferred an appeal with State Insurance Court, Ahmedabad. The
Subsidiary has deposited 50% of the amount raised via demand. However, the management is reasonably confident that no lability wiit
devolve on the Subsidiary. '

b. Commitments

) As at
Particular March 31, 2024
Commitment in respect of:

Capital expenditure 28.60
Loans sanctioned but not disbursed 355.86

For the loans pertaining to Farm Equipment and Commercial Vehicle business amounting to X 1,642.86 Million as at March 31, 2024, the
Management of the Parent is in the process of collection of Registration Certificate Boak (RC Book) from the customers,

In case of Parent, Loans for Farm Equipment business amounting to X 54.65 Million as at March 31, 2024, first loss default guarantee
{FLDG} is provided by equipment manufacturer to the extent of 50% / 100%.

In respect of secured loans for MSME business amounting to £ 178.77 Million disbursed, the Parent is in the process of perfecting the
security.

Receivable / Payable balance in foreign currency — X Nil. The Group does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as on March
31, 2024.

Segment information

The Group operates in a single reportable segment i.e. lending, since the nature of the loans are exposed to similar risk and return
profiles hence they are collectively operating under a single segment. The Group operates in 2 single geographical segment i.e. domestic.
Hencgg;iﬁg?; iy separate reportable segments, as required by the Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’.
ity iy PR
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48 Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be
recovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2024

ASSETS

Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 7,768.40 - 7,768.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5.62 984.63 990.25
Receivables

{1} Trade receivables 16.34 0.13 16.47
Loans 9,745.63 28,254.12 37,999.75
Investments - 320.4¢ 320.40
Other Financial assets 514.87 1,140.34 1,655.21
Sub total 18,050.86 30,699.62 48,750.48

Non-financial assets

Current Tax assets (Net} - 25.11 25.11
Property, plant and equipment - 421.19 421.19
Intangible assets under development - 25.22 25.22
- 517.62 517.62
Other intangible assets - 157.37 157.37
Other non-financial assets 233.55 - 233.55
Sub total 233.55 1,146.51 1,380.06
Total assets 18,284.41 31,346.13 50,130.54
LIABHLITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
{l} Trade payables
{i} total outstanding dues of creditors of micro enterprises 821 - 821
and small enterprises
{ii) total outstanding duas of creditors other than micro 149.96 - 149.96

enterprises and small enterprises
{1) Other payables

{i} totai outstanding dues of creditors of micro enterprises - - -

and small enterprises

(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 22.44 - 22.44
enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 1,650.1G 6,054.04 7,704.14
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) 9,293.73 13,601.56 22,895.29
Subordinated Liabilities 0.16 579.10 579.26
Other Financial liabilities 1,208.19 268.83 1,477.02
Sub total 12,332.79 20,503.53 32,836.32

Non-Financial liabilities
Provisions 45.55 28.95 74.50
Deferred tax liabilities {net) - 253.70 253.70
Other non-financial liabifities 226,20 - 226.20
5" |Sub total 271.75 282.65 554.40

»{Total liabilities 12,604.54 20,786.18 33,390.72

|Net Assets / {Liabilities) (A - B) 5,679.87 11,059.95 16,739.82
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49 Related Party Disclosure

a, Name of related party and nature of relationship:

Name of Related Parties by whom control is exercised

Ultimate holding company BCC Atlantis ! Pre. Ltd. fw.a.f. March 27, 2024}
Adani Properties Private Limited {till March 26, 2024)

Halding company BCC Atlantis i Pte. Ltd. {w.e.f. March 27, 2024}
Adani Finserve Private Limited {till March 26, 2024}

Fellow subsidiary company Adani Housing Finance Private Limited (tll March 26, 20247
Adani Special Situations Private Limited (till March 26, 2024}
Adari Digital Services Private Limited (il March 26, 2024)

Enterprise under comman control Greenlight Advisors LLP (w.e.f. July 20, 2023)
Adani Hosgitals Mundra Pivate Limited (till March 26, 2024)
Addari Digital Labs Private Limited {tifl March 26, 2024}
Adani Foundation [till March 26, 2024}

Key management personnel Mr. 5agar R. Adani [Director} [tll March 26, 2024)
' Mr. Sarit Chopra {Director) {w.e f. March 27, 2024}
Ms. Suruchi Nangia {Director) {w.e.f. March 27, 2024)
Mr. Chong Kah Khen (Director) {w.e.f. March 27, 2024}
Mr. Gaurav Gupta (Managing Director & CEQJ
Mr. Wiral Shah {CFO)
Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi {Company Secretary)

Relative of key management personnel Mrs. Anjali Gupta

** Note: Aduni Housing Finance Private Limited become Subsidiary of the Parent Company from March 27, 2024

b. Transaction with related parties:

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

Current agcount transactions

Inter-carparate deposits received:

Adanl Finserve Private Limited 1,319.G60
Adani Digital Services Private Limited 240.50
Adani Special Situations Private Limited 113.00

Inter-corporate deposits repaid:

Adani Finserve Private Limited 1,419.00
Adani Digital Services Private Limited 240.50
Adani Special Situations Private Limited 113.00

Interest on inter-corporate deposits paid:

Adani Finserve Private Limited 5.55
Adani Digital Services Private Limited 1.58
Adani Special Situations Private Limited 061

Inter-corpotate deposits given (till March 26, 2024):
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 2.500.00

Inter-corporate depuosits received back [till March 26, 2024):
Adani Housing Finance Frivate Limited 1,082.50

interest on inter-corporate deposits received (till March 26, 2024}
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited 44.42
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49 Related Party Disclosure

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

tssue of Equity Shares including premiurm:

BCC Atlantis Il Pta. Lid. 9,145.69
Greenlight Advisors LLP 150.00

Issue of Warrants including premium:
BCC Atlantis H Pte, Ltd. 750.00

Direct Assignment Transaction {Acquisition of Pool}
Adari Housing Finance Private Limited 326,60

Payment of Service Fees for Birect Assignment Transaction (Acquisition of
Paol)
Adani Housing Finance Private Lirnited 011

Reimbursement of expenses:
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited - Receivable 86.09
Adani Finserve Pivate Limited - Reimbursement of share based payment 1o 6.72
employees - Raceivables ’

Others:

Adani Foundation 12.52
Adani Digital Labs Private Limited 2.10
Rent paid:

Mr. Gaurav Gupta . 437
Mrs. Anjali Gupta 427
Adani Properties Private Limited 1.24
Rermuneration:

Mr. Gaurav Gupta 3157
Mr. Viral Shah 2541
Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi 2.16

€. Transactions autstanding at year end

Particulars . As gt March 31, 2024

Amount Receivable:

Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Rent Expenses 0.03
Mrs. Anjali Gupta - Rent Expenses 0.03

——
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50 Leases

Group as a Lessee

The Group has entered into lease contracts for premises at various locations. Leases of premises generally have lease terms between 4 to 9

years. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets.

The Group also has certain leases of premises which are cancellabie in nature and leases for printers with lease term of 12 months or less for

which the Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions.

a. For carrying amounts of right of use assets (included under 'Property, Plant & Equipment’) and the movements during the period refer Note

15

b. Carrying amounts of lease liabilities {included under "Other Financial Liabilities’) and the movements during the period:

Particulars As at March 31, 2624
As at 1st April 214.48
Additions 139.88
Additions on account of acquisition of subsidiary 18.10
Disposals {14.50)
Accretion of interest 20.76
Accretion of interest on account of acquisition of subsidiary 1.02
Payments {60.78)
Payments on account of acquisition of subsidiary {2.90)
As at 31st March 316.05
c. Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 -
Within 12 months 47.22
After 12 months 268.82
Total 316.05
d. Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 45.44
Interest expense on lease liabilities 20,76
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value items {included in other expenses) 22.01
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 88.21

e. Cash flows and additions to assets / liabilities:

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of X 85,70 Million for the year ended March 31, 2624, The Group also had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets of ¥ 163.34 Miilion for the year ended March 31, 2024 and lease liabilities of £ 157.98 Million for the year ended March 31,

2024,

f. Future Commitments:

Future undiscounted lease payments for which the leases have not yet commenced

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
within 1 year 33.22
After 1 year but not more than 5 years

More than 5 years

229.65

g. Extension / Termination Options:
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51 Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management policy are to ensure that the Group complies with externally
imposed capital requirements from its regulators i.e. Reserve Bank of India {RBI) and maintains strong credit ratings and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages ifs capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. The capital
management policy is under constant review by the Board.

Regulatory Capital
The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated
September 1, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Asat

Particulars March 31, 2024
Capital Funds

MNet owned funds (Tier | capital) 11,572.00

Tier |l capital 476.26
Total capitai funds 12,048.26
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures 33,875.78
% of capital funds to risk weighted assets exposures:

Tier | capital 34.16%

Tier il capital 1.41%

Total capital Funds 35.57%

Note: Details presented are for the Parent Company

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained earnings including
current year's profit tess accrued dividends. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS - based results and reserves, as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The other component of regulatory capital is Tier I Capital, which includes
subordinated debt.

The Group is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of Reserve Bank of india {RBI).
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52 Fair Value Measurement

A. Valuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (L.e., an exit price), regardiess of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques. Refer Note 5.10 - Determination of Fair Valua {Accounting policy Note) for mare details on fair value hierarchy.

B. Valuation governance framework

The Group's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new preduct initiatives {including their valuation methodologies) are subject to
approvals by various functions of the Group including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observabte pricing inputs to models, independent price determination
or validation is used. For inactive markets, Group sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered

to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsible for

establishing procaduras governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards,

C. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2024

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis

Investments
-Investment in Security Receipts
-investment in Equity Shares of Other Company

- 80.74 - 80.74
- - 239.66 239.66
- 80.74 239.66 320.40

D. Vzluation Methodologies of Financial Instruments measured at fair value
Investment in Security Receihts
Investment in Security Receipts are measured based on their published net

rastrictions, if any. Such instruments are classified as Level 2.

investment in Equity Shares of Other Company

asset value (NAV], taking into account redemption andfor other

Investment in Equity Shares of Other Company is measured basis fair valuation report received from independent valuer, Such instruments are

classified as Level 3.
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52 Fair Value Measurement
E. Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

As at March 31, 2024

Fiﬁahcial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,768.40 - - - 7,768.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash 990.25 - - - 990.25
equivalents

Trade Receivables 16.47 - - - 16.47
Loans 37,959.75 - - - 37,99%.75
Other financial assets 1,655.21 - - - 1,655.21
Total Financial Assets 48,430.08 - - - 48,430.08

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 138G.61 - - - 180.61
Debt Securities 7,704.14 - - - : 7,704.14
Baorrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 22,895.29 - - - 22,8585.29
Subordinated Liabilities 579.26 - - - 579.26
Other Financial Liabifittes 1,477.02 - - - 147702
Total Financial liabilities 32,826.32 - - - 312,836.32
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Risk Management
Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Group's business activities, When the Group extends a corporate or retail loan, buys or sells securities in
market, or offers other products or services, the Group takes on some degree of risk. The Group's overall objective is to manage its
businesses, and the associated risks, in @ manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the
safety and soundness of the Group.

The Group believes that effective risk management requires:

1} Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuats within the Graup ;

2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate ; and
3} Firmwide structures for risk governance

4) Robust underwriting policy

S) Portfolio Maonitoring process

6) Fraud detection and prevention process

The Group strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development and
other measures.

Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks
assaciated with the various business activities. The risk function is manitored primarily by independent risk management team.

Our risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be abie to withstand market velatility and
scenarios of sharply declining prices. As a result, we follow conservative lending norms.

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. The Board, has empowered the Risk Management team, which has an independent Head who is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. On a perfodic basis the Head of Risk appraises the Board on the
overall risks, recommends change in the processes and policies and takes stock of the overall portfolia quality and key risk indicators.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures,
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit comimittee is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the resulis of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Group's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal &
credit control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prascribed policies
and apgroving loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and
verifications. Our key business processes are regularly monitored by the head of our business or operations. Our loan approval and
administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise delinquencies and maximise
recoveries.

At all levels of the Group's operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that all
business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.

tt is the Group's policy that a briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant members of the Group at regular
intervals for the utilisation of market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

e
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It is the Group's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected
to take ownership and be accountable for the risks the Group is exposed to. The Group's continuous training and development
emphasises that employees are made aware of the Group's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and responsibilities to
moenitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Group's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are
important elements of employees' annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographical region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, pofitical or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s
performance to deveiopments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on
maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlied and managed accordingly.
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Credit risk

Credlt rigk |5 the risk of financial loss 1o the Growp if 4 custamers or counterparties te Hnancial instrument fails to ducharge their contractual abligations and arlses prineipally from
Group 's Loans and advances to customer, Trade Receivebles and investrment. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to
accept for individual countarpartias and for gesgraphical and industry concentrations, and by menitoring axposurss in ralation to such limits, The Group has adopted a poiicy of
dealing with eredit worthy counter parties and obtain sufficient callateral, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of finznclal loss from default,

Cradit risk is monitored by the eredit risk department of the Group’s independent Risk Cantrofling Unlt. It is their respansibllity to review and manage cradit risk, including
ehvironmental and social risk for 2!l types of counterparties. Credit risk consists of line credit risk gars who are ible for their business fines and manage specific
paortfolios and exparts who support Both the line cradit risk manager, 25 wall as the business with tools like credit risk systems, policies, models and reporting.

The Group has estabdished a credit quality review process to provide gady identification of possitle changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties.
The Credit guatity raview process aims to allow the Group to agsess the potentlal hoss a3 result of the rizk to which it is exposed and take corrective agtinn.

The Group's intérnal rating graded on days past dus {DFPD) basis.-

0 DPO tu 300FD
31to 90 DRD
50+ DFD

53.L.1: Impairment aszessment

The referances balow show whets the Group's impairment assessiment and measuramant approach is set out in this report, It should be read in zonjunction with the surmmary of
matarial actount|ng policies.

{a) The Group's definition and assassmant of dafault and cure {Note 53.1.1.1},

[b) How the Group defines, calculates ang itors the probability of default, exp at defrult and loss given default {Motes 53.1.1.2t0 53.1.1.4 )

[¢] When the Group cohslders there has been a significant increase ih credit risk of an exposurs (Note $3.1.1.5)

{d} The Group's paticy of segmenting financial atsets where ECL is assessed on a collactive basis (Note 53.1.16)

{9} The detaifs of the ECL cakculatians for Stage 1, Stapa 2 and Staga 3 assets (Note 10.1)

53.1.1.1: Definition of default and care
Tha Group conslders a financizl instrument defaultad and therefore Stage 3 {credd-lmpaired) for ECL caleulations in ali cases when the borrowar becarmes 90 days past due on s

contractual payments, As a part of 2 qualitati of whethar a is in default, the Grovp alse considers 2 veriety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay,
‘When such avents occur, the Group carafully considers whather tha avant should result in treating the customar as d lted and therafore d as Stage 3 for ECL cakculations
or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such avants Include exposura to sector which |3 facing sore chailenging time in terms of d d and supply mi b, funding Issus that may

indleate yntlkeliness to pay ete,

53.1.1L.2 PD sstimation process
Probability of default {PD} is an estimate of the likelihaod of default over a glven time horizon, In the absence of sufflciant history of default the Grolup has primarily sourced the POs
from external default reports published by various rating agencies,

53.1.1.3 Exposure at default
The exposure st defauit (EAD) represants the gross carrying amount of the financial instrurnents subject to the impairment caleulation,

53.1.1.4 Loss given default

The LGD represents expected lostes on the EAD given the event of default, taklng Into account among other attributes the mitigeting effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the tirme value of monay. The LGD is computed in the following manner:

a) In case of Comnmercial Vahicls, Farm Eguipments, Homa Loans & Loan Against Property portfalios, the LGD percentage is determinad basad an the recovery sxperiance fram
closad casas.

b] In case of Small Business loans the LGE percentage is determined based on the estimated value of recovery fram the sale of coil 1 after considering r ble haircuts as
determined appropriata by the meznagemant whare latest fair value of coll | is rvot available with the it and '

¢} In casa of ather portfollos praxy LGD percentags as prascribad by the ragulatory authority {FIAB Approach) is cansiderad,

53.1.1.5 Slgnificant increase In cradiz rish

When determtning whether the credit sk has increased significantly since inltlal recognition, the Group considers both itatlve and quall ihlf in ahd bysis based
on the Group’s historical axparience, including forward-looking inf: ian, The Group id bla and supportable inf ion that is rel and flable without

undua cost and affort. The Group considars an exposurs to havs significantly incraasad in credit risk when the borrowar crossas 30 DPD but is within 90 DPD,

53.1.1.5 Grouping financial asiets measured on # collective batis

Tha Group assessas whethar the credit risk on an sxposure has increasad significantly on an individual or collective basis. For the purposes of a collactive evalustion of impairment,
loans are groupad on the basls of shared credit risk characterstics, taklng inta accaunt instrument type, cradit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, rarmalning terrn to maturity,
industry, geographical kacation of the bormawer and other relevant factors,

The Group combines thase axposurs [nte smailer homogeneous portfollas, bazed on a combination of internal and axternal characteristics of the laans, the Group has datermined
the followlng poots for the purpese of complting ECL:

a] Commercial Vehicle

b} Farm Equipments

<] Srall Business Loans

d} Short-Term Trade Finance .

@) Home Leans {

) Loan Against Propsry

gl Other Retal Loans
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53.1.1.7 Forward looking Adjustment

A measure of ECL is an unbiasad prabability weighted amaunt that is datarmined by svalvating & range of possible outzomas and using a reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort at the reperting date about past events, currant conditions and farecasts of futurs aconamic conditions, In the current year the
management has incorporated the impact of forward looking estimate through B it overlay.

§3,1.2 Anatysis of risk concentration

Concentration srise whan a number of counterpartias are engaged in similar business activities , or activities in tha same geographical region , or have similar economic features
that would cause thair ability to mast contractual obligation to be similarly affectad by chance in aconomic, pofitical or other condition . Conemntration indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Group 's performance to development affecting » particular Industty or gecgraphical location,

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the compenents of the balence sheet, Additional disclosuras for credit quality and the maximum exposura for cradit
risk par categories bassd an the Group's Internal rating grade and year-end stage classification are further disclosed in Nota 10,3,

Industry Analysis

Brmards - - L T E T Pl et T Yol
Financial assets

Lash and cash equivalents 7. 768 .40 - - 7, 768.40
Bank balances othar than cach and cash aquivalents 930,25 - - Sa).25
Trada and other racekabl 1647 - - 15.47
Luans . 7.212.35 30.736.80 37,993.75
Imvastments 3074 - 229.66 320.40
Other Fi ial Assats 1,6585.21 - - 1,655.21
Tasal 10,511.07 7,212.95 3L026.46 48,750.48

53.1.3 Coltateral and other credit anhancements
The amount and type of collateral reginred depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelinas are in plage covering the acceprabifity and valuation of aach
type of collateral,

The main types of collataral obtained are, as follows:
a) For carporata dending land, buildngs, residential properties and devalaprent rights of an under canstruction property
by For retar lendlng, mortgage property mainly residential property, vehicle, farm equipment

In its normai coursa of business, the Group does nat physically r propertiss or other 3ssets in its retail portfolio, but angages mxtarnal aganis to recover funds, ganarally at
auction, to settie outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to tha customarsfobligors. As » result of this practica, the rasid proparties under lgal repossassion
processas are not recorded on the balance sheet and not treated as non—current assets held for sale.

ial

Tha tablas an tha following peges show the maximum sxpasure 1o cradit risk by class of financial assat alang with details on coltataral hald against axposuce.

Finandial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7.768.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalsnts 240,25
i} Trade recelvables 1647
{H) Other receivables -
Lomns Secured 37,118.47 |fand, buildings, residential properties and development rights of an under construction

property, mortgage property mainly rasidantial property, vehicle, farm aguipment.

Loans Unsecured 1,585.60
Investments 32040
Other financia| assets 1,655.21
The Group has an Und Ioans & ad [ 1t ameunting ta % 35586 Millions

Collateral and other credit enhancerments
The belaw tables provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral hald and cradit enhancemants for stage 3 assets,

Loans
31-Mar-24 83727 386.23 47104 1.728.60

Narrative description of Collateral
Cotlateral prirnarily include vehicles purchasad by retail loan customers and machinery & property in case of Homa Loans, Loan Agzinst Froparty and Small Business loans customers.

Quantitative Information of Collateral
The Group monitors its sxposure ta lnan portfolio using the Loan Te Valua {LTV) ratio, which is calculated as tha ratio of the gross amount of the lozn to the valus of the callateral,
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meating obligations associated with financial {iabilities that are settled by defivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they falt due as a result of mismatches In the
timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.

Ta limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources and has adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in rmind and monltoring future cash flows and
liguidity on regular basis, The Group has developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash
flows and the avaitabillty of cash, cash equivalents and high grade colfateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Group maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The Group
also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs. in accordance with the Group’s policy, the liquidity position is assassed under a vartety of scenarios,

giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Group.

Advances to borrowings ratio

_{ AsatMisrch 33, 2024

Year-end 121.38%

Borrgwings from banks and financial institutions and issue of detrentures are considered as important sources of funds to finance lending to customers, They are monitored using
the advances to borrowings ratio, which compares loans and advances 10 customers as a percentage of secured and unsecurad borrowings.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
The tabie below surmmarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial assets and fiabifities as at:

As at March 31, 2024

Pariculars O D 3t 12 N | S0 b years L. Over 5 Years. L. Yotal. .
[Financial assets

Cash and cash eqguivalents 7,768.40 - - - - 7,768.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents - - S84.06 423.14 62.10) 1,069.30
Trade Receivables 17.03 - - - - 17.03
Loans - 585202 5,053.36 26,099.10 14 B64.56 55,869.04
Investmeants - - - - 320.40 32040
Other Financial assets - 206.4 A06.62 998.99 5113 1,663.11
Total undiscounted financial assets 7,785.43 5,058.36 10,044.02 27,501.22 15,298.24 56,707.30
Financial liabilitias

Trade Payables 2225 67.65 90.73 - - 180.62
Debt securitias - 465.07 206711 6,789.92 891.17 10,217.27
Borrowings (Other than Dabt Securities) - 3,128.77 273232 14,782.46 82.79 25,731.34
Subordinated Liabilities - 14.63 44.03 222.69 SE2.78 B64.13
Other Financial liabilities - 1,171.2% 33.44 200.84 71.45 1,477.02
Yotal undiscounted financial liabllities pral 4,851.40 9,972.63 21,995.90 1,628.18 38,470.39
Total net financial assets / {liabilities} 1,763.17 1,206.96 7141 5,525.32 13,670.06 28,236.91

Contractual expiey of commitments
The table beiow shows the contractual explry by maturity of the Group's commitments.

As at March 31, 2029

et

Estimated amaunt of contracts capital account - -

ks han 3 monthS

Total - -
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valug or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as Interest rates, equity prices and
Index movements. The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately. AH the positions

are managed and monitored using sensitivity analyses.

Total market risk exposure

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,768.40 7,768.40
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 990.25 990.25
Trade Receivatiles 16.47 16.47
Loans 37,999.75 37,9599.75
Investments 320.4Q 320.40
Qther Financlal assets 1,655.21 1,655.21
Tatal financial assets 48,750.49 48,750.49
Financial liabitities

Trade Payables 180.62 180.62
Debt securities 7,704.14 7,704.14
Borrowings (Other than Debt Secorities) 22,895.29 22 B95.29
Subordinatad Liabilitias 579.26 579.26
Other Financial liabilities 1,477.02 1,477.02
Total financial lahilities 32,836.32 32,836.32

Interest rate risk
Price risk
Interest rate risk

Iriterést rate risk
Intarest rate risk
Intarest rate risk
Interest rate risk

a. fnterest Rate Risk

The Group uses a mix of cash and horrowings to manage the liquidity & fund requirements of its day-to-day operations. Further, certain interest bearing liabilities carry vartable

interest rates.

For floating rate liabilities, analysis is prepared assuming the amgunt of liability cutstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables haid
constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Interest rate sensitivity

Bank Borrowings

As at March 31, 2024

{NR

100

[233.87)

100

233.87

b Price Risk

The Group's exposure 1o price risk arises from Investments classifled in the balance sheet at fair vaiue through profit & loss. Price risk is the risk that falr value or future tashflows
of a financial strument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment In prices of financiai instruments. Currently the Group's exposure to price risk is

not material.
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Disclosure of tnterest as per Ind AS 112

Disclosure of interest in unconsdlidated structured entity

1. Name of the entity

EARC TRUST 5C - 435

2, Principal pace of business

Edelweiss House, Off 5T Road, Kalina Santacruz (East), Mumbai -
400098.

3. Nature SPY of Asset Reconstruction Cempany

4, Size Security Recelpts lssued - T 214.29 Miilion (% 3074 hilllon ouststanding
as on March 31, 2024)

5. Activity Acguire the loan and ather flnanclal asset for the purposa of carmying the

activity of asset recanstruction or any other farm of resolution

6. Mode of Financing

Contribution from Security Receipts holder

7. Carrying amount of assets in relation to ingrests in EARC Trust 5C - 435

® 80.74 Million {Refer Note 11 Investments)

B. Carrying amount of liakilities in relation to inerests n EARC Trust SC - 435

® 3.69 Million {Refer Note 23 Other Financial Liabilities - Part of Cther
Fayables)

2. Maximum exgosure to loss is equivalent to investment cutstanding as on given date

% 80.74 Million

Mate: As at March 31, 2024, Group is holding 85% amounting to % B0.74 Million (PY - ¥ 153.89 Mlilion} of security receipts issued by EARC Trust 5C -435 and balance 15% security
receipts amounting ta X 14.25 Million (PY - € 27.16 Million) is beld by Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction Campany Ltd. However, Group will not have any power in removal of
trustee, appointment of new trustee and in the adrministration of the trust. Hence, Group need not consolldate EARC Trust in its books.
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Transfer of Financlal assets

Assignment Transaction:

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Group has sold lpans ang advances measured at amortised cost as per assignment deal. As per the terms of these deals, since
substantizl risk and rewards refated to these assets were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the Group's balance sheet, to the extent of share

of Assignee.

The management has evaluated the impact of assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future business plan, the Group business
model remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows.

The table befow summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amaortised cost and the gain an deracognition, per type of asset.

Uoaris and sdvances teasured st narised bost T Mk 3, 202K
Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 4,604.61
Day 1 gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost categary (A) 933,20
Unwinding on account of the actual excess interest spread realised and reversal of excess interest For.24
spread on foreclosed Joans {B)

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category {A - 8) 230.97

EIS unwinding is impacted / higher at each reporting date due to the foreclosure of loans compared to estimated receipts of future income, any impact of increase / decrease
In interest rate by the Group on floating rate ioans given to customers, and the change In interest rate by assignee bank. The management is of the view that netting off of
unwinding of EIS against cay 1 gein on derecognition of financial instruments rather than netting it off against interest income provides a better understanding of the
financial impact of the transaction.

Disclosure as per RBI Mater Direction DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021 for transfer of ioan exposures

atMarch 31,2024 Ad at March 31 2024
Number of loans 5,283 3,711
| Aggregate amount (% In millions) 3,488.18 1,116.43
Sale consideration (% In millions) 3,488.18 1,116.43
Number of rransactions 7 7
Weighted average remaining maturity {in months) 58.69 37.80
Weighted average holding period after origination {in months} 13.00 5.45
Retention of benefictal economic interest {average) 10.00% 20.00%
Coverage of tangible security coverage 100.00% 100009
Rating wise distribution of rated loans A, NA
Number of instances {transactions) where transferor has agreed to replace the transferred loans ) Nil Wit
Number of transferred loans replaced Nil Nil
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56 Employee Stock Option Pan

The Board of Directors teok the decision to intreduce Adani Empioyae Stock Optian Plan, 2020 (hareinafter called “ESCP 2020") and it was aprroved by the sharsholders at the Annual General
Meeting. The plan provides for the issuance of stock aptions to senlor emplayees. Under the plan, the Group has issusd serles of options with differsnt vesting pariod. Under the varluas serias, the
aptiens vest not earlier than 1 yaar and not later than 4 years from the date of the grant.

The details of the ESOP 2020 a5 on March 31, 2024%* are :
Options approved to be issued as ESOPs

Cate of Grant

Qptions granted

Method of Setttement

"+ Note: As per the resolution passed in the respective Board of Directors meeting, of the Company held an March 14, 2024 and of the subsidlary held on March 13, 2024, the Board grescribed 3
cash settlement against all unexercised vested options by the Company in terms of and pursuant to the Rettated ESOF S5cheme 2020, Upon tash settlement of unexercised vested options on March
27, 2024, the Company and the subsidiary paid in aggragate ¥ 18722 Millicn te the eligible amployeas for settlement. Of the total compensation paid on settlement, € 20.57 Million has besn
adjusted against retainad earnings of the Company as repurchass of equity Interest In line with Ind A3 102, Upon payments, the ESOP Scherne 2020 was tarminated.

a, Reconciliation of Options

Options Outstanding at the ¢
Options |

Options Exerclsed - - - - - .
Options Reinstated - - - - - -
Cptions Lapsed -
Options Settled {175,372) 191 {169,210} 191 {143,673 279
Qptions Dutstanding at the end of the year - - - - - .

g of the year 175,372 191 169210 151 143,673 279

Options O ding t the beginning of the year 371,475 18 77.450 16 289,568 14
Options Granted - - - N . -
Options Exerctsed - - - - . -
Options Rei :) - - - - R _
Options Lapsed - - - . . -
Dptions Settled [371,475) 16 {77,450} 16 1284,568) 13

Options O ding at the end of the year - - - - - .

b. Balance outstanding at the end of the year are as follows -

Vestad Cptians

Serles | . -
Serles |1 - -
Series N - -
Serias Y - -
Sefies - -
Series vl - -

Unvested Qptions
Series | - -

Seriaa il - -

Series |I[ - -

Saries IV - -

Saerias v - -
Sarias i . .
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¢. Weighted average remaining life of the ESOP outstanding

TG . . | . acstWahiL 20

Seras |
Series ||
Series |If
Series 1V
Sarigs V

Saries V|

d. Following amount has been recagnized as an expense ard included in ‘Note 33 - Employee benefit expanses’ and total carrying amount at the end of the period.

Expense arising fram equity settled share based payment transaction 727
carrylng amaount at the end of the year .

e, fair value of the options granted
Not applicable as NIL options are outstanding as at March 31, 2024.

Risk free interest rote
The risk-free interest rata being considered for the calculation is the interest rage applicable for maturity mqual 1o the expected life of the options based on tha zero-yiefd curve for Government
Securities.

Expected life of options
Time ta Maturity / Expected Lifa of options is the period for which the Group expects the options to be live. The minimuem life of a stock option is the minimurn period before which the options
cannot be exercised and the maximum lifa is the pariad after which the options cannot be exarcised. The expected fifs of an award of stock options shall take into account the follawing factors =

i. The expected |ife must at lsast include the vesting peried.

u. The average lengths of time of similar grants have remained cutstanding in the past. If the Group does not have a sufficiently long history of stock eption grants, the experienca of an apprapriately
comparable peer group may ba taken into consideration.

ili. The expacted life of stock options shauld not be less than half of the axercise permd of the stock options issued untll and unless the same |5 supported by historical avidences with raspact to stock
optlons lssued by the Group easlier.

A weighted average of vasts has been ealculated to arrive at the value of the optians granted.

Expected volatility

Volatillty is a measure of the amount by which a price has fuctuated or is expected to fluctuate during a period. Since each vast has been considered as a separate grant, we have considered the
wolatility for pariods, coresponding to the expected lives of different vests, prior to the grant date. The Fair value of an option is very sensitive to this variable. Higher the volatility, higher is the Fair
valise, The rationale being. the more volatile a stock is, the more is its potential to g up {or come dawn), and the more is the probability te gain from the movement in tha price. Accordingly, an
option to buy a highly volatile stock is mars valuable than the one to buy a less valatile stock, for the probaility of gaining is lasser in the jatter case.

Expected dividend pleld
Expected dividend yield has been calcylated based or the dividend declarad for 1 financial year prior o the date of grant, The dividend yield hag heen derived by dividing the dividend per share by
the market price par share on the date of grant,

o
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Distlosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR {NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109 /22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 pertaining to Assat {lassification as per RBI

Norms

As at March 31, 2024

Laoss Allowances Differance between
Asset Classiflcation as per Asset Classification as Grpss Carrying {Provisions} as Net Provision required as Ind AS 108 provisions
RBI Norms per ind AS 109 Amount as per kot AS T recatired under Ind g per IRACP norms
A5 109 and [RACP norms
(2} i2) 3} (4) {51=(3149 [6) {7)=14)-46)
Parforming Assets
Standard Stage 1 36,229.64 22763 36,001.96 139.13 B8.49
Stage 2 1,637.16 110.41 1,526.75 26.87 83.44
Subtotal for Performing Assets 37,866.80 338.09 37,528.71 166.1% 171.93
Non-Perfarming Assets (NPA)
Sut dard Stage 3 57717 214.42 462,75 76.82 137.60
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 106.17 97.38 823 4531 52.57
1to 3 years Stage 3 36.26 36.86 24,95 1191
More than 3 years Stage 3 6.56 6.56 - 6.55 -
Loss Stage 3 10.51 16G.51 - 10.5% -
k | for NPA 837.27 366.23 471.04 164.15 202.08
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1
commitments, stc, which are in the scope of Ind N " " " -
AS 109 but not coverad under current income| Stage 2 _ . . . _
Recaghition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
{IRACP) norms Stage 3 - - - : -
Subtotal for other items - - - - -
Stage 1 36,229.64 227.68 36,001.95 139.19 B2.49
Totad Stage 2 1,637.18 110.41 1,526.75 26.97 na
Stage 3 837.27 366.23 A71.04 . 154,15 202.08
Total 38, 7104.07 704.32 37,993.75 331131 374,01
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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59 Business Combination

On March 27, 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% stake in Adani Housing Finance Private Limited {AHFPL)} for an

upfront cash consideration of ¥ 1982.70 Millions pursuant to an agreement entered between the Company, its erstwhile holding

company ["Adani Finserve Private Limited / AFPL"), its erstwhile fellow subsidiary {AHFPL), certain other entities belonging to the

Adani group and BCC Atlantis Il Pte. Ltd. which rasulted into AHFPL becoming wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

a) Name of the acquiree: Adani Housing Finance Private Limited {AHFPL)

b} Description of the acquiree: AHFPL holds certificate of registration issued by the
National Housing Bank, without accepting public
deposits, and is in the busines of lending for home loans
and loan against property

¢} Percentage of vating equity interests acquired: 100%

d) Reasons for business combination: Business Synergies

e} Fair value of assets & liahillties recognised as a result of the acquisition:

Particulars

Assets

Lash and cash equivalants 3.26
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 102.42
Receivables 0.34
Loans {net) 6,720.18
Other financial assets 299.17
Property, plant and equipment (net) 29.27
Cther intangibie assets (net} 0.86
Gther non-financial assets 37.34
Total Assets {A) 7,192.84
Liabillties

Payables 133.39
Debt securities 313.90
Barrawings (other than debt securities) 4,465.25
Other financial liabilities 564.38
Current tax Habilities (net) 21.04
Provisions 11.27
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 34.09
Other non-financial liabilities 123.30
Total Liabilities (B} 5,666.62
Net identifiabie assets acquired (A - B) 1,526.22

f} Acquistion date fair value of the consideration transferred:

[ in cash 1,982.70




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Consclidatad Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in % in Milfions unfess otherwise stated]

) Calcutation of Goodwill:

The difference between the purchase consideration and amount attributable to identified assets and liabilities represents residual
goodwill in the business.

Purchase Consideration 1,982.70
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired {1,526.22}
Add: Share-based payment reserve 6.84
Add: Special Reserve under section 29C of the National Housing Bank 54.30
Act, 1987

GoodwiHl # 517.62

#Goodwill is not deductible for tax purpose

h) The revenues and profits contributed to the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Revenue
Profit before tax 33.35

i} Acquired Receivables

Fair value of acquired trade receivables
Gross contractual amount for trade receivables 0.34
Contractual cash flows not expected to be collected -
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LEIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Al amounts in T in Miffions unless otherwise stated)

The Group has maintained sufficient capital and liquidity position and it will continue the same going forward.

In assessing the recoverability of loans and receivables, the Group has considered internal and external sources of infarmation, including credit reports,
economic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these financial results.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent
in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not bean
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Other Additional Regulatory Information

Title deeds of immovable Properties not held in name of the Group
The Group does not have any immovable properties where title deads are not held in the name of the Group.

Loans and Advances

There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:

{a) repayable on demand, or

{b) without specifying any terms or period of repaymant

Details of Benami Propersty hetd
The Group does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has baen initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

Security of current assets against borrowings _

The Group has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate fromt banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Group. The quarteriy returns/statements filed by the Group with such banks are in agreement with the boaks of accounts of the
Group.

Wilfuf Defaulter
The Groug is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other {ender,

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off,

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Group dees not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

a} During the year, the Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities
{Intermediarias) with the understanding that the Intermediary shalt:

{i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimata

Beneficiaries), or,
{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarias.

b) During the year, the Parent Company has received funds from a foreign entity with the understanding that the Parent Company shall directly utilise
such funds for the acquisition of 100% equity stake of Tts erstwhile fellow subsidiary. Detalls of the transactions are as under:

Details of receipt of funds

N of the funding porty atE ohreee

BCC Atlantis || Pte. Ltd. 1,982.70 2?—Mar—24~

Details g_f utilisation of funds

Adani Housing Finance Private Limiteg 1,982.70 | Acquisition of 100% equity share capital 27-Mar-24
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Also, the Management of the Parent Company declares that refevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 [42 of 1999 and
Companies Act has been compliad with for above mentioned transaction and the said transaction is not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering

Act, 2002 (15 of 2003}

Further, during the year, the Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the Group shall provide any guarantee, security or the like to r on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

64.9 Undisclosed Income

The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Ingome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

64.10 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and any of the previous financial years.

64.11 Financial Ratios

1$7. No: [Pariculays o AT Rt March 31, 2024
1 |Liguidity coverage ratio {%) Not applicable as per RBI guidelines
2 |Debt - Equity ratio (Refer Note 1 below) 1.86
3 |Net Worth (Refer Note 2 helow) 16,739.82
4 |Total debts to total assets ratio {Refer Note 3 balow} 0.62
5 |Gross Stage 3 asset (%) [Refer Note 4 below) 2.16%
6 |NetStage 3 asset (%) (Refer Note 5 below) 1.23%
7 |CRAR {%) (calculated as per RBI guidelines) (Far Parent) 35.57%
8 [Tier- I CRAR (%) (For Parent) 34,16%
9 [Tier - Il CRAR (%}{For Parant) 1.41%
Note:

1. Bebt-equity Ratio = Tatal Debt {Debt Securities + Subordinated Liabilities + Borrowings other than debt securities) / Net worth

2, Net Worth = Equity share capital + Other equity

3. Total debts to total assets = Total Debt {Debt Securities + Subordinated Liabitities + Borrowings other than debt securities} / Total assets
4. Gross Stage 3 ratio = Gross Stage 3 loans / Gross Loans
5. Net Stage 3 ratioc = (Gross stage 3 loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3) / (Gross Loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3}
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65 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or
amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.

66 Upon change of majority shareholding and control, the Parent Company has obtained requisite approval / NOC from Shareholders and the
Reserve Bank of India for change of name. The Parent Company has submitted application for approval of Central Government for change of
name pursuant to section 13(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 29(2) and 33A of the Companies {Incorporation) Rules 2014 by
submitting Form No. INC-24 with Ministry of Corporate Affairs on April 24, 2024, The Parent Company is currently awaiting approval from the
Central Government for the proposed name change.

67 The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024 does not contain comparative information, as the
Parent Company acquired 100% equity share capital in its subsidiary on March 27, 2024,

This is the Consolidated Nates referred to in our report of even date
For Nangia & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Adani Capital Private Limited
IG4T Firfn Registration Numberi002391C/N500069 CiN: U659%30GI12016PTCN93692

W/ S urutha NO—“‘-?{_&.

teet Singh Bedi Mr. Gaurag.@upta Ms. Suruchi Nangia
Managing Director & CEQ Director
Membership No: 601788 DIN: 01669109 DIN: 07901622

Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi
Chif Financial Officer Compony Secretary
Membership No: A45158

Place: Mumbai Place; Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2024 Date: May 29, 2024




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Annexure |

{As required in terms of Paragraph 31 of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Mon-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Amount Amount
Particulars Qutstanding Querdue
Liabilities sige
{1) Loans and advances availed by the
non banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued
thereon ut not paid:
{a) Debentures : Secured 38,954 -

Unsecured -
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
{b) Deferred Credits -
{c) Term Loans (including loan repayable on demand) 228,853 -
{(d} Inter-corporate loans and borrowings -
{e) Commercial Paper - -

(f) Other Loans - Subordinated Debt 5793 -
{f) Other Loans - Pass-through Certificates 38088
Assets side Amount

Qutstanding
(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including biils
receivables [other than those included in (4) below]
{(a) Secured 371185
{b) Unsecured 15,856

(3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards Asset Finance activities

(i) Lease assets including iease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease -
{b) Operating iease -
{if) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors;
{a) Assets on hire -
{b} Repossessed Assets
{iii} other Ioans counting towards Asset Finance activities
{3} Loans where assets have been repossessed
{b) L.oans ather than {a) ahove

{4) Break-up of Investments ;
Cuirent investments

1. Quoted :
{i) Shares : (a) Equity
{t) Preference -
{ii} Debentures and Bonds ' -
{iii) Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Gavernment Securities -
(v) Others {please specify)

2. Ungquoted .
(i} Shares : (a} Equity
{b) Preference -
{(ii} Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities -

S



() Others

Particulars

Long Term investiments :

1. Quoted
{i) Shares : {a} Equity

b} Preference
{ify Debentures ang Bonds
{iii} Units of mutuat funds
{iv) Goavernment Securities
{v) Others {please specify)

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : {a) Equity

(b} Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iti} Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Others - Security Receipts

{5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3} above
Please see Note 2 beiow:

Category

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b} Companies in the same group
{c) Other relaced parties

2. Other than related parties

Amount
Gutstanding

2,397

807

Amount net of provisions

Total

{6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments
(current and tong term) in shares and sacurities

(both quoted and unguoted);

Please see note 4 above:

Category

1. Relsted Parties

{a) Subsidiaries

{b) Companies in the same group
{c) Qther relsted parties

2. Other than related parties
Totat

{?) Other information
Particulars
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a} Related parties
{b} Other than related parties
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
{3} Related parties
{b) Other than related parties
(i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Secured Unsecured Total
371185 15,856 387,04
371,185 15,856 387,011

Market Value / Book Vafue
Break up or fair (Net of
value or NAY Provisions)
3,204 3,204
3,204 3204

Amount

3,373

471G
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Board’s Report

To,

The Members

Tyger Capital Private Limited

(formerly known as Adani Capital Private Limited)

Your directors are pleased to present the Annual Report of your Company along with the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Summary of Financial Results for the financial year ended 31° March 2024 is as under:

(Amount Rs. in Million)

Standalone figures SIS
figures
For the For the For the | For the
year year year year
Sr. Particulars ended ended ended ended
No. 31st 31st 31st 31st
March, March, March, | March,
2024 2023 2024 2023
1 Gross Income 5,792.77 | 5,175.40 5844 .83 -
2 Finance Cost 2,515.70 | 1,885.57 | 2521.80 -
3 Impairment on Financial Instrument 503.11 364.12 500.47 -
4 Employee Benefit Expenses 1,384.15 | 1,200.86 | 1389.73 -
5 E;ﬁ::;f‘et;‘:n amortization and 103.88 | 9219 | 103.89 -
6 Other Expenses 484.33 41491 489.00 -
7 Net Profit Before Tax 801.6 1,217.75 839.94 -
8 Provision for Taxation 205.74 310.96 203.97 -
9 Net Profit After Tax 595.86 906.79 635.97 -
10 | Other Comprehensive Income -5.31 -1.71 -5.46 -
11 | Total Comprehensive Income 590.55 905.08 630.51 -
Transfer to Statutory reserve -
121 created /s 45-IC of %BI Act 19.17 181.36 )
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office; Registered Office:
Fax +91 22 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, IG(M,;"B. Adani House,
contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpura, Josh Aapka

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051,
Maharashtrag, India

Ahmedabad 380 009,
Gujarat, India

www.tyger.in
CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692

Saath Humara
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DIVIDEND

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to conservation of Profits to meet future
business requirements of the Company.

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The information on overall industry structure, economic developments, performance and state of
affairs of the Company, risk management systems, and operations of the Company is given in the
Management Discussion & Analysis Report which is forming part of Annual Report of the
Company.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year under review, your Company earned the gross income of Rs. 5,792.77 million as
against Rs. 5175.40 million in the previous year. The total expenditure during the year under review
was Rs. 4,991.71 million as against Rs. 3,957.65 million in the previous year. Net Profit After Tax
stood at Rs. 595.86 million as on year under review as against Rs. 906.79 million in previous year.
The total Comprehensive Income was Rs. 590.55 million as against Rs. 905.08 million in the
previous year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Authorised Share Capital

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from
30,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Crore) divided into 3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) shares of Rs. 10 each
to Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crore) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) shares of Rs. 10
each.

The Authorised share capital of the company for the year ended 3 1% March 2024 is Rs. 50,00,00,000
(Rupees Fifty Crores) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crores) Equity Shares of Re. 10/- each.

Paid-up Share Capital

During the year under review the Company has issued and allotted 2,51,613 (Two lakh fifty one
thousand six hundred and thirteen only) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, at a premium of Rs. 596.15
per share on 20" March 2024 and further issued 1,53,41,142 (One Core fifty-three lakh forty one
thousand one hundred and forty two only) equity share at a premium of Rs. 596.15 per share on
March 27, 2024.

The Paid-up share capital of the company for the year ended 31% March 2024 is Rs. 3818.01 million
divided into 3,88,01,841 fully paid-up Equity Shares of Re. 10/- each.
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Convertible Warrants

The Company has also issued and allotted 50,32,253 (fifty lakhs thirty-two thousand two hundred
and fifty-three) warrants (“Investor Subscription Warrants”) in consideration of INR 3,00,00,00,042
(Indian Rupees [three hundred crores forty two] to the BCC Atlantis II Pte Ltd. (“Investor”) on
preferential issue/private placement basis.

The initial warrant subscription amount of INR 75,00,00,458 (Indian Rupees seventy-five crores,
four hundred and fifty-eight only) will be received by the Company from the Investor upon issuance
of the Investor Subscription Warrants and a balance amount of INR 2,24,99,99,584 (Indian Rupees
Two Hundred and Twenty-Four Crore, Ninety-Nine Lakh, Ninety-nine Thousand, Five Hundred
and Eighty-Four) will be received by the Company from the Investor upon the issuance of equity
shares upon the exercise of the Investor Subscription Warrants i.e. issuance of equity shares by the
Company to the Investor upon conversion of the Investor Subscription Warrants.

LOAN OUTSTANDING

For the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Company’s outstanding borrowings amount stood
at Rs. 28,036.21 million as against Rs. 22,601.32 million for the previous financial year ended
March 31, 2023.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company’s borrowings have the following Credit Ratings:

. Rating / Outlook

Nature of borrowing CRISIL
Short Term Bank Loans CRISIL A1+
Long Term Bank Loans CRISIL AA-/Stable
Commercial Paper CRISIL A1+
Short term Non — Convertible Debentures CRISIL A1+
Long term Non-Convertible Debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable
Subordinated Tier Il debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable

Long term rating of the company has been revised to CRISIL A+/Stable w.e.f 8" April, 2024

DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has raised Rs. 4,000 million through Non-Convertible
Debentures (“NCDs”) on private placement basis. As on 31% March 2024, the outstanding NCDs
stood at Rs. 4,433 million.
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Credit Rating assigned to the NCDs is mentioned above. During the financial year under review,
interest on Non-Convertible Debentures issued on private placement basis was paid on due date and
there were no instances of interest amount not claimed by the investors or not paid by the Company.

Your Company being NBFC, is exempted from the requirement of creating Debenture Redemption
Reserve (DRR) on privately placed debentures. Therefore, no DRR has been created for the
Debentures issued by your Company on private placement basis.

Disclosure under Master Directions issued by RBI for Non-Convertible Debentures:

e The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the
investors or not paid by the Company after the date on which the Non-Convertible
Debentures became due for redemption: Rs. Nil

e The total amount in respect of such Debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid beyond the
date of such Debentures become due for redemption: Rs. Nil

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
The details of the Debenture trustees of the Company are as under:

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Axis House,

Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli,
Mumbai — 400025,

Mabharashtra

Email: debenturetrustee(@axistrustee.in
Website: www.axistrustee.in

LOANS FROM BANKS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has availed Term Loans/WCDL/OD/NCD facilities of
Rs. 20,068.33 million from various Banks / Financial Institutions/ Mutual Funds. As on March 31,
2024, the outstanding borrowings stood at Rs. 28,036.21 million.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any public deposits within the
meaning of the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under as well as not
accepted any public deposit within the meaning of the RBI Direction, as the Company is registered
as NBFC Company not accepting Public Deposits.
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NON- PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY

Your company adhered to the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as amended from
time to time. The Company has created provisions for contingencies on Standard Assets in
accordance with the RBI Directions.

The amount of Gross Non- Performing Assets (NPAs) as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 681.73 million,
which is equivalent to 2.08% of the loan portfolio of the Company, as against Rs. 400.04 million
i.e., 1.47% of the portfolio as at March 31, 2023. The Net NPA as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 384.46
million i.e., 1.19% of the loan portfolio as against Rs. 243.30 million i.e., 0.97% of the portfolio as
at March 31, 2023. The total cumulative provisions towards loan and other assets as at March 31,
2023 is Rs. 592.66 million as against 376.32 million in the previous year.

In order to prevent frauds in loan cases involving multiple lending from different banks / NBFCs,
the Government of India has set up the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and
Security Interest of India (CERSAI) under section 20 of the SARFAESI Act 2002 to have a central
database of all mortgages created by lending institutions. The object of this registry is to compile
and maintain data relating to all transactions secured by mortgages. Accordingly, your Company is
duly registered with CERSAL

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company is guided by the Risk Management Framework Policy framed in accordance with the
Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India.

The risk strategy laid down by your Company helps foster a disciplined culture of risk management
and control. In conjunction with these practices, your Company intends to optimise its capital needs
through growth, by achieving highest returns on capital employed while managing risks
appropriately.

Your Company continuously monitors loan portfolio. Portfolio level delinquency metrics are
tracked at regular intervals with focus on detection of early warning signals (EWS) of stress. These
limits are periodically reviewed based on changes in the macro-economic environment, regulatory
environment, and industry dynamics. Existing credit exposure in the portfolio is continuously
monitored and reviewed. Key sectors are analysed in detail to suggest strategies, considering both
risks and opportunities. Corrective action, if required, is taken well in advance.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATORY NORMS

Your Company is a Non-Deposit Taking Systematically Important Non-Banking Financial
Company holding Certificate of Registration number B.0100567. Your Company is also registered
as Corporate Agent (Composite) holding Certificate of Registration number CA0628 with
Insurance Regulatory Development Authority.
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PRUDENTIAL NORMS FOR NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES

The Company is in compliance with the Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances, as issued by the Reserve Bank of India, as
may be applicable to the Company.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR) / CAPITAL TO RISK ASSETS RATIO (CRAR)

Capital Adequacy Ratio is also one of the guidelines provided by the RBI to measure the amount
of capital, an NBFC retains compared to its risk. Capital Adequacy Ratio set standards
for NBFCs by looking at a NBFCs ability to pay liabilities, and respond to credit risks and
operational risks. An NBFC that has a good CAR has enough capital to absorb potential losses.
Thus, it has less risk of becoming insolvent and losing lenders’ money.

As per RBI Directions the Company is required to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio of
15%.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of your Company as at 31°' March, 2024 stood at 35.57%,
which includes CRAR of Tier-I Capital at 34.16% and CRAR of Tier-1I Capital at 1.41%.

SPECIAL RESERVE (STATUTORY RESERVE CREATED U/S 45-1C OF RBI ACT)

Pursuant to the provisions of section 45-IC of RBI Act, the Company is required to create a Special
Reserve and transfer therein a sum not less than 20% of its Net-Profit, every year.

During the reporting financial year, your company has transferred the amount of Rs. 119.17 million
in Special Reserve, as per the requirement of the section 45-IC of RBI Act. The closing Balance of
the said reserve as on 31° March 2024 stood at Rs. 366.82 million.

COMPLIANCE WITH CRITICAL POLICIES AND CODES

Your Company has in place a Fair Practices Code (FPC), as required by RBI, which includes
guidelines on appropriate staff conduct when dealing with the customers and on the organisation’s
policies vis-a-vis client protection.

Your Company has in place a Board approved Know Your Customer & Anti Money Laundering
Policy (KYC & AML Policy) and compliance with the said Policy are adhered with.

The Company has in place a Risk Containment Policy to establish an anti-fraud culture and promote
consistent organizational behaviour by providing guidelines to aid in fraud detection and
prevention. It will also communicate important deterrence message to staff and third parties that the
company is committed to a zero-tolerance approach to any fraud committed.

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)

Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:

Fax +91 22 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, ICIL'M)"E&. Adani House,

contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpurg, Josh Aapka
www.tyger.in Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051, Ahmedabad 380 009, Saath Humara

CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692 Maharashtra, India Gujarat, India


https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.corporatefinanceinstitute.com%2Fresources%2Fcareers%2Fbanking-sell-side-career-jobs%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cbalan.parthasarathy%40tyger.in%7Cce91e4f92b7249abe52708dcad47c997%7C38bb34e6212944b2b9a62a262d863fd5%7C1%7C0%7C638575771042050415%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NgVcBjoFm%2F%2BuVc9uOkNTltuq5QtubvXet63YA9NViD8%3D&reserved=0
https://ind01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcorporatefinanceinstitute.com%2Fresources%2Fknowledge%2Ffinance%2Finsolvency%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cbalan.parthasarathy%40tyger.in%7Cce91e4f92b7249abe52708dcad47c997%7C38bb34e6212944b2b9a62a262d863fd5%7C1%7C0%7C638575771042067092%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BsUiduO0jVINDhcUeNVzCX13ZArkKhFTggykfUUGKqU%3D&reserved=0

TYGE®*

CAPITAL

To ensure the redressal of Grievance of Customers, your Company has a Grievance Redressal
Policy in place, which is available on the website of the Company i.e., www.tygercapital.in. The
said Policy prescribed the detailed guidelines and Turn Around Time (TAT) to handle and resolve
the Customer Complaints.

The Reserve Bank of India Act empowers RBI to levy a penalty on NBFCs for contravention of the
Act or any of its provisions. Your Company has complied with the said provisions of all such
directions, guidelines and provisions etc. and accordingly RBI has not levied any penalty on your
Company during the year.

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE COMPANY/JOINT VENTURE DETAILS

As on March 31, 2024, BCC Atlantis II Pte Ltd is the holding company of the Company with
92.51% of the paid-up capital of the Company. Further, Greenlight Advisors LLP holds 7.49% of
the paid-up capital in the Company. Tyger Home Finance Private Limited (Formerly known as
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited) is the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company w.e.f.
March 27, 2024. Details with respect to the same form part of AOC-1 annexed herewith as
Annexure I.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
The composition of the Board of the company is as follows: -

e Mr. Gaurav Gupta

e Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla
e Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran
e Mr. Sarit Ranjan Chopra

e Ms. Suruchi Nangia

e Mr. Chong Kah Khen

- Managing Director & CEO
- Independent Director

- Independent Director

- Additional Director

- Additional Director

- Additional Director

Your Company being Private Limited Company, none of the Directors are required to retire by
rotation.

During the year under review the change in the composition of Board of Directors pursuant to the
Change in Control, Shareholding, Takeover and Change in Management of the Company is as

follows:
Sr. | Name of Director Appointment/ Date
No. Cessation
1 Mr. Sarit Ranjan Chopra Appointment March 27, 2024
2 | Ms. Suruchi Nangia Appointment March 27, 2024
3 | Mr. Chong Kah Khen Appointment March 27, 2024
4 | Mr. Sagar Rajeshbhai Adani Cessation March 27, 2024
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Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company at the 2nd
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the Company, held on September 28, 2018.
His tenure of five years ended at the 7th AGM of the Company. On September 8, 2023 the members
appointed Mr. Malla for a period of one year for the second term and Mr. Malla would be demitting
office as the independent director from the Board of the Company at the ensuing AGM of the
Company.

Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla has made substantial contributions to the Board and his vast knowledge
and experience in the field of corporate business leadership and management benefited the Board's
decision-making process. The Company places on record the appreciation for the services rendered
by him during his tenure as independent director on the Board.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Following officers are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per the Requirement of
the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEO
2. Mr. Viral Shah - Chief Financial Officer
3. Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

During the year under review there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

As your Company is neither a Listed Company nor a public company having a paid-up capital of
Rs. 25 crores or more, the statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has
been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual Directors
is not required to be disclosed.

POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Company duly follows the Policy on prevention of sexual harassment and the said policy seeks to
protect women employees from sexual harassment at the place of work. The primary objective of
the same is to safeguard the interest of female employees in the Company and provides for
punishment in case of false and malicious representations. The Company spread awareness on the
same by providing training to its employees at regular intervals.

During the year, no complaint has been received by the Sexual Harassment Committee.

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)

Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:

Fax +91 22 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, ICIL'M;'S. Adani House,

contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpurg, Josh Aapka
www.tyger.in Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051, Ahmedabad 380 009, Saath Humara

CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692 Maharashtra, Indic Gujarat, India



TYGE®*

CAPITAL

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Since the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, the disclosure regarding particulars of
loans, guarantees given and security provided in the ordinary course of business is exempted under
the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the Act. Details of Investments made by the Company is
disclosed in the Financial Statements forming part of Annual Report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
During the period under review 10 Board Meetings were held as per the following details:

1. April 29, 2023

2. July 20,2023

3. August 14, 2023

4. September 22, 2023
5. November 9, 2023
6. December 12, 2023
7. February 1, 2024
8. March 12, 2024

9. March 20, 2024
10. March 27, 2024

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submit its responsibility Statement: —

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. The Internal Financial Control procedure adopted by
the Company are adequate for safeguarding its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. During the year under review, the Internal Financial Controls were
operating effectively, and no material or serious observation has been received from the Auditors
of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

AUDITORS

M/s Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN 002391C/N500069Statutory Auditors
of the Company as on March 31, 2024. The Statutory Auditors complies with the Eligibility criteria
as prescribed under the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory
Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) read
with the applicable of Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors Report to the Members of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,
does not contain any qualification and is self-explanatory, hence does not call for any comment of
Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 read with
Section 177(9) of the Act (as amended from time to time), the Company has in place Vigil
Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy (‘“Policy”) to enable Directors and employees to report genuine
concerns or grievances, significant deviations from key management policies and reports any non-
compliance and wrong practices, e.g., unethical behaviour, fraud, violation of law, inappropriate
behaviour / conduct, etc.

The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee / Board from time to
time. None of the Directors or employees have been denied access to the Audit Committee of the
Board.

The objective of this mechanism is to maintain a redressal system which can process all complaints
concerning questionable accounting practices, internal controls, or fraudulent reporting of financial
information.

The Policy framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Act and same is
available on the website of the Company.
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During the year under review, one complaint was received from one of the employees (collection
manager/complainant) against his supervisors. Further, the RCU team has investigated the case.
Under the investigation the RCU team has checked the concerned information, and the complaint
was found to be vague and could not be concluded decisively from details provided. The enquiries
and evidence also failed to corroborate any of the allegations made. Further, it was found that the
complainant has a history of such complaints with his earlier organisations also.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company recognizes the responsibilities towards society and strongly intends to contribute
towards development of knowledge-based economy.

The Company has contributed INR 10.26 million (being 2% of average net profits for last 3 years)
towards CSR activities in FY 2023-24 through the Adani Foundation, as per the applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy of the Company. The Annual Report on CSR
containing the details on CSR spending is annexed as Annexure-II.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of the following Members:
e Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran- Independent Director

e Mr. Gaurav Gupta- Managing Director & CEO

e Mr. Chong Kah Khen- Additional Director

The Company has also formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which is available on
the website of the Company)

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Details of Committee of Board inter-alia including Composition, Terms of Reference and
number of meetings are disclosed in Corporate Governance Report, which is enclosed as
Annexure-III.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMP,
PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION

The company pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 has formulated
and adopted a Nomination & Remuneration Policy which is available on the website of the
Company i.e., www.tygercapital.in
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STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO
INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF
THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR

The Company duly ensures the Fit and Proper Criteria, as prescribed by RBI read with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of law, regarding the
appointment of Directors. Your Directors have submitted the required Disclosures and
Undertakings as required.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143
(12) OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GEOVERNMENT

There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under other than those which are reportable
to the Central Government.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

Members of the Company has approved Employee Stock Option scheme for attracting, retaining
and rewarding Employees of the Company. Board of the Company has granted the options to the
eligible employees of the Company, as detailed hereunder:-

Sr. No. | Particulars Employee Stock Option Scheme
L. Options granted Refer to the Note No. 57 of the Financial
II. | The Pricing formula Statements
III. | Options vested
V. Options exercised

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary course
of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and none of the transactions with the related parties
fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. In line with the requirements
of the Act, the Company has formulated the Related Party Transaction Policy which is also
available on the Company’s website i.e. www.tygercapital.in.

The Directors draw attention of the Members to Note No. 50 to the Financial Statements which sets
out related party transactions’ disclosures.
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During the year under review, there were no material contracts or arrangements, or transactions
entered by the Company with related parties. Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure IV to this
Report.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

The Company does not fall within the purview of the provisions of disclosure of Remuneration
under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
www.tygercapital.in.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Human Resource Development is considered important for effective implementation of business
plans. Constant endeavours are being made to offer professional growth opportunities and
recognitions, apart from imparting training to employees. During the reporting year, in-house
training programs were provided to employees, inter alia, in Lending Operations, Documentation,
IT System & Security, KYC & ALM Policy, Fair Practice Code etc. Your Company’s total
headcount stands at 2,700 employees as on 31% March 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT.

Pursuant to the No-Objection Certificate issued by the Reserve Bank of India April 22, 2024, the
shareholding and control of the Company was changed from Adani Group to Bain Capital Group.
Under this stake sale transaction entire shareholding of the Company held by Adani Finserve Private
Limited (“AFPL”) was transferred to BCC Atlantis II Pte. Ltd. (“BCC Atlantis”), a private company
limited by shares incorporated under the laws of Singapore, having identity number 202325060N,
and having its registered office at 1 Raffles Place, #36-01, One Raffles Place, Singapore — 048616.
BCC Atlantis is a wholly owned subsidiary of BCC Atlantis I Pte. Ltd., which form a part of the
Bain Capital Credit (“Bain Capital”) group.

Under the aforesaid transaction, Mr. Sagar Rajeshbhai Adani has stepped down from the position
of Director of the Company and three Directors namely Mr. Sarit Ranjan Chopra, Ms. Suruchi
Nangia and Mr. Chong Kah Khen were appointed as Additional Directors pursuant to the approval
of the Board of Directors and Shareholders at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March
27,2024.
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Further, pursuant to the approval of the Registrar of Companies, Central Processing Centre, the
name of the Company had changed from Adani Capital Pvt. Ltd. to Tyger Capital Pvt. Ltd. w.e.f.
June 6, 2024.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, the rules made there under relating to conservation
of energy, technology absorption do not apply to your Company as it is not a manufacturing
Company. However, your Company has been increasingly using information technology in its
operations and promotes conservation of resources.

Details relating to Foreign Exchange Inflows and Outflows is given herein below:
Rs. in Millions

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31, As at

2024 2023 March 31, 2022
Foreign Currency Transaction (Outflow) 3.85 1.96 2.37
Receivable and Payable outstanding in
foreign currency - - -

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: NIL

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE
AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
THE REASONS THEREOF: NIL

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company has
appointed M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Company Secretaries in whole-time practice, based in
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Ahmedabad, to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year under consideration i.e.,
FY 2023-24.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers, mentioned in Secretarial
Audit Report provided by the aforesaid Secretarial Auditors in the prescribed format i.e., MR-3,
since the Company has ensured compliance of all the applicable regulatory and statutory provisions
of law(s). The report of the Secretarial Auditors is annexed as Annexure V.

Further, as there is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer is given by the
Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report and by the Company Secretary in practice in their
Secretarial Audit Report, hence there is no explanation or comments have been given by the Board.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude to the Reserve Bank of India, Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India, Office of Registrar of Companies, BSE Ltd, the
Company’s Customers, Creditors, Bankers, Investors, Members, Vendors and others for the
continued support and faith reposed in the Company. The Board also places on record its deep
appreciation for the dedication and commitment of the employees at all levels. The Directors would
also like to thank the Credit Rating Agencies for their co-operation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tyger Capital Private Limited

Sd/-

Gaurav Gupta

Managing Director & CEO
DIN- 01669109

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 7, 2024
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Annexure |

FORM AOC1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries
(All amounts in Millions unless otherwise stated)

SI. No.-1

Name of the subsidiary — Tyger Home Finance Private Limited (formerly known as
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited)

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding
company's reporting period — April 01 to March 31

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant
financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries — Not applicable

Share capital — Rs. 1357.29
Reserves & surplus — Rs. 1688.30
Total assets — Rs. 8090.37

Total Liabilities — Rs. 5,044.78
Investments — Rs. 96.38

. Turnover — Rs. 944.57

. Profit before taxation —Rs. 91.35

. Provision for taxation —Rs. 24.43

. Profit after taxation — Rs. 66.92

. Proposed Dividend - Nil

. % of shareholding — 100% (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - None
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - None

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures — Not applicable

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date




2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture

Extend of Holding %

3. Description of how there is significant]
influence

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is
not consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation
i. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during
the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tyger Capital Pvt. Ltd.

Sd/-

Mr. Gaurav Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN- 01669109

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 7, 2024
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Annual Report on CSR Activities
for the Financial Year
2023-24

1. BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY.

The Board of Directors in its Meeting dated 29th June 2018 adopted the CSR Policy of the Company
in compliance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) The Company endeavors to contribute to CSR activities as specified under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013. A corpus with an amount at least 2% of the Average Net Profits* of the
Company made during the 3 (Three) immediately preceding financial years will be made for this
purpose as per the provisions of the Act and rules made there under.

b) As a part of CSR program, the Company plans to focus on the activities as defined in the
schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Implementation of CSR Projects
The Company shall implement the identified CSR Projects by the following means:

I. Direct Method

1. The Company may itself implement the identified CSR Projects presently within the scope
and ambit of the Thrust Areas as defined in the Policy;

2. The Company may also implement the identified Projects presently through its Foundation
or Society which is involved in CSR activities, within the scope and ambit of the Thrust
Areas as defined in the
Policy.

3. The CSR Officer may engage external professionals/firms/agencies if required, for the
purpose of implementation of its CSR Projects.

4. The Company may collaborate with other companies, including its Group Companies if
required, for fulfilling its CSR objects through the Direct Method, provided that the CSR
Committees of respective companies are in a position to monitor separately such CSR
Projects.

II. Indirect Method

1. The Company may implement the identified CSR Projects through Agencies, subject to the
condition that:

e The activities pursued by the Agency are covered within the scope and ambit of Schedule
VII to the Act provided

e The Agency has an established track record of at least three years in undertaking similar
programs or projects, and
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e The Company has specified the Project to be undertaken through the Agency which shall
preferably be in Thrust Areas, the modalities of utilization of funds on such Projects and
the monitoring and reporting mechanism which shall be at least once in three months.

2. The Company may collaborate with other companies, including its holding and subsidiary
Companies and Group Companies if required, for fulfilling its CSR objects through the Indirect
Method provided that the CSR Committees of respective companies are in a position to monitor
separately such Projects.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:
SI. No. | Name of Director |Designation / Number of (Number of meetings
Nature of meetings of CSR of CSR
Directorship Committee held | Committee attended
during the year during the year
1. [Ms. Padmal Independent 1 1
Chandrasekaran Director
(Chairperson)
2. Mr. Gaurav Gupta Managing 1 1
Director & CEO
(Member)
3. [Mr. Chong Kah| Director 1 0
Khen* (Member)

*During the year on March 27, 2024 the corporate social responsibility committee was re-
constituted on March 27, 2024 and Mr. Chong Kah Ken was included as a member of the
Committee in place of Mr. Sagar Adani.

3. WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND CSR
PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF

THE COMPANY.

1) Company’s CSR

Policy is

https://www.tygercapital.in/Downloads

available at the

following

weblink:-

2) Composition of CSR Committee is provided in point no. 2 of this report, which also forms part
of Annual Report. The report is also available on the website of the Company.
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4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out
in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

The Company has contributed Rs. 102.57 lakh through Adani Foundation to support Gondia
Education Society for educational facilities for poor students..

5(a). AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5):
Rs. 5,128.44 Lakh.

(b). TWO PERCENT OF AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER
SECTION 135(5): Rs. 102.57 Lakh (After rounding of¥).

(c). SURPLUS ARISING OUT OF THE CSR PROJECTS OR PROGRAMMES OR ACTIVITIES
OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEARS: Not Applicable, as there is no surplus arising out of
the CSR Project.

(d). AMOUNT REQUIRED TO BE SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: Not

Applicable

(e). TOTAL CSR OBLIGATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (7A+7B-7C):  Rs. 102.57

Lakh.

6(a). Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project): Rs. 98.16 Lakhs (Ongoing Project).

(b). Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Rs. 4.41 Lakh.
(c). Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable. (d). Total amount
spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 102.57 Lakh

(e). CSR Amount Spent for the Financial Year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Amount Unspent under Schedule VII as per second proviso
Spent for the | CSR Account as per section to section 135(5).
Financial 135(6).
Year. (in Rs.)
1,02,57,000 Amount. Date of Name of the | Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
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(). EXCESS AMOUNT FOR SET OFF, IF ANY: Not Applicable
Sl Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(i) |Two percent of average net profit of the company as -
per section 135(5)
(i1) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year -
(ii1) |Excess amount spent for the financial year -
[(iD)-(1)]
(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes -
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) |Amount available for set off in succeeding financial -
years [(ii1)-(iv)]

7. DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL

YEARS: Not Applicable
SI. [Preceding Amount |Amount transferred to any  Amount Deficie ncy,
No. | Financial |Amount spent in fund specified remaining to | if any
Year. |transferred the under Schedule VII as be
to Unspent |reporting |per section 135(6), if any.| spentin
CSR Financial succeeding
Account Year (in financial
under Rs.). |Name|Amount | Dateof | years.(in
section of |(in Rs). | transfer.
135 (6) (in the Rs.)
Rs.) Fund
1. FY-1 - - - - - - -
2. FY-2 - - - - - - -
3. FY-3 - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - -

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

Yes

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
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If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

SI. | Short Pin code | Date of Amoun Details of entity/ Authority/
No | particulars of the creation |t beneficiary of the registered owner
of the property of CSR
property or | or amount
asset(s) asset(s) spent
[including
complete

address and
location of
the

property]

CSR Nam Registered
Registration e address
Number, if

applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable
property as well as boundaries)
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9. SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER CENT
OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER SECTION 135(5): Not Applicable

For Tyger Capital Private Limited
(formerly known as Adani Capital Private Limited)

Sd/-
Gaurav Gupta

Managing Director & CEO
(Chairperson of CSR Committee)

DIN: 01669109
Date: August 7, 2024
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Annexure II1 S o
Corporate Governance Report
Tyger Capital Pvt. Ltd.
(Formerly known as Adani Capital Pvt. Ltd.)
FY 2023-24
A) Corporate governance
1) Composition of the Board
Capacit Number of Board Remuneration
y (i.e. Meetings No. of
Executive shares held
Sl / Non- No. of in and
N | Name Directo Executive | g other Salary ponvertlble
Y of r since ./ Directo and Sittin | Com instruments
Director Chairman r ships other . si held in the
/ Held |Attended g NBEC
compen Fee on
Promoter . . .
nominee/ satlo.n (RS'. m (RS =
Ind d (Rs. in Milli | Millio
ndepende Million | on) | n)
nt) )
1 M. 02-05-2018Independent (001366 10 9 12 Nil 1.20 Nil Nil
IRajender 57
IMohan
Malla
2 IMs. Padma [07-04-2021|Independent (066094 10 9 4 Nil 1.20 Nil Nil
Chandrase 77
karan
3 M. *12-09-  |Managing 016691 10 10 11 31.57 Nil Nil Nil
Gaurav 2016 Director & |09
Gupta CEO
4 IMr. Sarit [27-03-2024|Additional 066392 10 0 10 Nil Nil Nil Nil
IRanjan Director 74
Chopra**
5 M. 27-03-2024 079016 10 0 19 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Suruchi IAdditional 22
Nangia** Director
6 IMr. Chong [27-03-2024|Additional  |104855 10 0 20 Nil Nil Nil Nil
IKah IDirector 36
IKhen**

Note: *Mr. Gaurav Gupta was appointed as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 31-03-2021.
** Mr. Sarit Ranjan Chopra, Ms. Suruchi Nangia and Mr. Chong Kah Khen were appointed as an Additional Directors by
the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on March 27, 2024 (being the last Board meeting of Financial

year).

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year:

Sr. Name of Director Appointment/Cessation Date of
No. Appointment/Cessation
1 Mr. Sarit Ranjan Chopra Appointment March 27, 2024
2 Ms. Suruchi Nangia Appointment March 27, 2024
3 Mr. Chong Kah Khen Appointment March 27, 2024
4 Mr. Sagar Adani Cessation March 27, 2024
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(Formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
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Where an independent director resigns before expiry of her/ his term, the reasons for resignation as given by
her/him shall be disclosed: Nil

Details of any relationship amongst the directors inter-se shall be disclosed: Nil

2) Committees of the Board and their composition

i. Names of the committees of the Directors and terms of reference:

No.

Sr. Name of Committee and Members

Terms of Reference

1 Audit Committee

Recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors;
Review and monitor the auditor’s
independence  and  performance and
effectiveness of audit process;
Examination of the financial statements and
the auditors’ report thereon;
Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions with related parties
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments
Valuation of undertaking or assets of the
company as may be necessary
Evaluation of internal financial controls and
risk management systems;
Monitoring the end use of funds raised by the
Company
Review of the observations of the auditors, if
any
Review of financial statements before
submission of the same to the Board focusing
mainly on :

changes in accounting policies and

practices;

the going concern assumption;

Compliance with accounting standards;

Investigate any matter specifically referred by
the Board

2 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC)

Formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications,  positive  attributes  and
independence of a director.

Identify persons who are qualified to become
Director and persons who may be appointed in
Key Managerial and Senior Management

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)

Tel +9122 62411200

Fax +91 22 2652 0650
contact@tyger.in
www.tyger.in

CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692

Corporate Office:
One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5,

10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051,
Maharashtrag, India

Registered Office:
Adani House,

Navrangpurg,
Ahmedabad 380 009,

Gujarat, India

Josh Aapka
Saath Humara



TYGE®*

CAPITAL

positions in accordance with the criteria laid
down in this policy.

e Recommend to the Board, appointment and
removal of Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel.

e To look into the entire gamut of remuneration
packages for the Executive Director(s) and
senior personnel’s of the Company and revise
their remuneration suitably within the limits
prescribed under any statutory  acts,
amendments, modifications or enactments
thereof

e To formulate and implement one or more
Employees’ Stock Option Scheme(s) for the
benefit of the employees including Directors of
the Company.

e To determine the commissions payable to the
Directors within the prescribed limits and as
approved by the shareholders of the Company

e To undertake such other acts or activities as
may be determined by the Board of the
Company.

e And other Terms, as specified in Nomination
and Remuneration Policy.

3 Corporate Social Responsibility e Formulate and recommend to the Board, a

Committee (CSR Committee) Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by
the company as specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013

e Recommend the amount of expenditure to be
incurred on the activities referred to in clause (i)

e Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy of the company from time to time.

e Update the Board on the implementation of
various programs and initiatives.

4 Finance Committee e Allotment of all type of securities/money
market instruments on such terms and
conditions as may be agreed from time to time
in this regard.

e Issue of shares certificate/ debenture certificate/
letter of allotment or any type of certificates
which is required for the allotment of the
securities.

e To borrow moneys

e To invest funds of the Company.

Tyger Capital Put Ltd
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e To grant loans or give guarantee or provide
security in respect of loans

e To consider and approve/accept the letters of
sanction by the term lending institutions
/Banks/NHB and other bodies corporate,
opening and/or closing of the current
accounts/cash credit/overdraft/fixed deposits or
other account(s) with any bank and authorize
the Directors/officers of the Company for the
purpose.

e To authorize operation of such accounts of the
company with its bankers and to vary the
existing authorization to operate the same and
granting of general/specific power of attorney
to the officers at the branches for routine
matters and any such matters pertaining to the
routine functions.

e To approve the change/s of rate of interest of all
loan products or on debentures, debts or any
other instruments/financial products issued by
the company.

e To open and close the current account(s) with
any bank(s) at any place outside the territory of
India and to finalize/vary the authorization(s) to
operate the same.

e To open and close the
securities/demat/custodian  account(s) with
any depository/ participant at any place in India
and abroad and to finalize/vary the
authorization(s) to operate the same.

e To consider and approve the split of share
certificate(s)/ Debenture Certificate(s)/ all type
of securities certificate(s).

e To consider and approve the transfer/
transmission of shares/ Debentures/ all type of
securities.

e To consider and approve proposals for direct
assignment and securitization and transfer of
assets from time to time.

e Any other matter with as may be delegated by
the Board from time to time.

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)

Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
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5 Risk Management Committee (RMC) | The Risk Management Committee shall be responsible
for setting up and reviewing risk management policies
of the Company from time to time. The Risk
Management Committee shall primarily be responsible
for identifying, monitoring, managing and mitigating
the credit risk, market risk, operational risk and other
risks of the Company that can be applicable to the
Company considering the business operations of the
Company through integrated risk management systems,
strategies and mechanisms.

6 IT Strategy Committee e Approving IT strategy and policy documents
and ensuring that the management has put an
effective strategic planning process in place

e Approving IT strategy and policy documents
and ensuring that the management has put an
effective strategic planning process in place

e Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of
risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable

e Monitoring the method that management uses
to determine the IT resources needed to achieve
strategic goals and provide high-level direction
for sourcing and use of IT resources

e Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for
sustaining NBFC’s growth and becoming
aware about exposure towards IT risks and

controls
ii. Composition and other details of Committees:
1. Audit Committee
Membe Capacity Number of No. of
Sl Name of r of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commit the Committee in the
tee since Held Attended Company
1 Mr. R. M. Malla 19-05- Independent 4 4 0
2018 Director and
Chairman of the
Committee
2 Ms. Padma 07-04- Independent 4 4 0
Chandrasekaran 2021 Director and
Member of the
Committee
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
Fax +9122 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, Adani House,
contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpura, Josh Aapka
www.tyger.in Bandra East, Mumbai 400 05], Ahmedabad 380 008, Saath Humara

CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692 Maharashtra, Indic Gujarat, India




TYGE®*

CAPITAL
3 Mr. Gaurav Gupta 19-05- Managing Director 4 4 0
2018 & CEO and
Member of the
Committee
2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Memb Capacity Number of No. of
SL. Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Held Attended Company
since
1 Ms. Padma 07-04- Independent 2 2 0
Chandrasekaran 2021 Director and
Chairperson of the
Committee
2 Mr. R. M. Malla 19-05- Independent 2 2 0
2018 Director and
Member of the
Committee
3 |Mr. Chong Kah 27-03- Additional Director 2 0
Khen* 2024 and Member of the
Committee

*Mr. Sagar Adani ceases to be the member and Mr. Chong Kah Khen has been appointed as Member of
NRC w.e.f. March 27, 2024.

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)

Memb Capacity Number of No. of
SI. Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Held Attended Company
since
1 [Ms. Padma 27-11- Independent 1 1 0
Chandrasekaran 2022 Director and
Chairperson of the
Committee
2 Mr. Gaurav Gupta 19-05- Managing Director 1 1 0
2018 & CEO and
Member of the
Committee
3 |Mr. Chong Kah 27-03- Additional Director 1 0 0
Khen* 2024 and Member of the
Committee

*Mr. Sagar Adani ceases to be the member and Mr. Chong Kah Khen has been appointed as Member of
CSR Committee w.e.f. March 27, 2024.

Tyger Capital Put Ltd
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4. Finance Committee
Member Capacity Number of No. of
SL Name of of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Committe the Committee in the
e since Held Attended Company
1 [Mr. Gaurav Gupta 18-06- Managing 21 21 0
2021 Director & CEO
and Chairman of
the Committee
2 Mr. R. M. Malla 18-06- Independent 21 13 0
2021 Director and
Member of the
Committee
3 [Ms. Suruchi 27-03- Additional 21 0 0
Nangia* 2024 Director and
Member of the
Committee

*Mr. Sagar Adani ceases to be the member and Ms. Suruchi Nangia has been appointed as Member of
Finance Committee w.e.f. March 27, 2024.

5. Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Membe Capacity Number of No. of
Sl Name of r of Meetings of shares held
No.| Member Commit the Committee in the
tee since Held Attended Company
1 Mr. R. M. Malla 07-04- Independent 3 2 0
2021 Director and
Chairman of the
Committee
2 Mr. Gaurav Gupta 19-05- Managing Director 3 3 0
2018 & CEO and
Member of the
Committee
3 Ms. Suruchi 27-03- Additional Director 3 0 0
Nangia* 2024 and Member of the
Committee
4 Mr. Rajaram 07-04- Chief Risk Officer 3 3 0
Manian B 2021 and Member of the
Committee
* Ms. Suruchi Nangia has been appointed as Member of RMC w.e.f. March 27, 2024.
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
Fax +9122 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, Adani House,
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6. Information Technology Strategy Committee (IT Strategy Committee)
Memb Capacity Number of No. of
Sl Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Held Attended Company
since
1 Ms. Padma 27-11- Independent 3 3 0
Chandrasekaran 2022 Director and
Chairperson of the
Committee
2 Mr. Gaurav Gupta 19-05- Managing Director 3 3 0
2018 & CEO and
Member of the
Committee
3 Mr. Chong Kah 27-03- Additional Director 3 0 0
Khen* 2024 and Member of the
Committee
4 Mr. Shamod 27-03- Chief Operating 3 0 0
Madanmohan* 2024 Officer and
Member of the
Committee
5 Mr. Amit Vatsa* 23-05- Chief Digital 3 3 0
2022 Officer and
Member of
Committee
6 Mr. Naved 23-05- Head Business 3 3 0
Hussain 2022 Solution Group -IT
& Projects and
Chief Technology
Officer and
Member of the
Committee

*Mr. Amit Vatsa ceased to be member and Mr. Chong Kah Khen and Mr. Shamod Madanmohan has
been appointed as the Member of IT Strategy Committee w.e.f. March 27, 2024.

3) General Body Meetings
Give details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings.

S1. No. | Type of Meeting Date and Place Resolutions passed
(Annual/Extra-Ordinary)
1 Annual General Meeting Date: September 8, 2023 3
Place: Ahmedabad

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(Formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
Fax +91 22 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, ICIOd,f'&E. Adani House,
contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpura, Josh Aapka

www.tyger.in

CIN: UB5990GJ2016PTC093692

Bandra East, Mumbai 400 051,
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2 Extra-Ordinary General Date: October 16, 2023 1
Meeting
Place: Mumbai
3 Extra-Ordinary General Date: February 5, 2023 1
Meeting
Place: Mumbai
4 Extra-Ordinary General Date: March 14, 2024 2
Meeting
Place: Mumbai
5 Extra-Ordinary General Date: March 20, 2024 1
Meeting
Place: Mumbai
6 Extra-Ordinary General Date: March 27, 2024 2
Meeting
Place: Mumbai

4) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

Give details and reasons of any default in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act,
2013, including with respect to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards:

Nil

5) Details of penalties and strictures
(Details of penalties or stricture imposed on it by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority):
A Fine of Rs. 10,000 was imposed by BSE Ltd. pursuant to delay in submission of Record Date
intimation as per Regulation 60(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

B) Breach of covenant

Nil

C) Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

Nil

For Tyger Capital Pvt. Ltd.

Sd/-
Gaurav Gupta

Managing Director & CEO

DIN- 01669109

Date: August 7, 2024

Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
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Registered Office:
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Annexure IV

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
For FY 2023-24

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
NOT APPLICABLE

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

NOT APPLICABLE
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tyger Capital Pvt. Ltd.
Sd/-
Mr. Gaurav Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN- 01669109
Place: Mumbai
Date: August 7, 2024
Tyger Capital Pvt Ltd
(formerly Adani Capital Pvt Ltd)
Tel +9122 62411200 Corporate Office: Registered Office:
Fax +9122 2652 0650 One BKC, C-Wing, 1004/5, Adani House,
contact@tyger.in 10th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Navrangpura, Josh Aapka
www.tyger.in Bandra East, Mumbai 400 05], Ahmedabad 380 008, Saath Humara
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Annexure V

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Tyger Capital Private Limited (Formerly known as Adani Capital Private Limited)
Address - Adani House, 56 Shrimali Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Tyger Capital Private Limited (Formerly
known as Adani Capital Private Limited) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit by using appropriate Information technology tools like virtual data sharing by way of
data room and remote desktop access tools, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The physical Inspection or Verification of
documents and records were taken to the extent possible:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according
to the provisions of:

(i). The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii). The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii).  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv).  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment

and External Commercial Borrowings;

(V). The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-



a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009:-Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018:-
Not Applicable to the company during the Audit period; and

i. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

(vi). Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the company belongs, as
identified by the management, that is to say:

Reserve Bank of India, 1934

Prevention of Money-Laundering Act,2002.

Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

o L

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s):-
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking



and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the year under review, the Company has passed following
special resolutions;

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla as an Independent Director
2. To raise funds by way of Borrowings and through issuance of Debt Securities/Non-
Convertible Debentures

Sd/-
CS Keta Chheda
Partner
Chirag Shah and Associates
ACS No.: 16374
Place: Ahmedabad C. P. No. 7126
Date: August 07, 2024 UDIN: A016374F000922917
Peer Review Cer. No. 704/2020

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.



To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members

Tyger Capital Private Limited

(Formerly known as Adani Capital Private Limited)
Address - Adani House, 56 Shrimali Society,
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial
records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and
operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtain from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
CS Keta Chheda
Partner
Chirag Shah and Associates
ACS No.: 16374

Place: Ahmedabad C.P.No. 7126
Date: August 07, 2024
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